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Roles
£

The Hospital Authority is a body corporate in the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Its functions are stipulated in
Section 4 (Chapter 113) of the Hospital Authority Ordinance.

REEE (BER) AEBFEITRENEESERE - HBEE
FMEREDE 113 E(BREERIRG)) HHE -

The Hospital Authority is responsible for:

Bt EE FrRERE

® Managing and controlling public hospitals ® Establishing public hospitals
EEREEAVER B RVANYA- 5

® Advising the Government of the needs of ® Promoting, assisting and taking partin
the public for hospital services and of the the education and training of persons
resources required to meet those needs involved in hospital or related services
RABRY RV ERBBENERRENZE e - B R S EE B RHER NG
ERMEFNER > MBUFRHESR BRI AL

® Managing and developing the public
hospital system

EERBROVEBREAS

® Recommending to the Secretary for Food
and Health appropriate policies on fees for
the use of hospital services by the public

RAREABEREENTNER - @
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Vision, Mission and Values
fEs - o BRRRIVEE

Helping People Stay Healthy
HREF REZE

Vision
S

Healthy People T REE People-centred Care LA &%
Happy Staff & T B/t Professional Service A7
Trusted by the Community KR{E58 Committed Staff ZhZELLZE

Teamwork B5EEE N

The Hospital Authority has revamped its corporate vision, mission and
values (VMV) in September 2009, reflecting aspirations of the Board, the
management and staff in fostering a healthy community. Guided by the
new mission of “Helping People Stay Healthy’, the Authority collaborates
with community partners to strive for continued success and works towards
the vision of “Healthy People, Happy Staff, and Trusted by the Community”.

%%%%2009@9%%%&%*%@, - fERARVEE  URREERK

- BEERBER N RERENHE - EFEEET’EEF REEZ R | RUFTE
i %I?E'F  BERNHERBHEFSFE  BEEE  BolmREE &
TR » KREEINES -

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014



Corporate Strategies
HE RS

The Authority aims to achieve its corporate VMV by adopting
six strategic intents as outlined in the HA Annual Plan 2013-2014
with a theme on Keeping Healthcare in Sync:
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Enhance
corporate W,
im

Better manage
growing service
demand

Ensure adequate
resources for meeting
service needs

BEABEHER
BABRBER y

Ensure service
quality and safety

TERARTE
BEERZE

Enhance
partnership
with patients and
community

nREm A ML E
KRR &

Under the above strategic intents and 25 strategies, the Authority formulated 125
corresponding programme targets for 2013-2014, of which all but 12 were achieved in
the year. The Head Office and Cluster Reports in Chapter 6 describe major achievements
in these areas.
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Membership of the Hospital Authority
=hEERXREME

1 Mr Anthony WU
Ting-yuk, GBS, JP
tAEB .

(upto30.11.2013)

(FAIZ20134F 11 H30H)

« Chairman of the Authority
from 7 October 2004 to
30 November 2013

« Company executive and
professional accountant

- 200451047 BE 20135

Prof John LEONG
Chi-yan, SBS, JP
RBCHB

« Appointed as Chairman of the
Authority on 1 December 2013

« Clinician-scientist specialising
in spinal and paediatric
orthopaedics

- R2013F 1281 BEZEE

BEREE

- BRESMRIRRERBERR

3 Mr CHAN Bing-

woon, SBS, JP
BRI VRS A

+ Appointed on 1 December 2008
« Solicitor and owner of a law firm

. 200812 A1 BEZFE
. ERREMITRE

7/ Mr CHENG Yan-kee, JP

Dr Constance CHAN
Hon-yee, JP
BREEEL

Director of Health
HEEER
» Appointed on 13 June 2012

+ Board Member in capacity as
Director of Health of Hong
Kong Government

- R2012F6 B 13BEZRE

18 30 ERE RS BRFRER BRESLE LELRMEIEERAN
ES -
. ATEEREEE ) « Appointed on 1 December
6 Prof Francis CHAN 2009 ;
8 Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP
Ka-leun , JP - Engineering consultant & T
5 Mr William CHAN Bﬁ’?\ﬁ%&}gﬁ and managing director of H?Emﬁi
Fu-keuna. BBS i a consulting engineering
=‘ 9 ) ) company « Appointed on 1 April 2011
@ =2 gﬁ%,—"t : gppomted on 1 April 2013 N . F2009F 1251 BESE . ;hief executive officer of a
« Dean of the Faculty of Medicine listed company

« Appointed on 1 December 2012 of the Chinese University of - FER TIEAT R R TA2AD

NS A =
- Former human resources Hong Kong ARES R\iﬂ 1_%‘_‘5 1 E‘E;&
director of a listed public . R2013F4 A1 AEEE o EHRRITHAR
transportation grou .
P gotp . BB ABEBRRE

- R2012F 1281 BEZE
- EHAREREERTA D
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9 Ms Quince CHONG

Wai-yan
HREEZT

« Appointed on 1 December 2010

« Chief corporate development
officer of a listed power supply
company

- R20108F 1281 REEFE

- EPEAAREERREER

10 Mr Andrew FUNG

Hau-chung, JP
RERFKE

« Appointed on 1 December 2013

- Executive director of a listed
bank

. R2013FE 1281 BEEE
. FHRITHITES

11 Mr Benjamin HUNG
Pi-cheng, JP
HARIEFRYE

(upto30.11.2013)
(FRIZ2013F 11 H30H)

« Appointed on 1 December
2007

« Chief executive officer of a
listed bank

- 2007 F12 A1 BEZME

12 Ms LAU Ka-shi, BBS
BT

« Appointed on 1 April 2008

« Chief executive officer of a
pension products and pension/
fund services group

. A2008F4 B 1 AEZE

- RREERKRER ES
BRI =BT AR

14 Mr Lester Garson . EHRATITEEE

13 Mr Ricky FUNG HUANG, JP 16 L\Dﬂli"\hdy LAU Kwok-fai
Choi-cheung, SBS, JP EEMSkL BB LA
IEEEL L 1S Dr KAM Pok-man .
« Appointed on 1 December 2012 Hﬁyﬁi ’ Qgﬂomted on 1 December
: ::r’:\):tsee(irc;:;r)?ge::?r;ec:fzt?eo . zf:fitmand partnerofalaw + Appointed on 1 April 2013 « Partner of a garment

manufacturing and trading
company
- 2o F12 A1 BEEE
- ERAREBA

Legislative Council

- K200 1281 BEZE
- BARAAEENERNNER

« Certified public accountant and
former chief executive officer of
the Financial Reporting Council

. R2013F4 81 BEZE

- EMEEE - RAKAT RIS
ERBTHAR

- R2012F 1281 BEZE
. EMREMEBEBA
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Membership of the Hospital Authority

BEREERAGWME

17 Mrs Yvonne LAW

SHING Mo-han, JP
RN

(upto30.11.2013)
(FEIZ2013F 11 530H)

« Appointed on 1 December
2007

« Certified public accountant
and tax managing partner of

an international accounting
firm

. 2007 F12 A1 AEEE

- BESTRRERS AT
BEETEEBA

21 Mr Stephen LEE

Hoi-yin
THRERE

« Appointed on 1 December 2013

« Accountant and Adjunct
Associate Professor in
the Faculty of Business
Administration of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong

- R2013F 1281 BEZE

- BIMREBPIABIH
EEERTERHR

Qs

Q
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18 Prof LEE Sum-ping

TINEHFR

(upto31.7.2013)
(FRIZ 201347 531 A)

« Appointed on 1 December 2008

« Former Dean of Li Ka Shing Faculty

of Medicine of the University of
Hong Kong

- $A2008 12 A1 BEZEE

- RAHBEBASERHBR
&

22 Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan

TIHHR

« Appointed on 1 December 2012

« Chair Professor of Nursing and
Director of Nethersole School
of Nursing of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong

. R2012F 12 A1 AEEE

- BB AEIITREE
BRBERR KRR
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19 Ms Esther LEUNG

Yuet yin JP

Deputy Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury

HEEHRERHGEWER

« Appointed on 2 April 2012

- Representing Secretary
for Financial Services and
the Treasury of Hong Kong
Government

. R2012F4 2B EEE

- REBBBNMESHERE
BRAR

23 Prof Gabriel

Matthew LEUNG,
GBS

REBHR

« Appointed on 1 August 2013

« Dean of Li Ka Shing Faculty of
Medicine of the University of
Hong Kong

- R2013F8F1 BEZEME

- EBREFEHEELRRR

20 Mrs Margaret

LEUNG KO May-

yee SBS, JP
H%BU\KI

+ Appointed on 1 December
2011

+ Deputy chairman and
managing director of a
listed bank

. K201 EF12 81 BEEE

- LHRITRIEFERESE
FES 2

24 Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP

ROEELE

Chief Executive, HA

Bl EHE S/ TIAR A
+ Appointed on 8 November
2010

+ Board Member in capacity as
Chief Executive of the Hospital
Authority

- R2010F 11 BsBEZRME

- DBREERITRAHSN
HERREERRE
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25 Dr LI Chi-kong, JP

THEHEE

« Appointed on 1 April 2012

« Chief of Service of Department
of Paediatrics and Co-ordinator
(Clinical Service) of Prince of
Wales Hospital

. R2012F4 51 BEERE

- EERETRE B R R R EE

29 Prof Raymond

LIANG Hin-suen, JP

« Appointed on 1 April 2013

« Specialist in haematology
and haematological oncology
and assistant medical
superintendent of a private
hospital

. R2013F4 81 BEZE

- MBRERHEREER
LRBRHERR

%6
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26 Mr Patrick MA
Ching-hang, BBS, JP
BBBEE

« Appointed on 1 December 2009
« Director and general manager

of a commercial bank

. 7A2009F 12 A1 BEZFE
. RITESERELE

30 Miss Winnie NG
hfElTLT

« Appointed on 1 December 2010

- Director of a listed public

transportation group and
founder of a listed media
company

. R20105F 12 A1 AEEE
. PHAHERREBESER T

REEHEATAPA

27 Mr PANG Yiu-kai,

SBS, JP
CRRESE

« Appointed on 1 April 2011

« Chief executive of a listed real
estate group

- H201 F4 51 BEEE

- bt ESETRER

31 Mr WONG Kwai-huen,

BBS, JP
FiEEAE

« Appointed on 1 December
2012

« Solicitor and a law firm
consultant

- R2012F12 A1 AEEE
. {RER R RS FTEER

28 Prof Maurice YAP
Keng-hung
BRERR

« Appointed on 1 April 2011

« Dean of Faculty of Health and
Social Sciences of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

- R2011F4 81 BEZE
 BRETRBEERMERE
Bkt &

32 Mr Richard YUEN
Ming-fai, JP
=mEEIE

Permanent Secretary for Food and

Health (Health)

RYRFLEBEARER (FE)

« Appointed on 9 September
2011

« Board Member in capacity as
Permanent Secretary for Food
and Health (Health) of Hong
Kong Government

. K201 F9BIBERE

- UEBBNRMRELERER
WER (%) BHHESERE
EBERERE
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Corporate Governance
WEEG

The Hospital Authority (HA) is a statutory body established under the
Hospital Authority Ordinance (Cap. 113) (the HA Ordinance) in December
1990, responsible for managing all public hospitals in Hong Kong. The HA
is accountable to the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR)
Government through the Secretary for Food and Health.

BREER (BER) AZEEE  EREB(BREEREM) M19905F12 4
A BEEEEBNAMNER  TEBRYKFERBREAEBISHITER
BRFEE -

Principles REY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for and commitmentto BERASHEATREBEHEHREEEREIER
corporate governance principles and recognises that the Authority’s 31 - BEMREBERT I A EAERSEZE I E
stakeholders expect the highest standards of performance, REFTEBEEERAIMNSEEAGE -

accountability and ethical behaviour.

The following outlines the approach and practices of corporate BERNEBERAARNREANETHE LML
governance of the Authority. WF e

Hospital Authority Board BERSERAE

Under the HA Ordinance, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR appoints  1RiIE(EREEFEA)  BERAERERE B
members to the Authority Board. The 2013-14 Board consisted of 28 43 BIITHETHEE @™  2013-145E » X8H
members, including the Chairman. Details are listed in Appendix 1. K E28& (BIEEFE) - ;T BEEHAM %1 - KES
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Membership of the Authority comprises 24 non-public officers, three
public officers and one principal officer (the Hospital Authority Chief
Executive). Apart from the principal officer, other members are not

remunerated in the capacity as Board members.

The Authority Board meets formally about 12 times a year and any

other times as required. In 2013-14, it met 15 times. In addition,
three Board papers covering urgent matters were circulated for

approval between meetings.

8ABHELBE - ZABLDBE - —ABEET
HAB (BERTHAR) - RZITBAEN  H
iR B 1R A B KB K 51D T REUEIEE -

ARESFEHEANRIERNEER WEFEEEH
BRIEE - E2013-4FE AEHEHI15XE
B SESHEUERAXBR=HXY BB
BSEH-o
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During the year, the Authority Board implemented a good number
of enhancements on its corporate governance structure and
processes, following the completion of a comprehensive review
of governance practices focusing on the Board level as well as
at the cluster/hospital level by an external consultant (the Phase
1 and Phase 2 Corporate Governance Reviews). These included
strengthening the linkage between the HA Board and the Hospital
Governing Committees (HGCs) through common membership and
other enhanced communication channels; enhancing involvement
of HGCs in strategic matters, long-term planning and experience
sharing at the cluster/hospital level; enriching the contents of
regular reports from Cluster Chief Executives to HGCs; organising
more hospital visits and activities to facilitate communication
between HGCs and hospital management and staff; reinforcing
succession planning and streamlining of the HGC membership
nomination process to promote healthy turnover; improving agenda

setting to incorporate standing agenda items on risk management,

senior staff movement and report of charitable trusts of hospital/

cluster; and introducing annual self-assessment for HGCs.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014

FR BERZENBYEXEHEZERNEE
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B -SEAS2INREA BREZEETESE
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Board Committees

For optimal performance of roles and exercise of powers, the HA
Board has established 11 functional committees: Audit and Risk
Committee, Executive Committee, Emergency Executive Committee,
Finance Committee, Human Resources Committee, Information
Technology Services Governing Committee, Main Tender Board,
Medical Services Development Committee, Public Complaints
Committee, Staff Appeals Committee and Supporting Services
Development Committee. Membership of the committees, their
terms of reference and focus of work in 2013-14 are outlined in

Appendix 3.

Hospital Governing Committees

To enhance community participation and governance of public
hospitals in accordance with the HA Ordinance, 32 HGCs have been
established in 40 hospitals and institutions. These committees are
listed in Appendix 4. During the year, these committees received
regular management reports from Hospital Chief Executives as well
as from Cluster Chief Executives, monitored operational and financial
performance of the hospitals, participated in human resources
and procurement processes, as well as hospital and community
partnership activities. In 2013-14, the 32 HGCs held a total of 126

meetings.

RBETHEES

AHEBERAEENRERERITERZE
RERITN BEEZEE BFEETRAR
a@éﬁ CITHZEEE - BSESREZE

-HMBEEE ANERZEE - EANER
ﬁ”‘?ﬁ CHRBEEZEES - BERBER
REZEEE ABRFEES BWELRKEZEES
RXERERREEZEEE - SEZEE2013-14 FE
MEBEEE  BESER TFEBREAMES -

:A = O
OEEE

AREABESHEEMEBAVERER  RMR
(BB BIERIRAI) £ 40 RIBERR, MBI T 3218
BREREES - FEENME4  BEZEER
FRAEHBERTRAENBEAAENTEHEER
5 ERBREEFENMBEIENRKRE  X2HEA
HERREBNERIE  URBRINLEHBHF
W ESEE  7£2013-14FE » 2BBREREES
HABH1260XRE °
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Corporate Governance
EEn

Regional Advisory Committees

In accordance with the HA Ordinance, the Authority has established
three Regional Advisory Committees to provide HA with advice
on the healthcare needs for specific regions of Hong Kong. These
committees and their respective membership are presented in
Appendix 5. Each Regional Advisory Committee meets four times a

year.

In 2013-14, the Regional Advisory Committees discussed, amongst
other agenda items, waiting time management for specialist
outpatient clinics, overview of the planning process in the HA as
well as clinical performance monitoring. Other topics covered
included the Joint Replacement Centre in the Kowloon Central
Cluster, Vancomycin-Resistant Enterococcus (VRE) situation
update, community psychiatric services and eye services in the
New Territories, and progress report of hospital expansion and

redevelopment projects.

The Committees also deliberated on the annual plan targets of
individual clusters and exchanged views on the provision of 24-
hour percutaneous coronary intervention (PCl) service, doctor and
nurse manpower ratios, as well as provision of service to non-local
pregnant women whose spouses were Hong Kong permanent

residents.

ENEBAEES

ARNMEHEERRETENER  BERRE
(BREERKA KI=EEHZAEESE - i
BoHAU=-EAZEERAKEEE - REREESH
ZEEEFERTAEE -

£2013-145FE  =HAEESZAZESHW T ER
P22 ANREREEE BERNRERIB
RUREBRRBESRER  UHNREMEELE
B BFENEPHANESERYL RBELEXR
PEBHEIRE (VRE) WE BN « TRMENHLER
HRRSS RIRRRE - URERBRERZRERZT

ZEENTER T ARBANTTEER IS
BAREIAER » BEREMH24/)EERE IR E
BoRM (R ERTF D) IR - BAEEELAFH
Bl R ARBATBKAMERNIFEREZFR
HRBEE -




Executive Management

The executive management team of the HA is outlined in Appendix
2(b). The executives are charged by the HA Board with the
responsibility to manage and administer day-to-day business and
operations. To ensure that the management can discharge duties
in an effective and efficient manner, the HA Board has set out clear
delegated authority, policies and codes of conduct. The Board also
approves an annual plan prepared by the executives in accordance
with the Board’s direction. Regular executive reports on the progress
of the agreed performance indicators and targets are presented to
the Board.

Under the powers stipulated in the HA Ordinance, the Authority
determines the remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment for all its employees. Remuneration packages of
executive directors and other senior managers are devised to
attract, motivate and retain high calibre individuals in a competitive
talent market. Remuneration packages of all senior executives are

endorsed by the HA Board through the Executive Committee.

THER

ik 20) MAITHEEBBRNEE - RITRAERE
BERASREEERVITEERNERSKRE
Fo REREEETREGMETHRE - Xg
EERIHETEL  BHERBETER - KEF
FRAARITRASRIBE KRS P T5 # 55T H THEF
g THRAEBTEHAASRIEERS - BFR
ENRBEERTFEERNEE -

RIEC(BRREERIERG) BTHEL  BERTE
TEFTE RS N & BRI IR A - BITHRAREER Hitb
EREBEAEMEENFMES  BREERF
BANADTES K| - HEBRRESERA
7F o IABRTHRAENEH - HHEERAEN
THEESEZEBREFL -
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Chairman’'s Review
=+ & BE R

My Chairmanship of the Hospital Authority (HA) began with a visit to the
new North Lantau Hospital (NLTH) on 1 December 2013. A little over two
months later in February, | attended the ground-breaking ceremony for
Hong Kong Children’s Hospital (HKCH) in Kai Tak. With plans that include

the redevelopment, expansion or opening of at least seven hospitals in the
coming 10 years, NLTH and HKCH are just two examples of HA’s dedication to
providing quality services to meet the current and future healthcare needs of
people in Hong Kong.

HHE20135F12 51 BEH - B B WHRE 55 A AL RUE L& P o AR {E A 12 -
B12014%F 28 RXEETRIEZREEEBREBHENE L HE o RKTF
BEERRVELEBRSSERE  BEIMA  ERIQLERRE R ZEER
AREPWE > ERBTEERBERE BRHUHEBERSE  BEEETRRS
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The past year landmarked our endeavours on several fronts. At the
Board level, we launched a number of initiatives including enhanced
corporate governance. At the clinical level, we set up a centrally
coordinated cross-cluster patient referral system to reduce waiting
time for specialist services and reinforced our clinical capacity and
capabilities through steps such as improving our equipment, IT

systems and models of service delivery.

We are deeply grateful to the Hong Kong Government for its
continuing commitment through both funding and policy support.
For 2014-15, the Government has increased HA's recurrent subvention

to HK$47.2 billion - a 3.7% increase over the previous year’s.

Our creditable progress in 2013-14 was achieved despite many
significant challenges. | must pay tribute to my predecessor, Mr
Anthony Wu Ting-yuk, for his outstanding contribution to HA and
public healthcare during his nine years as HA Chairman. | must also
thank HA Chief Executive, Dr Leung Pak-yin, who was re-appointed
in November 2013 for a second term of three years. Under his
guidance, HA’s highly talented leadership team has grown in
cohesion and capability in responding to rising public expectations,
greater demand for healthcare services and increasing pressure on
clinical staff.

=F 0 RMESHTEYIREEERR - EBERKX
SEE RMETT ZRER  BRELCHEE
& BRPRARF S E - AR T H R i7 FA Y B R
BEAEN RS - FRERRBHOERRER B
BRRERE - ENRSERBRBERX - RA e
BB ERPRBR S RE S o

R+ oRHE BB EM B BELRESE &
FEIEMNEE R 201415 FENLEMER » BB
ERIE 472200 BRI — 18 MN3.7% ©

72013-145FE  REEE RS - RMODEUS
AEER  BLERHE—EEEHATREE - 5
FERENFUR  HEERRAVEBEFLHES
B e RAERHE2013F 11 AEET=FMNT
BASRRERE  ERBLEEET  BERNS
HESEREEARTE EAWEE « BIZMARTE
ERREBEAENIERS - IARTEREL - %
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Chairman’s Review
FTEER

We welcomed Professor Francis Chan Ka-leung, Dr Kam Pok-man,
Professor Raymond Liang Hin-suen, Professor Gabriel Matthew Leung,
Mr Andrew Fung Hau-chung and Mr Stephen Lee Hoi-yin to the Board
during the past year. Their diverse range of expertise and experience
has brought fresh perspectives to Board discussions. | also express my
sincere thanks to Professor Lee Sum-ping, Mr Benjamin Hung Pi-cheng,
Mrs Yvonne Law Shing Mo-han and Ms Ka-shi Lau, who have stepped
down as Board Members in 2013-14 after providing years of invaluable

counsel.

I am grateful to all members of the Board, Regional Advisory
Committees and Hospital Governing Committees, and to the co-opted
members of our functional committees for their advice and support. My
sincere thanks also go to patient groups, District Council and Legislative
Council members, and to all our HA volunteers, whose contribution

enabled us to move forward with our vision.

Hospital Authority AnnualReport 2013-2011‘__
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The devotion and support of our staff continues to ensure that
HA remains highly respected by governments and healthcare
administrators across the globe for our professionalism. The
exemplary efforts of my colleagues are best highlighted by the
supreme teamwork and service excellence demonstrated by this
year's winners of Outstanding Staff and Teams Award. | congratulate
our Award recipients and offer heartfelt thanks to all our staff for

their tireless passion and care.

HA is committed to ensuring that public healthcare remains
a cornerstone of work to promote good health and social
development in Hong Kong. | trust that with the concerted efforts of
the HA family and strong community support, we will achieve ever-

greater outcomes for our patients and their families.

Pf-d-""l----? i
John CY Leong

Chairman

BEEINHBNZE  BERBX A MER
BREERESR -RAENEUXRE - KHIREER
BREEES  EAFENREETREBRER
RERIEE REONZIGREZHE ARL
R 2R EH THENEHMIRA -

BERIIBRLHABEATBNESL » MUEHE
RE TOHESNRERE RREHEZEBER
EEARRELT -0 URTROARNIZE &
FISRERIEE AR  ERBAREZE -
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Chief Executive’s Report

17 LR 2 B IR

In 2013-14, the Hospital Authority (HA) placed great emphasis on
addressing the current and future risks we face in delivering high-quality

people-centred care.

E2013-14FE - BIEER (BER) WEER » 2EYEAIAARRAER -

REUABENEEEERRT

With growing public expectations over our ability to meet the
community’s medical needs, we implemented further initiatives to
tackle the serious issue of overstretched services. We recruited 291
resident trainees, 12 non-local doctors, 2,097 nurses and 529 allied
health professionals to alleviate increasing pressure on frontline
staff as well as the severe shortage of clinicians in certain specialties.
Existing talent was motivated through enhanced promotion and
career development opportunities, including the creation of 120

new Associate Consultant openings and the provision of 180

overseas training scholarships.

ERTREBERSRMUEABERBENALEARR
= BME—SHETER EBHREELEREN
BIRE o FAMEEFE T 291 BRI B4, 12 BIEARUER
4,2,097 BE TR 529 BEREREAS - LUREA]
BABNRY  UARENEBRENAFNEER
o AT EMBEARBERERS  HBRER
7 BIEFIE120ERI RS LR > IR %180
ERBRMEIIMNEBRES -




We also stepped up the efforts to expand our service capacity. We
set up new acute and extra convalescent beds for inpatients, opened
additional operating theatre sessions for cancer surgeries and
emergency surgeries, and increased doctor sessions in our general
and specialist outpatient clinics. Three on-going public-private
partnership programmes - involving cataract, primary care and
radiology services respectively — have enabled around 3,000 patients
to receive earlier treatment. We also extended the community case
management programme to cover three more districts, providing

care for around 2,800 patients with severe mental ilinesses.

Strategic use of technology was promoted to avoid unnecessary
hospitalisation and provide more efficient diagnostic services to
reduce the incidence of unnecessary complications that would
require more invasive treatment. This included the provision of
27,000 additional patient attendances for Magnetic Resonance
Imaging and Computerised Tomography scans, and 91 collaborative

robotic-assisted surgery cases across the clusters.

HMTMRIER R - SEERSERBEEER
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BESAE - BMESIZEHEEREARER
FTE - 542,800 EREBWHBERERE -
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Chief Executive’s Report
THRAER

We made significant progress with the expansion and
redevelopment of our infrastructure - commencing patient services
at the new North Lantau Hospital in September 2013 and holding
the ground-breaking ceremony for the Hong Kong Children’s
Hospital in Kai Tak in February 2014, in addition to ongoing
improvement works at existing hospitals such as Caritas Medical
Centre, United Christian Hospital, Queen Mary Hospital, Kwong Wah
Hospital, Kwai Chung Hospital and Yan Chai Hospital.

Senior appointments in 2013-14 included Ms Clara Chin Sheung-
Chi as Finance Director, Dr Theresa Li Tak-lai as Head of Human
Resources, and Dr Derrick Au Kit-sing as Director (Quality & Safety)
at HA Head Office. At the Cluster level, Dr Hung Chi-tim took up the
post of Cluster Chief Executive of New Territories East Cluster, and
Dr Albert Lo Chi-yuen took up the post of Cluster Chief Executive of
Kowloon Central Cluster. We also bade farewell to former Director
(Finance) Ms Nancy Tse and former New Territories East Cluster Chief
Executive Dr Fung Hong who both made invaluable contribution to

HA during their many years of service.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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| wish to express my sincere gratitude to our passionate and
dedicated staff whose efforts have enabled HA to excel among
the leading public healthcare services in the world. My thanks also
go to the Hong Kong Government which, on top of its continuing
support through annual recurrent funding and policy decisions,
has approved a HK$13 billion one-off grant to help fund minor

improvement works over the next 10 years.

We are facing significant challenges and there is much we must do
to maintain the quality of healthcare. Our ability to minimise gaps
between our services and patient needs rests on strong support
from the community at large. With their invaluable assistance and
trust, we will uphold our commitment to enhancing the lifelong

health and well-being of people in Hong Kong.

M

PY LEUNG

Chief Executive
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Milestones of the Year
NEDO

4/2013

To enhance transparency and public accountability,

Hospital Authority (HA) started posting Specialist Out-

patient waiting time of selected specialties and waiting

time of cataract surgery on the HA corporate website.

New case booking waiting time of Ear, Nose and Throat,

Gynaecology, Ophthalmology and Paediatrics has been

posted up since 31 March 2014. The information will be

updated quarterly. b,

BERE—DTRAMBZERE > K2013F4 ABBE
BEEREEAMAE AR ENENMZHEREARAR
BEFimEsEEARSE - HE2014F3831HE
FENENMRHERREESEESRE - BR
RERER  EREESEEH-

4/2013

HA signed a Memorandum of Understanding
with MOH Holdings, subsidiary of Ministry of
Health of Singapore, to promote exchange in

! T

healthcare management, policy development
for medical services in public hospitals, and

expertise sharing.

B P B R 5 B A3 R 4 P8R T HEAE MOH

Holdings 22 B =% - BV —(EEREED
EE G HEBELBRTHRABBEIRN
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©/2013

2013 marked the 15" anniversary
for Tai Po Hospital, signifying strong
partnership with community
stakeholders.

A8 15 BFHE - EEE

B I B -
6/2013

Pok Oi Hospital completed Organization

Wide Survey for the Hospital Accreditation
programme and received full accreditation
status of the Australian Council on
Healthcare Standards for four years.
HEBERTR T RERNESEREEET
EHBHERRERBTE BG4 F

A B o

//2013

The first Magnetic Resonance Imaging
{MRI) Suite of Ruttonjee Hospital
commenced service.
FEIRERNVEER D EIREEEER
AR ©
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Milestones of the Year
XEOBE

8/2013

Queen Elizabeth Hospital celebrated golden jubilee
throughout the year, with special highlight on publishing
an oral history book "QEH — A People’s History". The book
features interviews of frontline staff, patient groups,
patients and relatives, hospital management and also
previous and current Secretaries for Food and Health of
HKSAR Government.

FRD BB EP —RIES - LR 50FE - B
BEHROEESE (FRA - 15 - B) - ZEEBFHEA
HET - BAAS  PARERE EEENEESS
HEBRRYREERERE  LEFRNELRRE

9/2013

North Lantau Hospital commenced
services in phases with 8-hour accident
and emergency service, allied health
and community service.

b KU L BB B 4R 0 P ERIR AR
BREREH/VNRIEE - EHEERER
HER -
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9/2013

Prince of Wales Hospital, North District Hospital
and Tung Wah Hospital completed Organization
Wide Survey for the Hospital Accreditation
programme. All three hospitals received full
accreditation status of the Australian Council on

Healthcare Standards for four years.

FLRET# £ 80 - b EEEb MR ERR TR T
REEMNEFERBEETERBNBIRDE
HRBRTE - WEB4FRATER -

11/2013

Kowloon Hospital completed
Organization Wide Survey for the
Hospital Accreditation programme
and received full accreditation
status of the Australian Council on
Healthcare Standards for four years.

NEBRTR T RBRMNERREE
EFERBNERRRHETE I
BEB4FRAER -

10/2013

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

commemorated 20" anniversary through a
series of events and activities to engage staff
and community under the theme of “Rong’,

reflecting harmony amongst different parties.

REERAER 20 EAFRE  UIRl5=E
B BP—RIEE) - RRFEELBASR
 REBE T RSB EALHBIER o
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Milestones of the Year
XEOBE

1/2013

Hospital Authority signed a 3-year
Memorandum of Understanding with National
Health and Family Planning Commission

to enhance exchange in pharmaceutical
procurement, community health, hospital

management and sharing of expertise. ]2/20-'3
BREEREERGENGELEEZEEEL ,

REIRAP=FNEFERETHE - E—LTMRE

BB B  BETER A - The whole Tseung Kwan O Hospital

| A R o (TKOH) expansion project was completed,

including the new Ambulatory Care Block
and renovation of various facilities in TKOH
Main Block.
BERBRERERZIRZRT  BFAME
BEAERBRIESERBREIRE

1/2014

The Kowloon Central Cluster
Convention 2014 themed “Cherish
our Traditions, Strive for Perfection”
was held on 10 January 2014.

NEEPEG BT 2 2014 F1
B10B81T  SEFXBEARE(CE
BIRM] -
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1/2014

The endoscopy and electro-medical diagnostic
service at Tuen Mun Hospital turned a new

page. The Combined Endoscopy Centre and
Electro-Medical Diagnostic Unit provides better
coordinated service with flow of inpatients and
day patients, meeting the latest service and safety
standard.

BEEARENRER EHDE P OERXRA - B
BB ER B E R BMAMN—E - A
REUGEZNZE L - BT &R - RIEUFE
BHRBEZ2RE - A BRAIRH - BERR
A~ BEBARPIZHBARH-BANEERNE
BN EMEF R

2/2014

The first children hospital to be built in
Hong Kong was officially named Hong Kong
Children's Hospital at its ground-breaking

ceremony.
FEERRERBRBTH AR WIEK
mERIBBRERER] -

iffidh

i
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2/2014

LEGCO Health Services Panel endorsed
Phase 1 of Queen Mary Hospital
redevelopment project. The whole
redevelopment project will be completed
in 2023.
Vet EREE S RBNBERE -
HEEAE - BIETREEN2023F7TH °

3/2014

The Organisation Wide Survey for hospital
accreditation was conducted at United
Christian Hospital, preparing the hospital
for full accreditation status.
BNEEREEEZE S TAE B
BERAFNHIBTE  ABSER

2 ERAMELERE o
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Engagement and Teamwork
RENE BHREN

Committed to a people-oriented culture, Hospital Authority (HA) continues
to furnish a positive, supportive and caring work environment to attract,
retain and motivate staff on multi-fronts. A staff engagement programme
‘We are HA Family’ was launched to promote communication, appreciation,
respect and empathy at work. Seminars, sharing sessions and online games
were organised for all employees to promote awareness and practice in
staff engagement.

BEREER (BER) BOEEIUARL INL - #ERMEQMERE

BOWTFRE - W WHBET - RAPETI OBEE - AIFTE - (BER

SETFBEEBE - RE - EENER - AMNAZTRETERANSND
FE 0 WEHALER - MEESEREE T HHEAVESMNRI

HA provides various communication channels to encourage open  EERIEMHTERE - HENEHBINEEES - R
communication to strengthen rapport with staff of all levels. Other BHRETHHE - BT KM BN BB T - ET
than staff newsletter HASLink, webcast and HA blog on the intranet, #LE#E @ URAHSLENTEERERBE
Staff Consultative Committees were established at corporate, HRXZE - RO BIEDR - B RIBEARIK
hospital and staff group levels to enhance communication between VREHEZEE X MELABEFFABRREIR
management and staff representatives from different grades. In 2013-14, KW EEEBE - £2013-4FE - BERBEAT
mail voting for direct election of staff representatives in all Staff Group ~ HEZEESMNETIRNRERRXAT ABBFRE
Consultative Committees was adopted, leading to a general increase 3 ' SRERLIE LT -

in voting rate.
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At cluster and hospital levels, diversified communication
initiatives are also implemented to accommodate local needs.
Regular meetings or gatherings with Cluster Chief Executives
(CCE) and Hospital Chief Executives (HCE) promoted face-to-face
communication between frontline staff and hospital management.
Other than well-established channels such as cluster newsletter, CCE
or HCE blog, online letterbox, message to CCE and Staff Relations
Office hotline, Staff Communication Ambassadors met with

employees periodically to listen to their voices.

Internal communication was also enhanced with the revamp of HA
Channel YouTube page and a new version of HA song. The SARS 10"
Anniversary Photo Exhibition gained positive feedback from staff

and engaged them in sharing thoughts and feelings on e-corner.

BREKERTHRAZHRCHNBELX  BKEE5
TEMER - BERERERITHRAEEHEAR
ETEEHBE SASTHEEBEREYS -
BRTITZBMNEBER N WERATY - BRRAE
HEFITHARERR WLER (LB RREN
FEINBEBMENBEERSRI)  ETEBRETE
HETESEHETEH @ REMMOLE -

R T AEER - BE/BIRIE YouTube HYARTE
BT HRE BERTERTELIRAS - DL+
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Engagement and Teamwork
RBNE BERHEN

A wide spectrum of staff wellbeing initiatives were implemented
to promote a balanced and healthy lifestyle. Sports events and
recreational activities were organised to meet individual interests.
Family members were invited to participate in various events, such
as the HA Family Day and Night and the HA Chinese New Year
Run, with the latter recorded a new high enrolment of over 3,600
members of staff and their families and raised HK$1.1 million for HA

Charitable Foundation, benefiting patients with chronic illnesses.

To improve staff access to radiological imaging services amidst long
waiting time in HA hospitals, a pilot programme providing eligible
staff with access to private diagnostic imaging services on co-

payment basis was approved in the year for launching in 2014-15.

BEEREPS AR ENEIERTES  HETER
RENEEEN - HES TN TEES - RIEY
TEEESHERRLTE I THBFEIRE
Sm MBEERAfMzANERIRIFERK] -
BEESEERBI0ZEINRBHRESM
REFZE RATHABERZSESESEA
NOBREN  AUNEMRBREE -

BEERTEFAMESELEE  EETIWEEF
BRI ERBIRENDEES R - EREwIRRS
BENKE  BRARBEREISNE - BETERN
2014-15 FEHETT ©
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Dedication and experience are greatly valued in HA. Long service @~ BER—RERE INE/MMER - RMRKRE R
awards and retirement souvenirs were presented to employees who 105 ~ 205 + 305 40 F R LR E T 5 B A3
have served for 10, 20, 30 and 40 years and on retirement. Initiatives R EIFRIEIER R ﬁiﬁEAﬂk Loy FLOETREREE
such as bright suggestions, creativity in work improvement, merit 8|8 « REILEFES AASNERESRER
performance and outstanding achievement of individuals and teams ~ S#EH - ERASREHINEEEEE -

were recognised with prizes and awards both in HA and outside the

organisation.
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Engagement and Teamwork
BRENE BRED

Outstanding Staff and Teams Award

Teamwork is one of the core values of HA and the key driver in
providing efficient medical services with high quality territory-wide.
The ‘Outstanding Staff and Teams Award’ organised for 17 years
commended exemplary performance of individual staff and teams
and attracted total nominations of 23 staff and 34 teams in 2013-14.
Six employees and seven teams won the awards, four employees

and three teams were granted Merit Awards.

RBRNE BFREN

[(BRBEHIREBRER—EEERVEE  T2R
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e Outstanding Staff and Teams Award
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Outstanding Teams:

® Non-emergency Ambulance Transfer Services Team of Kowloon
West Cluster (Princess Margaret Hospital)

® | ady Pao Children's Cancer Centre (CCC) of Prince of Wales Hospital

® Occupational Safety & Health Team of Kowloon East Cluster

® Organ Transplant Coordinators Team of HA Head Office

® Department of Pathology Specimen Assurance for Excellence
(SAFE) Project Team of Princess Margaret Hospital

® Vascular Anomalies Multidisciplinary Team of Queen Elizabeth
Hospital

® Ventilator-Assisted Children's Voyage Allies and Companions Team
of Hong Kong West Cluster

Merit Teams:

® Community Psychiatric Service Team of New Territories West
Cluster

® Diabetes Care Team of Hong Kong East Cluster

® Virtual Ward Team of Kowloon East Cluster

BEEEXRER :
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Head Office and
Cluster Reports
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The Hospital Authority (HA) provides public healthcare services to the people of
Hong Kong through the Head Office and seven hospital clusters:

BEREER (BER) ZEANSZTERET LEERBA  BEETR
REAHBERY

Hong Kong East Cluster {3’-4”‘ "
LR E 103 T igw

Hong Kong West Cluster ﬁ b
B B 74 B B B 49 Sy /

Kowloon Central Cluster ; New Territories West Cluster
188 oh B8 B B 48 @ 7 5775 B8 0 B 40

Kowloon East Cluster

FURE R B B B 4

Head Office and Cluster Reports present an overview of the performance of
HA Head Office and Clusters under six corporate strategic intents and also

achievements in contributing to a friendly environment.

UITRENEEREERBEAEBEER A AAXRAEBN TFER -
URBERERERRAEMNARR
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Head Office

The HA Head Office (HAHO) aligns corporate values and directions. It plays
a strategic role in leading corporate development and supporting hospital
clusters through interactive collaboration of seven divisions, namely Cluster
Services, Corporate Services, Finance, Human Resources, Information
Technology, Quality & Safety, and Strategy & Planning.

BEERANREE (AMBE)RE AN ERBEARSEN  #HEEH
ab o MIBE - ADBER - EMBEN - BEERZEHBNRBEHRES - &£
NEREEHARBEENTLD  YREEXKHL  ERIMFANEDHS

B EBRBRE TASBRBAREHESE-

The HAHO initiated some 125 corporate targets in 2013-14 under six

strategic intents outlined in the HA Annual Plan.

Strategic intent:
Allay staff shortage and high turnover

To allay staff shortage, HA implemented enhancement measures
to attract, motivate and retain a quality workforce through the
recruitment of 291 resident trainees, 12 non-local doctors, 2,097

nurses and 529 allied health professionals during the year.

300 students enrolled in the Higher Diploma in Nursing Programme
while 100 were trained as enrolled nurses. 26 specialty courses
and 270 competence enhancement programmes were organised
for nurses. 1,600 newly recruited nurse graduates were trained
on preceptorship programmes. To meet escalating demand
for maternity services in public hospitals, midwifery training

programmes with an annual intake of 75 midwife trainees were

launched.

£2013-145FE - BPEHRREEER TEEHR
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26 candidates were offered 3-year overseas scholarship in the
United Kingdom with a view to alleviating inadequate local supply
of podiatrists and diagnostic radiographers. 68 programmes were
designed for allied health and pharmacy professionals to meet

service needs and to enhance professional competence.

Training and development initiatives were enhanced both locally
and overseas to strengthen clinical and management competence
and provide career development opportunities for doctors, nurses
and allied health professionals. Development posts for job rotation
at senior management level were offered to senior nursing and allied
health staff to foster succession planning. A total of 46 frontline

doctors were promoted to associate consultant positions.

Clinical skills of doctors were enhanced through 20 simulation
training programmes. Central Orientation Programme was designed
for intern doctors, covering both personal competence and technical
skill training with scenario-based patient safety components and

procedural skill practices.

REFEL M BHDEARRSAHERE - ZAH
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Head Office and Cluster Reports
RMERREFREIEER

HA’s endeavour in training and people development was
commended by the Employee Training Board as ‘Manpower
Developer’ for the second year. Training courses for 1,020 frontline
managers and 3,719 supporting staff continued to strengthen
people management capability and personal and functional skills
respectively. About 300 online training programmes offered web-

based learning resources for staff.

120 healthcare workers completed formal mediation training
and 1,000 frontline staff were trained on complaint management
and conflict resolution with an aim to build up HA’s capabilities in

improving patient relations and conflict resolution.

Strategic intent:
Better manage growing service demand

HA increased service capacity in priority areas and enhanced
management and secondary prevention of chronic diseases with an

aim to better manage growing service demand.

Hospital capacity was strengthened in 2013-14 with an addition
of 287 beds, including 157 acute beds and 130 convalescent beds

to address the service needs for high needs communities, such as

Kowloon East Cluster, Kowloon West Cluster and New Territories
West Cluster.
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HA was also committed to managing high demand life threatening

diseases. Cardiac care was enhanced with expansion of emergency
percutaneous coronary intervention service from eight to 12
hours in United Christian Hospital, Princess Margaret Hospital and
Prince of Wales Hospital. Clinical treatment for stroke patients was
strengthened with 24-hour thrombolytic service in Pamela Youde
Nethersole Eastern Hospital, Queen Elizabeth Hospital and Prince
of Wales Hospital. Transient Ischaemic Attack clinics were set up
in Hong Kong East Cluster and New Territories East Cluster, where
patients were managed promptly by teams of neurologists and
nurses for proper diagnosis and early treatment, hence reducing
the likelihood of future stroke events. 28 additional hospital
haemodialysis places were provided for patients with end stage
renal disease. Cancer service was enhanced with strengthened
radiation therapist manpower as well as the use of high technology

radiotherapy in cancer treatment.

Management and prevention of chronic diseases was enhanced
with anti-vascular endothelial growth factor treatment offered to
around 500 new patients with age-related macular degeneration
and specialist eye services for 4,000 new patients of diabetic-related

eye diseases, including sight-threatening diabetic retinopathy.

For better management of increasing demand in elderly medical
care, HA refined the integrated care model (ICM) for supporting
elderly patients with high risk of hospital readmission. Implemented
measures included an enhanced electronic platform for information
sharing with different specialties, and training courses for around
100 ICM team members, including case managers, to strengthen
their trans-disciplinary knowledge and skills. The Community Health
Call Centre (CHCCQ) service was strengthened to support high risk

elderly patients and diabetic patients.
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Head Office and Cluster Reports
RMERREFREIEER

Service for psychiatric inpatients were improved with strengthened
workforce of nurses and allied health professionals in all hospital
clusters to provide recovery-oriented treatment programmes to
facilitate early discharge and community re-integration. Community
care for psychiatric patients was strengthened through extending
the case management programme to three more districts to provide
intensive and personalised support for around 2,800 patients with
severe mental illness. The programme covered a total of 15 districts
in the territory, serving 15,000 patients.

HA managed increased workload during high season of flu epidemic
of December 2013 through coordinated effort among hospital
clusters and augmented buffer capacity in acute and convalescent
wards. The arrangement was communicated to the public through
different channels such as press conference, television and radio
interviews as well as issuing daily service statistics during the

Chinese New Year period.

To better manage waiting time, HA enhanced cross-cluster
collaboration by establishing a centrally coordinated mechanism
to pair-up clusters so that suitable patients of certain specialties of
longer waiting time could be referred to those of shorter waiting
time. Capacity for services with pressing issues of waiting time
and access was increased, such as providing 15,000 additional
haemoglobin (HbA1c) tests in four clusters and prenatal screening

for Down Syndrome for all eligible expectant mothers.
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Public-Private Partnership (PPP) in healthcare services fosters
healthy competition and cooperation among service providers. PPP
optimises the use of resources in both public and private sectors,
consequently shortens waiting time for public healthcare services.
Over the past few years, the pilot PPP programmes of purchasing
cataract surgeries, primary care service and radiological investigation
service from the private sector were implemented. In 2013-14,
over 3,000 patients benefited from three pilot PPP programmes. 20
patients in public hospitals were also offered HD treatment under

PPP programme.

Strategic intent:
Ensure service quality and safety

In strengthening HA's preparedness and emergency response for
disasters and crisis intervention, governance structure on disaster
psychosocial services for healthcare staff was established. During the
year, six hospitals obtained full accreditation status by the Australian
Council on Healthcare Standards, making the total number of
accredited hospitals in HA to 12.

Safer service models were developed. The aseptic dispensing
facilities in Queen Mary Hospital and Princess Margaret Hospital
were upgraded to meet environmental control requirements in
aseptic compounding process and improve medication safety.
Information technology system was enhanced to support
clinical workflow and reduce errors in medication prescription
to facilitate service delivery. Paediatric clinical pharmacy service
was implemented in eight public hospitals. Medication orders for
general paediatric inpatients were screened by clinical pharmacists
while drug consultation service was provided for high-risk patients

to enhance drug management and compliance.
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New software was developed for Unique Patient Identification
devices to enhance safety of blood administration procedures
by meeting the International Society of Blood Transfusion global
standard (ISBT 128) for identification, labelling and information

transfer of human blood.

The new In-patient Medication Order Entry system implemented
in Princess Margaret Hospital enhanced clinical workflow efficiency
and reduced potential medication prescription errors. The next
phase of Clinical Management System has commenced to enhance

clinical communications and workflow.

HA adopts modern technology and new treatment options to
enhance quality and safety. The scope of HA Drug Formulary was
widened in the second quarter of 2013 to cover more drugs with
accumulated scientific evidence on clinical efficacy. Two self-
financed cancer drugs were repositioned as Special Drugs in the
HA Drug Formulary for treatment of head and neck cancer as well
as malignant pleural mesothelioma. The clinical applications of
two therapeutic groups of drugs were expanded for treatment of

colorectal cancer and advanced Parkinson'’s disease.
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Cancer diagnostic service was modernised by providing 130
additional patients with cytogenetic tests and conducting 500
additional predictive molecular tests. Minimally invasive surgery
technique was used in 60% of hysterectomy surgeries for suitable
gynaecological patients. Bipolar transurethral resection of prostate
was available in 16 HA hospitals. 27 suitable patients with advanced
Parkinson’s Disease received deep brain stimulation treatment. A
total of 91 patients underwent robotic assisted surgery under cross

cluster collaborative programme with mult-idisciplinary input.

HA continually upkeeps the standard of medical equipment to
ensure safety for patients. With continual funding support from the
Government, 612 pieces of medical equipment items were procured.
Reserved recurrent subvention was utilised to speed up additional
replacement of 362 pieces of medical equipment. All hip prosthesis

has been replaced with modern implants.
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Head Office and Cluster Reports
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Strategic intent:
Enhance partnership with patients and
community

Patients and community partners were engaged throughout service
improvement in public hospitals. A pilot hospital-based patient
experience and satisfaction survey was conducted in seven major
acute hospitals. An information system was also developed to

manage patient complaint and feedback.

HA adopts patient-centred approach in communication with
patients and carers. 30 patient resources stations or information
kiosks were set up in phases in all hospital clusters to facilitate
information sharing on peer support for patients and carers. Around
300 hospital volunteers were trained. Guidelines were promulgated
to facilitate visually impaired persons with guide dogs to access

public hospitals and clinics.

A proactive approach was adopted to maintain rapport and
communicate with the media and community stakeholders to keep
them abreast of the latest development in HA policies and services.
During the year, 339 media activities were organised, 540 press
releases issued, 230 articles contributed to various media platforms,
1,800 media enquiries and 180 community enquiries handled.
Community roving exhibition was organised at 16 locations in the

territory to arouse public awareness on infection control.
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Strategic intent:
Ensure adequate resources to meet
service needs

The Government continued its staunch support for public
healthcare, with subvention to HA reaching HK$45.5 billion in 2013-14.
As a responsible public organisation, we continue to undertake
prudent measures on financial management to ensure resources are

properly safeguarded and appropriately deployed.

To facilitate value-for-money delivery of quality patient care, HA
stays vigilant in revisiting and monitoring resource management to
optimise output and performance. Through continuous engagement
with different stakeholders in HA, the internal resource allocation
framework was modernised with information on resource needs
from a total patient journey perspective as an additional reference

for resource allocation.

In 2013-14, HA recorded a surplus position mainly due to
underspending from manpower shortfall despite measures had
been taken to recruit and retain healthcare professionals. Looking
forward, manpower shortage in the market and continual brain

drain to the private sector remain major challenges for HA.

RIBBER -
EBREREHERBIRES

BBERNIZHEBNALEERYE  BERE
2013- 14 FE TR FERK 4558 - BERE
RAESENAERE  SEESHRENVRER
Bt BREEEVRERABHERFR -

ARENERIUENBERARY - BER—B
BERBFAREREREE  LWESRAMBMK
Mo BRETEFNEFESHE BERTEHENL
HRMEFRD BT - UImARREEBREMEN
BR - ERERIMNENBE -

BERTE2013-4FERBRE  TEFRRAFMD
IR - HORETEETHX - AP —E|HEMEE
Bt BERGEBEEAS - ERR > mHEAFE
RRIETBEATHE  BSNARBEREENE
T -

ERERBER 2013-2014

S5O



Head Office and Cluster Reports
RMERREFREIEER

In respect of long term financial sustainability, HA has discussed
medium term resource requirement with the Government and
supported the long term fiscal planning exercise by estimating the
resource need to meet challenges of ageing population and rising

service demand.

With funding support from the Government and Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust, the fleet of Non-emergency Ambulance Transfer
Service (NEATS) vehicles was further strengthened with replacement
of nine vehicles and addition of 15 environmental-friendly liquefied
petroleum gas vehicles. Waiting time for NEATS service was

shortened and service enhanced.

To better manage growing service demand, a series of hospital
development projects are in the pipeline. Key milestones achieved
included completion of construction works for the new ambulatory
and rehabilitation block for phase 2 redevelopment of Caritas
Medical Centre, and commencement of construction works for Tin
Shui Wai Hospital and Hong Kong Children’s Hospital at the Kai Tak
Development Area. Renovation works were carried out in six general
outpatient clinics (GOPCs) to improve patient flow, barrier free

access and environmental conditions. Review of designs for barrier

free access in all GOPCs and 16 acute hospitals was completed.
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Technology facilitates delivery of modern healthcare services. Digital
imaging technology was extended to 38 hospitals in HA, greatly
reducing the use of traditional films and improved service efficiency

through electronic medical records.

The Enterprise Resource Planning system previously implemented in
most hospitals to administer HA's payroll, financial and procurement
transactions was upgraded, ensuring effective performance and also
enabled HA to benefit from the latest technology enhancement. The
patient billing system was rolled out to all public hospitals, providing
flexibility for patients to pay at any hospital and improve timeliness

and accuracy.

Patient data privacy is of prime importance in HA. Ongoing
education and training for staff on personal data protection
upkeeps general awareness on privacy protection. In pursuant to
the established policy, resources were allocated to drive various
privacy protection initiatives, including regular audits and privacy
compliance checks. To strengthen technological controls on network
and system security, HA has joined the Cyber Security Centre
initiative of Hong Kong Police Force in protection of HA systems

against cyber attacks.
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Head Office and Cluster Reports
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HA enhanced the level of quality assurance and risk management
processes to improve the stability and accuracy of all IT systems,
identify and understand the root cause associated with system
failure, and take remedial actions to ensure that the likelihood of

further failure occurrences are minimised.

HA continued to provide technical agency services to the Hong
Kong Government in developing the eHealth Record Sharing
System, Elderly Healthcare Voucher Scheme, Vaccination Subsidy
Schemes, Primary Care Directory System and Communicable Disease

Information System.
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Strategic intent:
Enhance corporate governance

During the year, the HA Board implemented a good number of
enhancements on corporate governance structure and processes,
following the recommendations of a comprehensive review
of governance practices completed in 2012-13 (the Corporate
Governance Review). These enhanced corporate governance
practices, together with various corporate policies approved and
adopted by the HA Board over the years, were consolidated and
documented into a Code of Corporate Governance Practices to
provide detailed and transparent reference for Members of the HA
Board and its committees, guiding them in performing their roles

and responsibilities on the governance front.

At the cluster/hospital level, the enhanced corporate governance
practices as recommended in the Corporate Governance Review
were progressively implemented and documented in the updated

Manual on the Operation of Hospital Governing Committees.
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Head Office and Cluster Reports
RMERREFREIEER

Contributing to a Green Environment

HA strives to foster a greener environment through implementing
various environmental conservation measures and practices, thus

continuously improving its environmental performance.

New hospital projects in HA are designed and constructed with
prevailing best practicable environmental standards. Various energy
conservation features, including high efficacy lighting, energy-
efficient air-conditioning, hot water, lift and escalator systems were
incorporated as standard provisions in new facilities. Other green
features, such as application of renewable energy, water recycling,
and soft landscaping also provide environmental benefits as well as

healing environments for patients.

In 2013-14, the new North Lantau Hospital was awarded a
Hong Kong Building Environmental Assessment Method (HK-
BEAM) Platinum certificate in recognition of sustainable design
and remarkable environmental achievements. Similar energy
conservation technologies were also adopted in other HA facilities
through renovation and retrofitting projects whenever appropriate.
These initiatives can help HA reduce carbon emission and offset
the rising trend of energy consumption incurred by new facilities
and increasing hospital activities. The HA Head Office and 32 public
hospitals and institutions have met the carbon emission reduction
standard of the Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence

Scheme and awarded with Carbon’Less’ certificates.
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Various waste reduction and recycling programmes continued in
hospitals to protect the environment. A total of 3,100 tonnes of
recyclables including waste paper, plastic, metals, glass bottles,
used clothes and food waste were collected. HA also facilitated
non-government organisations in various recycling programmes
including used clothes, plastics, glass, electrical appliances and
furniture. 18 hospitals achieved the Certificate of Appreciation
for Used Clothes Recycling Programme 2013 from Friends of the
Earth. A total of 27 hospitals and institutions were awarded the
Class of Excellence Wastewi$e Label of the Hong Kong Awards for

Environmental Excellence.

Continuous efforts were made to introduce environmental friendly
LPG vehicles, with replacement of nine Non-emergency Ambulance

Transfer Service vehicles and 15 more added in 2013-14.
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Hong Kong East Cluster (HKEC)
EEREREE (EESRMAE)

Pamela Youde Nethersole

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital (TWEH) ~ Eastern Hospital (PYNEH)
[==E:= [ REABKIAIBITRER

(RBER)
Ruttonjee &
Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals (RHTSK)
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St John Hospital (SJH)

Cheshire Home,
R HW;r;gitglh(LxCHHoHr;g Chung Hom Kok (CCH)
BT EHRREEER
Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIFIR 2T E 12
Throughput fR# £
Number of beds K% B 3,031
Patient discharges* HifziE A B EB* 177,500
A&E attendances SIEZERP AKX 243,850
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERIFIR2 R AR (BRKRRTS) 792,008
General outpatient attendances ZERIFIR KR AKX 587,953
Full-time equivalent staff EEZRASEE 7,595.84

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths
* (TP & B R A LB R T A S
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HKEC appreciates dedication of staff on quality services amidst
manpower constraint. Continued recruitment of additional nurses,
frontline allied health professionals and patient care assistants
relieved workload of the frontline. To retain staff, HKEC organised a
series of staff engagement activities such as mentorship programme
for nurses. These human resource measures successfully lowered
attrition rate of all staff groups, except in the care-related supporting
staff group. To further improve communication and collaboration
with staff, the Cluster extended Crew Resource Management
training to target staff groups and offered scenario-based simulation

training.

BERBRRNE THEERBNRS - BMEEY
AFEM DRI - BEEEREEL -
ERERASRBEARKYIE - BEARN TE
B -DREST  BEENZERBEETED W
FEMET T IRABERIFHE - BREETHOASD
ERERBEBRY - BRXERY EE) ARE
T BBEARKRKRRIGE TR - BE—FMN
RERSBENGE BN ESHMEANERE
{LBEEREETE - WIRHRAREREBRIR



64

Head Office and Cluster Reports
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To cope with increasing demand in pressure areas, a series of

initiatives were implemented in HKEC hospitals. Stroke service
was enhanced in PYNEH with introduction of Transient Ischaemic
Attack clinic service in July 2013 and implementation of 24-hour
thrombolytic treatment for acute ischaemic stroke patients in March
2014. Renal service was expanded with Dialysis Day Centre and
Renal Ward established in the fourth quarter of 2013. As for mental
health services, patients in the psychiatric admission wards were
provided with better environment and recovery oriented treatment

programmes.

2,000 patients of RH benefited from the new Magnetic Resonance
Imaging service since July 2013. Three additional endoscopy
sessions per week introduced since October 2013 enhanced access
to service. HKEC also provided additional haemoglobin (HbA1c) tests
for diabetic patients and increased the capacity for anti-vascular

endothelial growth factor treatment.

The Cluster implemented various initiatives to sustain a robust
quality and safety system. Minimally invasive surgery technique
was adopted in hysterectomy surgeries among over 85% of suitable

gynecological patients to improve recovery. PYNEH performed
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20 cases under the cross cluster Robotic Assisted Surgery (RAS)
Collaboration Programme and contributed to staff training on RAS
in HA. Timely treatment for patients was ensured with 70 additional
predictive molecular tests provided for lung, breast and colorectal
cancers since the first quarter of 2014. Requisition for the radio
frequency identification (RFID) system in RH mortuary improved
accuracy of body identification and flow control. To sustain safety
culture, a number of Quality and Safety forums and training sessions
were organised, covering safe mobilisation of fragile patients,
procedural sedation safety, prevention of patient suicide, medication

safety, use of physical restraint, and patients’ nutritional status.

Resources were deployed to key enablers of corporate priority,
namely the roll-out of barcode top-up system for drug stock in all
wards in RH, enhancement of non-emergency ambulance transfer
service with waiting time shortened and punctuality improved, and

a 42-bed general medical ward set up in RH.

PYNEH's introduction of ECMO therapy to patients in Hong Kong
since 2009 was duly recognized by the judges of the Hospital
Management Asia (HMA). Safe Implementation of ECMO Service
through High Fidelity Simulation Training in Intensive Care Unit of
PYNEH was awarded Excellence Award (Bio Medical Equipment /
Facilities Improvement) in HMA in September 2013.
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Hong Kong West Cluster (HKWC)
BEHERKE (BESHEN)

TWGHSs Fung Yiu King Hospital (FYKH)

RE=—[RRFZWER
Queen Mary Hospital (QMH)

REER Tung Wah Hospital (TWH)
Tsan Yuk Hospital (TYH) RERR
BEER

-
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Duchess of Kent Children’s

Grantham Hospital (GH)

Hospital (DKCH) Maclehose Medical T
AOBRBAREARESMR Rehabilitation Centre (MMRC)
IR EE R
Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIFIR 2 FTE B 6
Throughput fR# £
Number of beds EKE B 3,142
Patient discharges* HPFEHmABB* 186,007
A&E attendances SIEZERP AKX 131,577
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERIFIR2 R AR (BRKRRTS) 844,024
General outpatient attendances ZERIFIR KR AKX 390,097
Full-time equivalent staff EEZRASEE 7,442.25

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths
* (TP & B R A LB R T A S
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HKWC continues close partnership with Li Ka Shing Faculty
of Medicine of The University of Hong Kong in supporting
undergraduate and postgraduate medical education and training,
research and development, as well as innovation in health care

technology and services.

To allay staff shortage, additional allied health professionals were
recruited to enhance multi-disciplinary care and rehabilitation
service. Patient care assistants were added to share out simple
clinical and clerical workload. Nursing manpower was also
strengthened to meet operational needs at acute settings and high

pressure areas.

Pressure areas of QMH were alleviated with four medical beds
designated for non-invasive ventilation service for patients with
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. The hospital also opened
one paediatric ICU bed and one High Dependency Unit (HDU)
bed to cope with demand for complex services from cross-border
eligible paediatric patients, added one paediatric cardiology ICU bed
for patients requiring cardiac surgery and Extracorporeal Membrane
Oxygenation (ECMO) treatment. Additional manpower was
allocated to improve service for adult patients with life-threatening
cardiopulmonary condition requiring Left Ventricular Assist
Devices. To reduce waiting time of adult and paediatric patients for
Haemopoietic Stem Cell Transplant (HSCT), the number of adult
HSCT beds was increased to 18 and one more HDU bed was added
for HSCT paediatric patients.
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To relieve overcrowding situation of eye specialist service in QMH
and to provide one-stop cataract service, planning and preparation
was in progress for relocating the Eye specialist outpatient clinic
to GH, which had its cataract operating theatre upgraded. To
meet growing service demand, 140 additional day and same-day
operations were conducted in TWH. The number would increase to

350 per year in subsequent years.

Hospital haemodialysis service was expanded to benefit four
more patients with end-stage renal disease. Recovery oriented
treatment programmes were provided to patients in the psychiatric
admission wards. Treatment of eye diseases for elderly patients was
strengthened by providing anti-vascular endothelial growth factor
treatment to 60 new age-related macular degeneration cases and

500 new cases of diabetic eye diseases.

To keep abreast of modern clinical practice, minimally invasive
surgery technique in hysterectomy surgeries was adopted for
suitable gynaecology patients. Aseptic dispensing facilities were
upgraded to meet environment control requirements in the aseptic
compounding process. Under the cross cluster Robotic Assisted
Surgery Collaboration Programme, cancer patients from different
clusters benefited through sharing of experience and technique

among surgeons.
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Responding to increasing burden of chronic disease, the
Tuberculosis and Chest Unit in GH provided Early Visit Programme
for chronic lung disease patients to reduce utilisation of accident
and emergency service and in-patient admission to QMH. Care of
patients with bronchiectasis and malignant pleural effusion was
improved with a Bronchiectasis Clinic set up in GH with the use of in-
dwelling intra-pleural catheter. Nurse-led chest pain clinic of Cardiac
Medical Unit in GH was enhanced to provide fast track assessment

and treatment for patients with coronary artery disease.

Laboratory services were enhanced, providing 30 additional
cytogenetic tests for blood cancer patients, 70 additional predictive
molecular tests for lung, breast and colorectal cancer patients, and
additional 3,750 haemoglobin tests for diabetes patients. In support
of organ transplant in Hong Kong, a laboratory-based transplant
coordination centre set up in QMH strengthened laboratory and

cell/tissue bank services.

QMH achieved breakthrough in liver transplant operations in 2013
where two patients received liver transplants from living donors of
different blood types. With the new technique, it is anticipated that

more live-donor liver transplants could be conducted in future.
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Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC)
NEDPEREE (NEPEWE)

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital (HKBH)
BB ER

Hong Kong Eye Hospital (HKEH)

é\
Kowloon Hospital (KH) BN

NEEEMR Y
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (QEH)
BRIMBER (FR)

M‘;go %Wﬁ

)
.

Hong Kong Red Cross Blood ___ Rehabaid Centre (RC)
Transfusion Services (BTS) — ERENRERPL
BB+ SHMARFEPIN

Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIFIR 2T B 6
Throughput fR# £

Number of beds EKE B 3,548
Patient discharges* HPFEHmABB* 202,593
A&E attendances SIEZERP AKX 195,280
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERPIZRY AR (BBKRYE) 1,016,873
General outpatient attendances ZERIFIR KR AKX 565,425
Full-time equivalent staff EEZRASEE 9,307.47

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths
* (TP & B R A LB R T A S
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To cope with aging population and service demand in the
community, KCC expanded service capacity by setting up an acute
stroke ward with 16 beds and added one ICU bed in QEH. Additional
operating theatre sessions were opened to allay the waiting list of
emergency surgery and cancer operations in QEH. 24-hour on site
consultation and emergency surgical support by specialist was
implemented in QEH for neonatal and paediatric surgery. HKEH
enhanced eye services for the elderly by providing anti-vascular
growth factor treatment for age-related macular degeneration cases
and provided specialist eye service for diabetic related eye diseases.
Further enhancement of psychiatric services in KH was completed
with the psychiatric admission ward setting improved and the
community case management service expanded to severe mental

illness patients living in the Sai Kung district.
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In pursuit of continuous quality improvement and patient safety,
BTS increased the production and supply of leucodepleted blood
products which enhanced blood transfusion safety and reduced the
risk of transfusion reaction. HKEH strengthened the supply of high
quality eye tissues and increase the supply of corneas of the Eye
Bank. New treatment options and modern technology were adopted
in QEH with minimally invasive surgery technique introduced
for over 60% hysterectomy surgeries for suitable gynaecological
patients. Deep Brain stimulation treatment was provided for nine
patients with advanced Parkinson’s diseases. Modernised diagnostic
services for cancer patients were introduced by expanding
cytogenetic services for blood cancer and predictive molecular

testing services for lung, breast and colorectal cancers in QEH.

To sustain and ensure a stable workforce, QEH provided education
and training for various healthcare professionals. QEH School of
General Nursing completed the intake of 100 student nurses in the
third quarter of 2013. Staff development and simulation training
programmes developed professionalism of healthcare workers. To
relieve pressures of the frontline, additional medical, nursing, allied
health professionals and patient care assistants were recruited to
meet operational needs at acute settings and high pressure areas. To
improve the non-emergency ambulance transfer service and waiting

time, additional drivers and attendants were recruited.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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KCC strives to maximise quality within limited resources through
hospital accreditation and various quality improvement measures
(‘WISER" Movement). To improve supply logistics and workflow, auto-
refill of medical consumables and linen items was implemented in
QEH and KH. A commissioning team was set up to coordinate the

Yaumatei Specialist Clinic re-provisioning project.

QEH celebrated Golden Jubilee in 2013 with a series of programmes
to engage staff and the community, including a walkathon cum
fun and games day, career fun day and a series of community
engagement programmes. A gala dinner was held on 10 September

2013 and a book named QEH - A People’s History was published.
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Kowloon East Cluster (KEC)
NERERBE (NEREWE)

Tseung Kwan O Hospital (TKOH)
United Christian Hospital (UCH) RERER

EBAMOBR (MESBk) |

—%:{V\_

Haven of Hope Hospital (HHH)

EREMR

Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIFIR 2 FTE B 8
Throughput fR# £

Number of beds % K& 2,487
Patient discharges* HFTim A BEB* 168,030
A&E attendances SIEZERP AKX 323,703
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERIFIR2 R AR (BRKRRTS) 766,997
General outpatient attendances ZERIFIRZRZ AR 921,662
Full-time equivalent staff ZE2RASEE 6,960.14

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths
* (TP & B R A LB R T A S
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KEC recruited additional nurses to meet operational needs at
acute settings and high pressure areas. More frontline allied health
professionals were recruited to enhance support for patients
requiring multi-disciplinary care and rehabilitation. Additional
patient care assistants were posted in allied health departments to

share out simple clinical tasks and relieve clerical workload.

Measures were implemented to better manage growing service
demand. 116 beds were added during the year to strengthen
inpatient service. To shorten the specialist waiting lists, KEC increased
new case quota with collaboration of clinical staff. GOPC episodic
quota was also increased by 6,700 attendances to meet growing
demand of the elderly. The ambulatory chemotherapy service and
haemodialysis service were also enhanced. The first autologous
transplant in KEC was successfully carried out in September 2013
at the newly established Autologous-Haemopoietic Stem Cell
Transplant Centre. The new pharmacy at the new ambulatory care

block in TKOH provided one-stop service for out-patient care.
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KEC enhanced community care for mental health patients by AE¥HBEHFEENHESRE  BECRIES
providing case management service to 700 patients with severe B - AERAEEN 700 BBREBHHFEERM
mental illness living in the Sai Kung district. The mental health  ERZERY - BHEERETC MR - B

service was also enhanced by providing recovery oriented treatment  JEBE AFBARMHE T ARAEIE S o
programmes for patients in psychiatric admission wards.

Service quality and safety were improved. KEC enhanced cancer HE@EBNAERBEEEREZE  BERSEEDEH
diagnostic services by providing 70 additional predictive molecular  BR#5 - B - B R KXBEFBARMEEEI 708
tests for lung, breast and colorectal cancers. Minimally invasive &89 75 - AR FBHAINNRE MBS ENE
surgery technique was adopted in hysterectomy surgeries for ~ BHEAETFZHIRFAM o i - EBHBHSER
suitable gynaecological patients. The Organization-Wide Survey for 742014 % 3 B JBFRETEE P 25 5T B HMAB TS -
hospital accreditation of UCH was successfully held in March 2014.
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To ensure adequate resources for service needs, the Cluster
coordinated service re-provisioning of Kwun Tong Jockey Club
GOPC. Capacity for patient support service was strengthened,
particularly in medical record, domestic service and cluster transport
service. The service of the out-sourced Shum Wan Laundry was
extended to HHH. KEC continued to expand the non-emergency
ambulance transfer service ambulance fleet with nine additional
drivers and attendants to shorten waiting time and improve

punctuality.

The expansion works of TKOH were completed in 2013, providing
better healthcare facilities and services to the public. The alteration
and improvement works of UCH commenced in March 2013 and
would be completed in 2014. The hospital decanting plan would
then be activated to tie in with the hospital’s expansion project.
Meanwhile, the expansion project of HHH was in a preparatory
stage. It was envisaged that the rehabilitation and convalescent

services in the Cluster would be further improved.
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Kowloon West Cluster (KWC)
NEETHEREE (NLETmEWE)

Yan Chai Hospital (YCH)
CAEk

%
S|

Princess Margaret Hospital (PMH)

Kwai Chung Hospital (KCH)

TWGHs Wong Tai

Sin Hospital (WTSH)
RE=—REAEMR

BEMER

EHER I

e
S~
<

Our Lady of
Maryknoll
Hospital (OLMH)
ESSE

oy

Kwong Wah
—— Hospital (KWH)

North Lantau Hospital (NLTH) Caritas Medical Centre (CMC) REER
ORISR BB

Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIPIR2 R FTEE 23

Throughput fR# £

Number of beds EKE B 6,629

Patient discharges* HBiim ABE* 370,586

A&E attendances SIEZERP AKX 595,085

Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERPIZRY AR (BBKRRYE) 1,634,502

General outpatient attendances ZERIFIR KR AKX 1,603,082

Full-time equivalent staff EEZBASEH 14,955.15

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths
* (TP & B R A LB R T A S
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KWC implemented a number of initiatives to manage the growing
service demand in order to sustain high service quality and patient

safety.

42 additional inpatient beds were introduced to meet mounting
service needs, including extra acute and convalescent beds for
coronary care and rehabilitation services respectively. Existing
general acute beds were designated for managing patients with
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. Service capacity was
broadened with extended hours of emergency percutaneous
coronary intervention, extra elective orthopaedic trauma operation,
and Family Medicine specialist outpatient clinic sessions. Mental
health service was enhanced by incorporating programmes of

focusing on recovery oriented treatment and case management.
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The new North Lantau Hospital commenced Phase 1 operation in 1t XUl |1 Bz A 2013 F 9 ARBISE —HE/F - B8
September 2013. Accident & Emergency service hours had doubled, PR SIEZE R H2014F 1 AER — 2R -
reaching 16 hours per day, since January 2014. A hospital-affiliated ~ X 16/)Ef o ZRHWHBEREF LSS EXKA
Community Health Centre providing general out-patient service to ~ BRBERIBHZBERIDRE -

Tung Chung residents was also in place.

The cross cluster Robotic Assisted Surgery Collaboration B {TIEH EEME SR FHiS/EsE
Programme, an extension of minimally invasive surgery technique ~ FIAMAIIRIEMBE BN ERIBAETFEY
on hysterectomy surgeries for suitable gynaecological patients, BRFflf > B AME - AER ABEBEIRMETER
was made possible through adoption of new technology with 2 FBI& » NEREDEANEE o I BEAR
enhanced cross cluster collaboration. Predictive molecular tests for B EIIBRATERBAEZYIESHARGMNE
lung, breast and colorectal cancers were made more available for ~HEREFERE OB RAERBALE ©
timely diagnosis and treatment. The Inpatient Medication Order

Entry system, first piloted at PMH to improve medication safety

together with upgraded dispensing facilities to achieve an aseptic

environment, were initiatives taken to sustain patient safety.

Dspita’t Accredjtaﬁun

Kick off Ceremony
January 3, 2014

b/ & |
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KWC continued on-going hospital accreditation exercise, meeting
requirements of Australian Council of Healthcare Standards. OLMH
was accredited in second quarter, while PMH having completed gap

analysis in fourth quarter of 2013.

To sustain a skilled, committed and highly competent workforce,
KWC continued to recruit and retain healthcare professionals,
improving respective professional grade development and career
progression, and enhancing training and development for various

disciplines.
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New Territories East Cluster (NTEC)

AR EBE (FTREREE)

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital (AHNH)
HESTVERBITRER

North District Hospital (NDH)
plA=E

Cheshire Home, Shatin (SCH)
WEBREERR

— Tai Po Hospital (TPH)
KEER

— O
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BN

R

Shatin Hospital (SH) Bradbury Hospice (BBH)
DB Prince of Wales Hospital (PWH) BEEREDL
BRHREER

Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIPIR2 R FTEE 10
Throughput fR# £

Number of beds # K& B 4,518

Patient discharges* HPFEHmABB* 262,448

394,271

A&E attendances SIEZE R AR

Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERIFIR2 R AR (BKRY) 1,099,139

General outpatient attendances ZERIFIZRZ AR

Full-time equivalent staff ZREZ2BASHE

941,614
10,557.1

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths
* (TP & B R A LB R T A S
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2013-14 was a busy year for NTEC with a lot of major initiatives
achieved and many important events worthy of celebration.

NTEC faced increasing service demand arising from the surge of
cross border population. To meet high demand, the observation
ward at NDH was converted to a 20-bed Emergency Medicine
ward and a 10-bed paediatric day ward was established at AHNH.
The bed capacity in PWH was built up with three additional High
Dependency Unit (HDU) beds, a Medical Ambulatory Care Centre
with 30 day beds, and an 8-bed ambulatory care unit at the Children
Cancer Centre.

To improve the management of specialist outpatient waiting lists,
more doctor sessions were added, including 4,200 new cases for Eye

Specialist Clinic.
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A stable workforce was maintained by NTEC with special concern
on the workload of frontline doctors, nurses and allied health
professionals. To relieve heavy workload, additional nurses were
recruited and frontline allied health professionals were added to
enhance support for patients requiring multi-disciplinary care and
rehabilitation. More patient care assistants were recruited for allied
health departments to share out simple clinical tasks and relieve
clerical workload. In addition, the auto-refill service of medical
consumables and linen items were implemented in all hospital
wards in PWH, SCH and SH to relieve workload of ward staff.

To avoid unnecessary admission, the Cluster successfully
implemented psychiatric consultation liaison service in Tai Po
district. It was then rolled out in Shatin district with 1,500 psychiatric
consultation liaison attendances at the A&E department in PWH for
patients with probable mental health problems. Community care for
mental health patients was enhanced through case management
service for 700 patients with severe mental illness residing in North
District. To enhance inpatient psychiatric service, Tai Po Hospital has
facilities improved so that recovery oriented treatment programmes
could be provided to patients in psychiatric admission wards, which

were renovated in February 2014.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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To strengthen patient safety and service quality, cancer diagnostic
services were enhanced in the Cluster through providing additional
cytogenetic tests for blood cancer and predictive molecular tests for

lung, breast and colorectal cancers.

2013-14 was a year of celebration in NTEC with PWH and NDH
granted full accreditation for four years through staff engagement
and teamwork. It was also a remarkable year for Tai Po Hospital,
signifying strong partnership with community stakeholders on its

15th anniversary.
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Caostle Peak
Hospital (CPH)

Q IVEBEERR

Q
%
>

Tuen Mun Hospital (TMH)
PSR

Pok Oi Hospital (POH)
BEER

‘ Siu Lam Hospital (SLH)

N

New Territories West Cluster (NTWC)
MARERBE (FROERE)

Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIFIR 2 FTEE 8
Throughput fR# £

Number of beds 5K B 4,085
Patient discharges* HPFEHmABB* 202,167
A&E attendances SIEZERP AKX 357,240
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERIFIR2 R AR (BRKRRTS) 887,340
General outpatient attendances ZERIFIR KR AKX 803,873
Full-time equivalent staff EEZRASEE 8,942.38

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths
* (TP & B R A LB R T A S
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With new development areas abound in the Tuen Mun and Yuen
Long districts, it is anticipated that the total population and service
demand will rise further. To better manage growing service demand,
initiatives were implemented during the year to increase service
capacity. A total of 118 additional beds were opened to cater for
more inpatient need of local residents, with 40 acute beds in TMH

and POH respectively and 38 convalescent beds in TMH.

Service for day patient and outpatient were improved. The Electro-
Medical Diagnostic Units (EDU) at TMH and POH were revamped
with a new Combined Endoscopy and EDU Centre opened at
TMH in January 2014, providing a total of 24 additional sessions
of endoscopy and electro-medical diagnostic services per week.
The capacity of renal replacement therapy was also expanded to
provide four more patients with hospital haemodialysis service.
Episodic quotas of 12,000 attendances were added to general
outpatient clinics to improve access to public primary care services
for target population groups. Anti-vascular endothelial growth
factor treatment was provided to 60 new age-related macular
degeneration cases and 500 new cases of diabetic related eye

diseases.
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The core value of ‘people FIRST' was enlivened with emphasis on
staff recruitment and training. Some of the programmes included
training for 100 new registered nurses at TMH nursing school,
recruitment of additional nurses to meet operational needs at acute
settings and high pressure areas, and recruitment of more frontline
allied health professionals to enhance support for patients requiring

multi-disciplinary care and rehabilitation.

NTWC accords high significance to service quality and safety. The
cancer diagnostic service was enhanced with more predictive
molecular tests for lung, breast, and colorectal cancers provided.
Minimally invasive surgery technique was introduced in
hysterectomy surgeries for suitable gynaecological patients. The
radio frequency identification system was further rolled out to POH

mortuary to ensure accurate body identification and flow control.

Tin Shui Wai Hospital, a new hospital of NTWC, is anticipated
to commission service in phases from 2016-17 onwards. A

commissioning team was set up in the year to coordinate planning

and preparatory works.
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Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements

BIUBHEOIREREBENIHERE

_E
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Independent Auditor's Report

To The Members of the Hospital Authority

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Hospital
Authority (“‘HA") and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
92 to 142, which comprise the consolidated and HA balance sheets as at 31
March 2014, and the consolidated statement of income and expenditure, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in net assets for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The Hospital Authority’s Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Hospital Authority is responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal control as the Hospital
Authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 10 of the Hospital Authority Ordinance and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

=
;

e
Y
2

B BT R

HEREERNE

AAZEET (T T8 (R M) EBESIBNENEE 108
BREER(BER) REWEME A TAME K26
WA MTEERE  LEAHBRRREN 2 —mE= A
S+ BMEAREERAEARRERERA L FELY
BARSTEER - BARERER - FARSRBRRAEG
AFAEZPEE - NP EBEHEAMRE R mHRRE
ah -

BREERMGESVBHRRARENER

BREERAARREEESMASRMNE LN HRE
ERRENEEVBREK - ASESUBBREHEENA
FHRER - KR BERBRET A M IFIMERI Y RH AR
- PABEAR A M B IMAR N AR EF R M B E R
AR -

RBENEE

EANEERREAMNETHZEEAVBEREFEHE
R WIEREREERIGAS HEERREZ B g R RN
BWE  FRUZIAREREEMB R - WA TSHARE
BARMEREMA LB ESREEEMEE -

BINEREE SR B ARROOE BB LA TR -
BRI B LRI TEERAR  TABRATE - SA
BRI S AN B ER R B EAEARRIL -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014



_
pwec

Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of HA and of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the

Group's surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

?V\\QM) oterhouialeo ot

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 September 2014
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BIUBHEOIREREBENIHERE

Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

At 31 March 2014

At 31 March 2013

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B = 201453 A31H 201343 H31H
BT T BT
Non-Current Assets FREIEE
Property, plant and equipment #13 - #88 R iR 5 4,130,741 3,873,742
Intangible assets M\ EE 6 479,286 509,493
Loans receivable FEHER 7 5,597 7,474
Placement with the Exchange Fund SMNEZE& K 8 6,000,000 6,000,000
L 10615624 10390709
Current Assets REIEE
Inventories & 9 1,368,619 1,251,914
Loans receivable FEUER 7 1,240 1,452
Accounts receivable FEUERFK 10 293,317 260,368
Other receivables Efth EUERER 1 156,302 100,782
Deposits and prepayments 1&& & FERTIE 12 252,091 278,466
Placement with the Exchange Fund SMEZE& K 8 408,438 124,158
Fixed income instruments EEASTLE 13 - 300,001
Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 14 13,369,608 8,886,683
RO EER A BB = 18 A M IRITER
Cash and cash equivalents & KR &EE 14 14,658,206 3,002,589
L 0507821 14206413
Current Liabilities REI& &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #3572 & & 48k 8 408,438 124,158
Creditors and accrued charges f&# A MFER & 15 9,026,349 6,664,372
Deposits received B Wiz& 16 172,454 129,242
L 9607241 6917772
NetCurrent Assets #B®¥E¥@ 20,900,580 ¢ 7288641
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities #&Erz88&® 31,516,204 17679350
Non-Current Liabilities JFRESE
Balance with Samaritan Fund #3357 s & & 4R 8 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities St T RIGEEMEE 17 199,687 195,720
Deferred income iRIEUzE 18 13,408,766 490,428
L 19608453 6686145
Net Assets ¥EFH 11,907,751 10,993,202
Capital subventions and capital donations B #BI Rk &5 19 4,610,027 4,383,235
Designated fund EEE2$ 20 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve WA & 2,220,355 1,532,598
Total Funds E&#%58 11,907,751 10,993,202

Dr KAM Pok Man H & XX {E+
Chairman
Finance Committee

MBREEER

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEE/R

At 31 March 2014

At 31 March 2013

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B = 20143 H31H 201343 H31H
BT T BT
Non-Current Assets FREIEE
Property, plant and equipment #13 - #88 R iR 5 4,130,741 3,873,742
Intangible assets M\ EE 6 477,925 508,627
Loans receivable FEHER 7 5,597 7474
Placement with the Exchange Fund SMNEZE& K 8 6,000,000 6,000,000
. 10614263 10389843
Current Assets REIEE
Inventories & 9 1,368,619 1,251,914
Loans receivable FEUER 7 1,240 1,452
Accounts receivable FEUERFK 10 293,317 260,368
Other receivables H i EUARTK 11 156,302 100,782
Deposits and prepayments & kT8 518 12 252,008 278,383
Placement with the Exchange Fund SMEZE& K 8 408,438 124,158
Fixed income instruments EEASTLE 13 - 300,001
Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 14 13,369,608 8,886,683
RO EER A BB = 18 A M IRITER
Cash and cash equivalents @& RE & EE 14 14,658,206 3,002,589
L 30507738 14206330
Current Liabilities REI& &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #3572 & & 48k 8 408,438 124,158
Creditors and accrued charges E#ARENE A 15 9,026,272 6,664,295
Deposits received B Wiz& 16 172,454 129,242
L 9,607,164 6917695
NetCurrent Assets #B®¥E¥@ 20,900,574 7,288,635
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities #&Erz88&® 31,514,837 17678478
Non-Current Liabilities JFRESE
Balance with Samaritan Fund #U3SH S K& 48R 8 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities St T RIGEEMEE 17 199,687 195,720
Deferred income iRIEUzE 18 13,408,766 490,428
. 19608453 6,686,148
Net Assets ¥EFH 11,906,384 10,992,330
Capital subventions and capital donations B #BI Rk &5 19 4,608,666 4,382,369
Designated fund EEE2$ 20 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve WA & 2,220,349 1,532,592
Total Funds E&#%58 11,906,384 10,992,330

Dr KAM Pok Man H & XX {E+
Chairman
Finance Committee

MBREEER

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these financial statements.

A

Dr LEUNG Pak Yin, JP 25 BE4+
Chief Executive

TR

% 98 = 142 BRI A IEHRERN—ZD ©
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BIUBHEOIREREBENIHERE

Consolidated Statement of Income and Expenditure

%:Al‘lﬁimn %—k%
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bifet BE2014F BZE2013F
3AMALEE 3ANBILEEE
BT T BT
Income WA
Recurrent Government subvention £ &K fT#E8h 43,717,781 41,346,479
Capital Government subvention for building projects 1,156,191 1,137,177
B TIRME A EBUT # B
Hospital/clinic fees and charges Bz, @& T E 21 3,181,876 2,950,732
Donations 18/ 98 387
Transfers from #EF#HE :
Designated donation fund #&EREES 18 182,755 149,044
Minor Works Projects Fund /NI T2IHE K& 18 207,583 -
Capital subventions &7 19 787,916 674,909
Capital donations E A1 19 127,508 120,087
Investment income & & Yz 195,003 176,955
Other income E iz 697,526 598,070
R 50,254,237 . 47,153,840
Expenditure X
Staff costs B TAA 22 (34,459,087) (32,289,722)
Drugs %4 (4,940,504) (4,478,851)
Medical supplies and equipment &Y 5 K& # (2,118,174) (1,999,294)
Utilities charges AR (1,131,095) (1,047,639)
Repairs and maintenance #{&&{R%&E (1,520,377) (1,384 230)
Building projects funded by the Government 2(g)(ii) (1,363,774) (11 77)
HBURT R R R A2 & K (iii)
Operating lease expenses &8 &M (131,409) (114,463)
Depreciation and amortisation #78 5 # 4 5& K6 (909,338) (768,537)
Other operating expenses Hth & & % 23 (3,015,447) (2,836,097)
(49,589,205) (46,056,010)
Surplus for the year FRE 665,032 1,097,830

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEEERER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ks BZ2014F BZE 20134
3A31ALEE 3A3BLEEE
BT T BT
Surplus for the year FRZER 665,032 1,097,830
Other comprehensive income Hft2HEUz
[tems that will be reclassified subsequently to income or expenditure:
Hig@snBARARZ HMNIAR :
- Additions to capital subventions and capital donations 19 1,142,216 1,283,204
NGRS Rl
— Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure 19 (915,424) (794,996)
HRTGREKEE
Item that will not be reclassified to income or expenditure:
TEEFHERBAS I HHIER
— Remeasurement of death liability 17 22,725 -
TR EAENE
Total comprehensive income for the year FA2HKHEAH 914,549 1,586,038

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 2 98 & 142 BWI R AL E M IEIREA —ZH o

BREEPB/ER 2013-204 95



Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements
BUKBORERCBENEHRE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERSRBEK

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ks BZ2014F BZE 20134
3AMBLEE 3A3BLEEE
BT T BB
Net cash generated from operating activities 26 2,627,854 1,546,289
eEEBFAEReFEHE
Investing activities & &E®)
Investment income received BYWH%E iz 195,003 176,955
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 5 (980,603) (1,106,447)
BEWE  WENRE
Purchases of intangible assets ¥4 & S & & 6 (161,613) (176,757)
Net increase in bank deposits with original maturity over (4,482,925) (4,169,268)
three months
JRPREIHA B B R =1 A BRI 71 SR R RIS N
Net decrease in fixed income instruments 300,001 1,730,993
Bl A ST ERFERR D
Net cash used in investing activities (5,130,137) (3,544,524)
REBRSARARSFE
Net cash outflow before financing activities (2,502,283) (1,998,235)
BEMoBREFERL
Financing activities Bl& &S
Deferred income — Minor Works Projects Fund 18 13,015,684 -
BiEW - MU TRIBRES
Capital subventions & 748 19 1,015,202 1,072,126
Capital donations E A1 19 127,014 211,078
Net cash generated from financing activities 14,157,900 1,283,204
BMERSFAGZRSFE
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11,655,617 (715,031)
ReRARSFE2EM CRL)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,002,589 3,717,620
FUzRekREEE
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year F#& 2R & RIRGEHE 14 14,658,206 3,002,589

Note: The cash flow for the placement with the Exchange Fund on behalf of & : REIBAEESFRINERSHNTFR B SREE LM
the Samaritan Fund was netted off with the outstanding balance with BRAHISF R E SRS - SFALHERMT T 8 1R EE -
the Samaritan Fund and the detailed arrangement is disclosed in note 8.

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 2 98 & 142 BWI R AL E M IEIREA —ZH o
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Consolidoted Statement of Changes in Net Assets

EREEEHHRK
Capital
subventions
and capital
donations
[Note 19]
_ HK$'000 Designated Revenue
B AR fund reserve Total
RERBE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(#1319 RS AR s
%%?E BT T BT T BT
1 April 2012 2 R= —FpA—H 3,895,027 5,077,369 434,768 9/407,164
Total comprehenswe income for the year 488,208 - 1,097,830 1,586,038
FREER=ETE
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=%=HA=+—H 4,383,235 5,077,369 1,532,598 10,993,202
Total comprehensive income for the year 226,792 - 687,757 914,549
FREEKSERE
At31 March 2014 R=ZF—WE=A=+—H 4,610,027 5,077,369 2,220,355 11,907,751

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BUMEARERCBENYHERE

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(@)

The Hospital Authority

Background

The Hospital Authority (‘HA") and its subsidiaries are collectively referred
to as the “Group” in the consolidated financial statements. HA is a
statutory body established in Hong Kong on 1 December 1990 under
the Hospital Authority Ordinance (Cap.113). The Hospital Authority
Ordinance provides HA with the powers to manage and control the
delivery of public hospital services in Hong Kong. Under the Hospital
Authority Ordinance, HA is responsible amongst other matters for the
following:

advising the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) of the needs of the public for hospital
services and of the resources required to meet those needs;

managing and developing the public hospital system;

recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health appropriate
policies on fees for the use of hospital services by the public;

establishing public hospitals; and

promoting, assisting and taking part in education and training of HA
staff and research relating to hospital services.

Pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Hospital Authority Ordinance, an agreement
was entered into between the Government and HA on 3 June 2011
("Agreement”), under which the Government and HA agreed that HA shall
be responsible for managing and controlling the government lands and
the hospitals, clinics, facilities, buildings and premises established thereon
(as set out in Annex A of the Agreement and referred to as “Properties”), as
well as the facilities and amenities (as set out in Annex B of the Agreement)
that may be provided on the Properties. The ownership of the Properties
continues to be held by the Government.

HA has also entered into agreements with the individual governing bodies
of the ex-subvented hospitals which allowed HA to assume ownership
of some operating assets as at 1 December 1991 and to manage and
control other assets, the ownership of which remains with the individual
governing bodies.

As a result, HA has assumed responsibility for the management of the
public hospital operations since 1T December 1991. Also, all operating and
capital commitments outstanding as at 1 December 1991 were assumed
by HA, except for the capital works projects funded under the Capital Works
Reserve Fund of the Government.

As part of the Government’s healthcare reform plan, HA has taken over
the management and operation of all general outpatient clinics (‘GOPCs")
from the Department of Health by July 2003. Under the arrangement, the
title and ownership in respect of the related operating assets of the GOPCs
were retrospectively transferred to HA in July 2003 after receiving formal
approval from the Government in June 2006. These assets were transferred
at nil value.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

1'

(@)

The Hospital Authority (Continued)

Background (Continued)

In order to promote the development and research of Chinese medicine
in Hong Kong, HA's subsidiary, HACM Limited entered into agreements
with 10 non-governmental organisations (“NGOs") in collaboration with
certain universities in Hong Kong to operate 18 Chinese Medicine
Centres for Training and Research (“CMCTRs"). Under the agreements
with the NGOs, HACM Limited has provided an annual subvention to the
NGOs for operating CMCTRs in Hong Kong. These NGO clinics have
provided Chinese medicine outpatient services including the
prescription of Chinese herbal medicine and related services. For the
financial year ended 31 March 2014, the subvention paid to these NGOs
amounted to HK$46,733,000 (2013: HK$28,185,000).

In order to support the Government-led electronic health record (‘eHR")
programme, which is a 10 year programme and an essential part of the
healthcare reform, HA has been engaged to serve as the technical
agency to the Government, leveraging its experience and know-how in
the Clinical Management System (“CMS”). With this role, HA undertakes
multiple streams of eHR related projects, which are funded by
the recurrent subvention and other designated funding
from the Government. During the financial year ended 31 March 2014
HA recognised HK$283,816,000 (2013: HK$210,131,000) as other
income to match with the expenditure incurred in relation to the eHR
related projects.

On 19 October 2011, HA set up a subsidiary, eHR HK Limited, to act as a
custodian to hold, maintain and license the intellectual property rights
and assets related to the eHR programme.

Hospitals and other institutions

At 31 March 2014, HA had under its management and control the following
hospitals, charitable trusts and institutions:

Hospitals:
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
Bradbury Hospice
Caritas Medical Centre
Castle Peak Hospital
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
Cheshire Home, Shatin
The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay
Grantham Hospital
Haven of Hope Hospital
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital
Hong Kong Eye Hospital
Kowloon Hospital
Kwai Chung Hospital
Kwong Wah Hospital
MaclLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre
North District Hospital
North Lantau Hospital
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
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BIUBHEOIREREBENIHERE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

1. The Hospital Authority (Continued)

(b) Hospitals and other institutions (Continued)

Hospitals (Continued):
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
Pok Oi Hospital
Prince of Wales Hospital
Princess Margaret Hospital
Queen Elizabeth Hospital
Queen Mary Hospital
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals
Shatin Hospital
Siu Lam Hospital
St. John Hospital
Tai Po Hospital
Tsan Yuk Hospital
Tseung Kwan O Hospital
Tuen Mun Hospital
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
Tung Wah Hospital
United Christian Hospital
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital
Yan Chai Hospital

Charitable Trusts:
North District Hospital Charitable Foundation
Prince of Wales Hospital Charitable Foundation
The Hong Kong Eye Hospital Charitable Trust
The Hospital Authority Charitable Foundation
The Hospital Authority New Territories West Cluster Hospitals
Charitable Trust
The Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Charitable Trust
The Princess Margaret Hospital Charitable Trust
The Queen Elizabeth Hospital Charitable Trust

Other Institutions:
eHR HK Limited
HACare (ceased operation of the long stay care home on 31
December 2004 and has remained inactive thereafter)
HACM Limited
Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
Rehabaid Centre
Specialist outpatient clinics
General outpatient clinics
Other clinics and associated units

(©) Principal office

The address of the principal office of HA is Hospital Authority Building,
1478 Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

2.

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”") as appropriate to
Government subvented and not-for-profit organisations. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets which are stated at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying HA's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group include the income and
expenditure of the Head Office, subsidiaries, all Hospitals, Charitable
Trusts, Specialist Outpatient Clinics, General Outpatient Clinics and
other institutions under its management and control made up to
31 March 2014

The financial statements reflect the recorded book values of those assets
owned and the liabilities assumed by the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date that control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. The accounting policies of the
subsidiaries are consistent with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.
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Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements

BIUBHEOIREREBENIHERE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.

(c) Subsidiaries (Continued) (@)

At 31 March 2014, the principal subsidiaries of HA comprise:

B FRERIRMTEE )
FESFHEE @

B B RS ()

EZZT—ME=A=+—H  BERNEZZEMBEE
V=

Effective percentage

Place of directly held by the
incorporation/ Group

Name Principal activities operation EEEEFENEN

=L FEXK A B

HACM Limited To steer the development and delivery of ~ Hong Kong 100

(limited by guarantee) Chinese medicine services B

B2 RhBEREER AR MBI R EREEREME

(ERARRAF)

eHR HK Limited To act as a custodian to hold, maintain Hong Kong 100

(limited by guarantee) and license the intellectual property rights & 74

(ERABRAT) and assets related to eHR programme

(d) Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs

ERREA HH RELRFFBEHE
FRECTHE BRSO MBEER
BE

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs, including
interpretations, amendments or improvements to the existing standards,
which become effective in the current period. The following new or
revised standards and amendments to standards which are effective for
the Group's financial year beginning 1 April 2013 are relevant to the Group:

HKAS 1 (@amendment)

Presentation of Financial Statements —

HKAS 19 (revised)
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 13

Presentation of [tems of

Other Comprehensive Income
Employee Benefits
Consolidated Financial Statements
Fair Value Measurement

2RI

B EAS

(d) AR EIETAKEBMBRE

BRI R GRM T ZEEU B AR K
BT EEMBREEL)  BEHEREERNR
B ERTHERR ° A TRHTR] R RT R A RIERT AT
SE T =FMA - BRBZHBFELEY  WE

() The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present the items of
other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to income
or expenditure in the future if certain conditions are met separately
from those that would never be reclassified to income or
expenditure. The Group's presentation of other comprehensive
income has been modified accordingly.

(i) HKAS 19 (revised) introduces a number of amendments to the
accounting for defined benefit plans. Amongst them, all actuarial
gains and losses relating to defined benefit schemes are required to
be recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. Since
death benefits under the death and disability scheme are
accounted for as post-employment defined benefits, the
accounting policy for valuation of death benefit costs has been
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

2.

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs (Continued)

changed, for which the corridor method was previously adopted.
The application of the requirements of HKAS 19 (revised) did not
have a material effect on the Group’s comparative financial
statements. Therefore, no restatements are necessary on application
of HKAS 19 (revised).

(i) HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model to determine whether
an investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether the
entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use
its power to affect the amount of those returns. Accordingly, HA,
acting as a guardian over the charitable trusts established by the
HA Board, has consolidated the financial results of these charitable
trusts into the Group’s financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2014. The application of the requirements of
HKFRS 10 did not have a material effect on the Group's comparative
financial statements. Therefore, no restatements are necessary on
application of HKFRS 10.

(iv) HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with a
single source of fair value measurement guidance. It also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value measurements
for both financial and non-financial instruments. The adoption of
HKFRS 13 does not have any material impact on the Group's
financial statements and the relevant disclosure for financial assets
is included in note 8.

The HKICPA has also issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs which are
effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 April 2014. The
Group has not early adopted these new/revised HKFRSs in the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2014. The Group is in
the process of making an assessment but is not yet in a position to
quantify the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs on its results of
operations and financial position.

Recognition of income

Subventions for recurrent expenditure are recognised on an accruals
basis, except for those subventions for designated programs or capital
items that are recognised when the related expenditure is incurred as set
out in note 2(r).

Hospital/clinic fees and charges are recognised when services are
provided.

Transfers from the designated donation fund and capital donations are
recognised as set out in note 2(f).

Transfers from the capital subventions and Minor Works Projects Fund
are recognised as set out in note 2(r).

BIFF R RMIEE )

2.
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BUKBORERCBENEHRE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

2.

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Recognition of income (Continued)

Investment income from fixed income instruments is recognised as set
out in note 2(k).

Investment income from bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Donations

0]

(i)

Donated assets

Properties, computer software and systems donated to the Group
each with a value below HK$250,000 each and other donated
assets with a value below HK$100,000 each are recorded as income
and expenditure in the year of receipt of the assets.

Properties, computer software and systems donated to the Group
each with a value of HK$250,000 or above and other donated assets
each with a value of HK$100,000 or above are capitalised on receipt
of assets according to the policy set out in note 2(g)(i) and note 2(i).
The amount of the donated assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in total funds under
capital donations. Each year, an amount equal to the depreciation
or amortisation charge for these assets and the net book value of
assets disposed of is transferred from capital donations to the
statement of income and expenditure.

Cash donations

Cash donations for specific use as prescribed by the donor are
accounted for in the designated donation fund. When the fund is
utilised and spent for expenditure not meeting the capitalisation
policy as set out in note 2(g)(i) or note 2(j), they are accounted for
as expenditure of the designated donation fund. Cash donations
that are spent on property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets as set out in note 2(g)(iv) and note 2(i) respectively are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
total funds under capital donations, and the corresponding
amounts are capitalised as property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets respectively. Each year, an amount equal to the
depreciation or amortisation charge for these assets and the net
book value of assets disposed of is transferred from capital
donations to the statement of income and expenditure.

Non-designated donations for general operating purposes are
recorded as donations in the statement of income and expenditure
upon receipt of cash.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

2.

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Capitalisation of property, plant and equipment

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Effective from 1 December 1991, the following categories of assets
which give rise to economic benefits have been capitalised:

Building projects costing HK$250,000 or more; and
All other assets costing HK$ 100,000 or more on an individual basis.

The accounting policy for depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is set out in note 2(h).

For expenditure on subsequent improvement to properties the
ownership of which has not been vested with HA, the amount
spent is capitalised only if the improvement does not form part of
the properties and can be re-used by HA when re-located.
Otherwise, the expenditure is charged to the statement of income
and expenditure in the year as incurred.

For properties which are funded by the Government through HA
but are owned by an ex-subvented governing body, the associated
expenditure is charged to the statement of income and
expenditure in the year as incurred. Under the agreements with ex-
subvented governing bodies, the ownership of building projects,
although funded by the Government through HA, is vested with
the governing bodies.

Expenditure on furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles and
computer hardware is capitalised (subject to the minimum
expenditure limits set out in note 2(g)(i) above) and the
corresponding amounts are recognised under capital subventions
and capital donations for capital expenditure funded by the
Government and donations respectively.

(v)  Property, plant and equipment transferred from the hospitals to HA
at 1 December 1991 was recorded at nil value.
Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Additions represent new or replacement
of specific components of an asset. An asset’s carrying value is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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BIUBHEOIREREBENIHERE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

BAFRERIMIEE @)

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2. FEEHEBXR®W
(h) Depreciation (Continued) (h HEm®
The historical cost of assets acquired and the value of donated assets SEE-NMN—F+tZA—BERFRESHNEENRE
received by the Group since 1 December 1991 are depreciated using the PRASNBREENEE  —RIREEMNTEIFERAFH
straight-line method over the expected useful lives of the assets NEEAERENT :
as follows:
Leasehold improvements Over the life of the lease to which the improvement relates
HEMEEE RIEME 2 F 5
Buildings 20 - 50 years F
EEY
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 years &
XA BEERERREH
Motor vehicles 5-7 years
AE
Computer equipment 3-6years F
B RAE
The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and adjusted, if MERE  BENHREERAIERFHSERSH
appropriate, at each reporting date. {ERRRS RIEFT »
The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is BEXESTHFERAMEEZRBUALEEREE
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the ZEEEEAEZEBTABZEERA -
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of
income and expenditure.
Capital expenditure in progress is not depreciated until the asset is RERMEARZEEEMARNTRINE -
placed into commission.
() Intangible assets () WEEE

Computer software and systems including related development costs
costing HK$250,000 or more each, which give rise to economic benefits
are capitalised as intangible assets. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and impairment and are amortised on a
straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of one to three years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

2.

()

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

HA has designated the placement with the Exchange Fund as a “financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss” HA determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition, and such classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs are expensed to the statement of income
and expenditure. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired or have been transferred and HA has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value.

Fixed income instruments

Fixed income instruments are classified as held-to-maturity investments
on the basis that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
the investments to maturity.

Fixed income instruments are recognised on a trade-date basis and
stated at amortised cost, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect
irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of any discount or
premium on the acquisition of fixed income instruments is aggregated
with other investment income receivable over the term of the instrument
using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that fixed
income instruments are impaired at each reporting date. The amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the fixed income instruments and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the fixed income instruments is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of income and expenditure.

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise drugs, other medical and general
consumable stores, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Where
applicable, provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving items.
Inventories are stated net of such provision in the balance sheet. Net
realisable value is determined with reference to the replacement cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

2.

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of accounts
receivable is established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the carrying amount of the accounts receivable
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the accounts
receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised as an expense in the statement of
income and expenditure. Decrease in the previously recognised
impairment loss shall be reversed by adjusting the allowance account.
When an accounts receivable is uncollectible and eventually written off,
the respective uncollectible amount is offset against the allowance
account for accounts receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the current year's expense in
the statement of income and expenditure.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and
cash deposits with original maturity within three months.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects
a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

2.

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. A contingent liability is a possible
obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Employee benefits

0]

(if)

(iff)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Group's defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are dealt with as
payments to defined contribution plans where the Group's
obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan. The retirement
benefit costs charged in the statement of income and expenditure
represent the contributions payable in respect of the current year
to the Group's defined contribution retirement benefit plan and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

Termination benefits costs

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s
employment is terminated before the normal retirement age or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits costs
when there is an obligation to make such payments without
possibility of withdrawal.

Death and disability benefits costs

The cost of the Group's obligations in respect of death and disability
benefits provided to employees is recognised as staff costs in the
statement of income and expenditure with reference to annual
actuarial valuations performed by an independent qualified actuary.

The death benefits for eligible employees are accounted for as post
employment defined benefits. Remeasurement of death liability
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income.
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BIUBHEOIREREBENIHERE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)
2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(@ Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Death and disability benefits costs (Continued)

The disability benefits are accounted for as other long-term
employee benefits. Remeasurement of disability liability arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised immediately in the statement of income and
expenditure.

Further details of the death and disability liabilities are set out in
note 17.

(iv) Other employee benefits costs

Other employee benefits such as annual leave and contract gratuity
are accounted for as they accrue.

(N Government subvention

Subvention grants approved for the year other than the following are
classified as recurrent subvention income.

Government grants for building projects are classified and recognised as
capital subvention income when the amount is spent on expenditure
which does not meet the capitalisation policy of property, plant and
equipment as set out in notes 2(g)(i), 2(g)(ii) and 2(qg)(iii).

The one-off grant received from the Government for minor works
projects (under Subhead SH8083MM) together with the related
investment income are recognised as deferred income — Minor Works
Project Fund. Each year, the amount spent on the minor works projects is
transferred from deferred income to the statement of income and
expenditure. Further details of the deferred income — Minor Works
Projects Fund are set out in note 18(b).

Government subventions that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in note 2(g)(iv) and note 2(i)
respectively are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in total funds under capital subventions, and the
corresponding amounts are capitalised as property, plant and equipment
or intangible assets respectively. This includes capital expenditure on
furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles, computer hardware,
software and systems. Each year, an amount equal to the depreciation or
amortisation charge for these assets and net book value of assets
disposed of is transferred from capital subventions to the statement of
income and expenditure.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

2.

(s)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as expenses in the statement of income
and expenditure on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Group’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains and
losses are dealt with in the statement of income and expenditure.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating decisions, or
vice versa. Related parties also include key management personnel
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group.

For the purpose of these financial statements, transactions between the
Group and Government departments, agencies or Government
controlled entities, other than those transactions that arise in the normal
dealings between the Government and the Group, are considered to be
related party transactions.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities of providing healthcare services to patients, the
administration of drugs, the employment of a large workforce and the
investment activities are primary areas of financial risks being mitigated
by the Group's financial risk management process. The Group’s
underlying principles of financial risk management are to transfer the
cost of financial risks of significant level through insurance with a
diversity of insurers, to self insure for the operational risks and to comply
with regulatory insurance requirements as an employer and owner of a
motor fleet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

3.

(@)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

With regard to investments, in accordance with the Group's policies and
guidelines, the primary objectives are to meet liquidity requirements, to
protect capital and to provide a reasonable return. The investment
portfolio (“Portfolio”) as at 31 March 2014 consisted of bank deposits and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Based on the risk
control measures as summarised below, the risk of default by the
counterparties is considered minimal and the Portfolio has no significant
concentration of credit risk. Besides, the Group has no significant
currency risk because substantially all assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group’s functional and
presentation currency. The Group manages its cash flow requirements
and risk as disclosed in note 3(c).

(i)  Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is the risk that counterparties may default on
its bank deposits and placement with the Exchange Fund.

Bank deposits are placed with the Group's approved banks which
are of investment grade as determined by Standard and Poor’s and
Moody's. For bank deposits, banks must meet the minimum credit
rating not lower than Moody's Baa3 or equivalent.

The placement with the Exchange Fund is entered into between
HA and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA") for the
HK$6,000,000,000 not immediately required by the Samaritan Fund
(note 8). It is expected that the HKMA can fulfill its contractual
obligations to HA in respect of the placement.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Portfolio’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing cash at
bank and bank deposits. Cash at bank, which earns interest at
variable rates, gives rise to cash flow interest rate risk. Fixed rate
bank deposits expose the Portfolio to fair value interest rate risk.
Sensitivity analyses have been performed by the Group with regard
to interest rate risk as at 31 March 2014. If interest rates had been
increased or decreased by 50 basis points, which represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
those rates, and all other variables were held constant, the effect on
the Group's surplus and net assets is insignificant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

3.

(@)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iif)

Currency risk

The Group's financial assets and liabilities are substantially
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group’s functional and
presentation currency, and hence will not be exposed to significant
currency risk.

Fair values estimation

0]

Financial assets carried at fair values

The Group's financial instruments that are measured at fair value are
categorised by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
These instruments are included in level 1. None of the instruments
of the Group is included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. None of the
instruments of the Group is included in level 2.
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BIUBHEOIREREBENIHERE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Fair values estimation (Continued)
(i) Financial assets carried at fair values (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

— Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

— The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the reporting
date, with the resulting value discounted back to present
value.

— Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are
used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

The placement with the Exchange Fund is included in level 3. The
following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the
financial years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013:

BAFRERIMIEE @)
3. IXERERE @)
b) AAEBEM @
() BAREEDIEM IS EE (F)

W—IAS ZIAE R AN IR IR AT B A T 5 8
B OELTABRE=ZE -

RAGESRTANSEGRERMNERE

|
o

FAARE T AN TS HRERRZHHRE

— ZEHINESNNAREBEERREANE
HEXEF - MASEENE=RE

—  HAMEMW - Sl ERSRAN - BIAE
EEBERMIANAREE -

NEXSTRBRE=E - TREJIBRE-T
~ME=A=+-BILER=B-—=£=7
=t—AILFEE=ETANS

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

BZ2014F BZE 20134

3A31ALEE 3A3HLEEE

BT T BT T

At beginning of year R #) 6,124,158 -

Addition &0 - 6,000,000

Interest from placement with the Exchange Fund 284,280 124,158
HNEE B 17 B A

Atend of year RF#X 6,408,438 6,124,158

(i) Financial assets not reported at fair values

The fair values of fixed income instruments (including Hong Kong
dollar bonds and Exchange Fund notes) at the reporting date were
provided by the banks from whom the instruments were
purchased. These instruments were summarised below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Fair values estimation (Continued)

(i) Financial assets not reported at fair values (Continued)

The Group and HA

BAFRERIMIEE @)
3. B¥RARERE @)

b) DRBEMT &

(i) FEARAREBEZIINFBEE (B

SEREBER
Carrying Value Fair Value
IREEE AREE
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013 At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
2014%3 A31H 201343 A31H 201463 A31H 201343 A31H
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Fixed income instruments - 300,001 - 300,165

EEARTLA

The carrying values of other financial assets and liabilities such as
cash and bank balances, loans receivable, accounts receivable and
trade payables approximate their fair values and accordingly, no
disclosure of fair values for these items is presented.

(© Capital management

Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance, the resources of the Group
consist of the following:

(i) Allmoney paid by the Government to HA and appropriated for that
purpose by the Legislative Council and otherwise provided to HA
by the Government; and

(i) All other money and property, including gifts, donations, fees, rent,
interest and accumulations of income received by HA.

In this regard, the capital of the Group comprises revenue reserve,
designated fund, capital subventions, capital donations and
deferred income as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. At 31
March 2014, the capital of the Group was HK$25,316,517,000 (2013:
HK$11,483,630,000).
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BEZ -
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25316,517,00070 ( = & — = 4 : % % 11,483,630,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

3.

©

Financial risk management (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group's objective for managing capital is to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern to ensure sustainability of the
public health care system. As in previous years, the Group undertook a
budget planning process to work out a viable budget plan for the
financial year ended 31 March 2014. The annual budget is compiled by
assessing the total resources required for HA to meet its needs on
baseline services, pressure areas, as well as programmes approved for the
year and other initiatives incorporated in the HA annual plan. The
projected requirement has been mapped against the funding indicated
by the Government together with other sources of income, including
medical and non-medical fee income and alternative sources of income.
The Group targeted to contain the overall expenditure within the total
funding available. The Group will also make every endeavour to meet the
rising service demand and ensure the best use of public resources. To
enhance accountability for the appropriate use of resources, key
performance indicators have been developed to measure performance
of hospitals/clusters and monthly financial report on HA and clusters’
performance has been reviewed to monitor the spending level against
budget on an ongoing basis.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to
exercise significant judgments in the selection and application of
accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions. The
following is a review of the more significant accounting policies that are
impacted by judgments and uncertainties and for which different
amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or using
different assumptions.

Provision for doctors'and non-doctors' claims

165 doctors had filed claims against HA for alleged failure to grant rest
days, statutory holidays, public holidays and overtime worked over a
period going back to 1996 in High Court Action No. 1924 of 2002. Similar
claims were lodged by other doctors in the Labour Tribunal between
2006 and 2012 and they were adjourned pending assessment of the
High Court claim.

HA paid out HK$525,434,000 during the financial year ended 31 March
2007 and HK$222,640,000 between the financial years ended 31 March
2011 and 31 March 2013 under two settlement packages implemented
in 2006 and 2010 respectively.

Following the Court of Final Appeal ruling in October 2009 and the
assessment of damages for the three lead plaintiffs in High Court Action
No. 1924 of 2002 in June 2012, damages in respect of the three lead
plaintiffs were paid in September 2012. HA has since settled over 90%
of remaining claims in High Court Action No. 1924 of 2002 and the
Labour Tribunal.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014

BAFRERIMIEE @)

3.

()

B 7% [ Bz
BARE (#)

SEEAEERNERRRESENE N  BEERE
B EERE PR A BRI IR R ) - M
—EE - BBERESERENEE T -NF=A
=+ —H I EREEHIETRENAE B - EHIFTF
B BIEER - RREPTESHBRATES &EW&A
R - BRREELIFEREMAME MR WA -

EH (#)

B RATHIRET B EIRF L - LA%E%%%%&T?J%EWW
RMRBFE - URIEITEE B TR A M it

THE REMER - SENBETEERETE - BB
BRI SIN BN SFRBER - YRNA BIEN
RETHR  BRAKERABEMN - RINRERER
HROBEENE - REGIET T ETERBUEER - UEEE
B BENKE - TEHRREERRBERER

S AR - BAEEEEERXER -
BASES R (et R A

EHI RIS IRAR - BEEER A B AE R
FEBBEREALIE - BEERESRER AT

FiIR— R ZEREAHE MR EERRZEN
REEZSHEER - WERATR - KA TRNHRR
et eiSH T RA 2 MEEE -

BENMOFBERBME CBE

s BERBER-—NNAFERERTKER
EERY - AR NER TEHEMREERHPR

BE S5 AREGRS A 19242002 - Hih B AT
TETARE_T - —FHMEHEERHERENE
LR SERHRCEEEE  SFaRYRGHN
A o

é*ﬂ%ﬁ_gi&\i&_q —TF Stk L AR

R REBEEZTTLF=RA=1+—HIEZ2HBFE
ﬁHT%MQ&wmwm FREBE-_T——F=A
=t HLEE—T-—=FZA=+—HILZHBEE
HF AT % 222,640,000 7T °

BEBERBERE_STNFTANAS  URSFE
RR-_E——FANAU=ZETBREANRETRE
(BE AR EHRET19242002) » BERN_-_T——
FNAR=ZZEBREAIMTEE - Zl - S
AT SR AR5 1924-2002 R A1 B BHEREMNB T
HER - BiBoon BT EERNMELZE -
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4.

(@)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

(Continued)

Provision for doctors’and non-doctors' claims (Continued)

Meanwhile, HK$47,568,000 and HK$ 12,064,000 were paid by HA during
the financial year ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 respectively
under the call payment offer to eligible non-doctors approved by the HA
Board. Various review requests have further been re-examined and
revised offers were issued to eligible staff/leavers in February 2014 and
the total settlement amount is estimated to be HK$3,500,000.

During the current year, a number of non-doctors had filed claims
against HA in the Labour Tribunal for rest days, statutory and public
holidays or claims under the call payment offer. These claims were
adjourned by the Labour Tribunal.

Presently, uncertainties remain in relation to the eventual outcome of the
outstanding claims and/or potential claims. A provision of
HK$129,342,000 (2013: HK$192,420,000) has been made in the financial
statements as at 31 March 2014, representing management’s best
estimates after making reference to the court rulings and an
independent qualified actuary.

Provision for medical malpractice claims

The Group co-insures and retains a designated sum for each medical
malpractice claim. For those professional liability claims in excess of the
retained sum, the claims will be borne by the insurer. In view of the
complex nature and long development period of the claims, a Claims
Review Panel consisting of the participating medical malpractice
insurers, the external panel law firms appointed by the insurers and HA's
in-house experts review the status of potential and active claims semi-
annually and assess the provision required on each significant case. An
independent qualified actuary also assists the Group on the assessment
of the exposure of other reported cases based on historical development
trend of the claims settlement. With reference to the assessments and
the analysis by the Claims Review Panel and the external actuarial
consultant respectively, management reviews the claims exposure and
determines the provision required to cover the Group's exposure at each
reporting date. Such provision is included in accrued charges and other
payables in note 15.

Death and disability liabilities

The Group engages an independent qualified actuary to assess the
present value of obligations for its death and disability scheme at each
year end date. Major actuarial assumptions include the discount rate and
salary inflation rate which are set out in note 17.The present value of the
Group's obligations is discounted with reference to market yields on
Hong Kong Exchange Fund notes, which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related obligations. The long-term salary
inflation is generally based on the market’s long-term expectation of
price inflation.
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BUREMRSRECBENUHEREK
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) FAFBERFRMIEE ()
5. Property, plant and equipment 5. Y% HBRFRE
The Group
£B8
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HK$’000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 XA - EE HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RENREE HERRE AE BHRG @i
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Cost BLZ
At 1 April 2013 7 2013F4 A1 H 1,051,770 8,554,987 216,782 654,110 10,477,649
Reclassifications EX 5 4R - (160) - 160 -
Additions &0 1,368 881,004 33,750 64,481 980,603
Disposals & - (366,617) (7,798) (25,206) (399,621)
At31March 2014 ®2014%3/8318 1_,0_5:?),1 318 ______ 9 _,0_6?,2 1_4_ ______ 2 _422314 _______ 6_9?,?{5 _____ 1_1_,0_5_8,??31_ |
Accumulated depreciation ZETE
At 1 April 2013 7201354 H1H 340,736 5,661,946 138,752 462,473 6,603,907
Charge for the year AFE 2T E 22,739 597,685 26,983 70,111 717,518
Disposals & - (360,978) (7,798) (24,759) (393,535)
At31March2014 R201443 8318 363475 5898653 157937 507825 6,927,890
Net book value fREEE
At 31 March 2014 7201443 A31H 689,663 3,170,561 84,797 185,720 4,130,741
HA
BER
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HK$'000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 XE - BE HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEMREE RKERRKE E BhRE #st
BET T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Cost FZ
At 1 April 2013 7 2013F4 A1 H 1,051,770 8,554,987 216,782 651,473 10,475,012
Reclassifications ¥ %8 - (160) - 160 -
Additions &0 1,368 881,004 33,750 64,481 980,603
Disposals H& - (366,617) (7,798) (25,206) (399,621)
At31March2014 R201443 8318 1053138 9069214 242734 690908 11,055,994
Accumulated depreciation REHE
At 1 April 2013 7 2013F4 A1 H 340,736 5,661,946 138,752 459,836 6,601,270
Charge for the year AFE 2T & 22,739 597,685 26,983 70,111 717,518
Disposals H& - (360,978) (7,798) (24,759) (393,535)
At31March 2014 R2014%3A43108 363475 5898653 157937 505188 6,925253
Net book value fREEE
At 31 March 2014 7201443 A31H 689,663 3,170,561 84,797 185,720 4,130,741
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continues) FIFEERITMIEE (@)

5. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 5. Y% - HBRFE @
The Group
£B8
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HK$’000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 XA - EE HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RENREE EERRE AE BMRE it
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Cost BLZ
At 1 April 2012 720124811 1,047,823 8,016,103 156,821 1,046,830 10,267,577
Reclassifications EF /%8 (4,698) 4,585 - 145 32
Additions &0 8,645 956,762 66,076 74,964 1,106,447
Disposals & - (422,463) (6,115) (467,829) (896,407)
At31March 2013 ®2013%38318 1_,0_5],_7ZO ______ 8 _,5_5%,?8_7 _______ 2 J?ZEEZ _______ 6_5f1,J 1_0_ o 1_0_,4_7_7,?419_ |
Accumulated depreciation ZEE
At 1 April 2012 720125451 R 318,299 5,478,865 123,997 866,745 6,787,906
Charge for the year AFE 2T E 22,437 602,596 20,870 63411 709,314
Disposals & - (419,515) 6,115) (467,683) (893,313)
At31March2013 R2013€38318 340736 5661946 138752 462473 6,603,907
Net book value fREEE
At 31 March 2013 7201343 A31H 711,034 2,893,041 78,030 191,637 3,873,742
HA
BER
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HK$'000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 XE - BE HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEYMREE RKERRKE E EhRE #st
BET T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Cost FZ
At 1 April 2012 720124 A1 H 1,047,823 8,016,103 156,821 1,044,193 10,264,940
Reclassifications E¥ %8 (4,698) 4,585 - 145 32
Additions &0 8,645 956,762 66,076 74,964 1,106,447
Disposals & - (422,463) (6,115) (467,829) (896,407)
At31March2013 R2013€38318 1051770 8554987 216782 651473 10475012
Accumulated depreciation REHTE
At 1 April 2012 720124 A1 H 318,299 5,478,865 123,997 864,108 6,785,269
Charge for the year AFE 2T & 22437 602,596 20,870 63411 709,314
Disposals H& - (419,515) 6,115) (467,683) (893,313)
At31March 2013 ®2013%3A4318 340736 5661946 138752 459836 6,601,270
Net book value fREEE
At 31 March 2013 7201343 A31H 711,034 2,893,041 78,030 191,637 3,873,742
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6. Intangible assets 6. BEEE
The Group
£8
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZE20145F BZE 20134
3AALEE 3A3HLEE
BT T BT
Cost XA
At beginning of year R4 941,376 1,429,794
Reclassifications EF#T5 %8 - (32)
Additions &0 161,613 176,757
Disposals & (221) (665,143)
Atend ofyear W&#RE 1,102,768 ¢ 941376
Accumulated amortisation RE#H
At beginning of year RAEF¥] 431,883 1,014,438
Charge for the year ARG E 2 #H 191,820 59,223
Disposals H& (221) (641,778)
Atend of year M&FR 623482 431,883
Net book value FREFEE
At end of year R4 479,286 509,493
HA
BER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZE20145F EZE 20134
3AALEE 3ATAILEEE
BT T BB
Cost F{7A
At beginning of year RAEF¥] 933,875 1,423,238
Reclassifications E#15 48 - (32)
Additions &0 160,252 175,812
Disposals & (221) (665,143)
Atend ofyear W&#RE 1,093,906 933,875
Accumulated amortisation RE#H
At beginning of year RAEF¥] 425,248 1,008,280
Charge for the year NFE 2 #i5 190,954 58,746
Disposals & (221) (641,778)
Atend ofyear M&FR 615981 425248
Net book value FREFRE
At end of year R 477,925 508,627




Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

7.

AP ERIRMTEE )

Loans receivable 7. BRER
Certain eligible employees under the Home Loan Interest Subsidy ERERHITNBEEERNERMTEIT  —&E5&
Scheme were offered downpayment loans for the purchase of their BESFESEHEFABEREM - BHEHAER
residential properties. The repayment period of the loans is the lesser of HAYIEIRIBFEHE20F - UERERE - 5HER
the mortgage life or 20 years. Interest charged on the downpayment MEEHBERMFIE  RZ—HF=A=+—
loans is determined by the Group from time to time and is set at 1.395% HEFA1395% (ZF—=4F : 1.674%) - BEERGTE
as at 31 March 2014 (2013: 1.674%). New applications for the BT _FIYRABEEEIMEBAE -
downpayment loans have been suspended since April 2002.
At 31 March 2014, the downpayment loans advanced to eligible staff EZT—NE=A=+—H BEHRLEEREED
which are fully secured by charges over the properties are as follows: BHERLADEET RERDT -
The Group and HA
SEREER
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
201463 A31H 201393 A31H
BT T BT
Repayable within one year —&REE 1,240 1,452
Repayable beyond one year i —FER 5,597 7474
6,837 8,926
The loans receivable is neither past due nor impaired. The maximum FEWE R B HAlOR(E - RS AR ANEERR
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the = PRESREEREEE BB SRR EIRE - &
receivable mentioned above. According to the terms and conditions HERNE AR KA S ERSERENFHSNR -
of the scheme, the monthly principal repayment and payment of EREENEERNIETE A AREEEFHEREMYS
interest in respect of the downpayment loans are deducted from the FME - AlEEREBERAESFE] Al EM
employees’ wages and that any benefits to which an employee will be s - SRENRELRR - Bt - BIRERERE
entitled to receive under the HA Provident Fund Scheme shall stand Al ATEZRURE ©
charged with repayment of downpayment loan and interest thereon if
such debt has not been paid by the employee upon resignation or on an
agreed date. On this basis, the receivable balance is considered to be
fully recoverable.
Placement with the Exchange Fund and Balance 8. /EESHZRRHBFEE S LR

with Samaritan Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Government injected
HK$10,000,000,000 to support the operation of the Samaritan Fund,
which was established in 1950 by resolution of the Legislative Council for
the purpose of providing financial assistance to needy patients. As
instructed by the Government, HK$4,000,000,000 was vested
immediately in the Samaritan Fund. The balance of HK$6,000,000,000
(the "Principal Amount”) not immediately required by the Samaritan
Fund was placed with the Exchange Fund since 8 November 2012 by
way of a credit facility entered into between HA and the HKMA for a fixed
period of six years during which time HA would not be able to withdraw
the Principal Amount.

FHE-ZT—=F=-A=1+—AL2HBEE ' BUT
B35 ) 58 2 4% & 8 % 10,000,000,000 TC * A T
ESHEBIE - HIBAEESR —NATFLLERR
BN BRRMBRENRARERED - REET
R 0 BB 5 4,000,000,000 7T HY 2 I8 B B A E
& MR T RENE TR 2 /978 % 6,000,000,0007T ([ 4
&) BEBERHESERMINEERE BT
——F+—ANBRFEANERES - FHETE AN
F o IR - BERTHRIIEELS -

BHREEBFR 2013-2014
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8. Placement with the Exchange Fund and Balance
with Samaritan Fund (Continued)

The rate of return on the placement, which is determined annually in
January and payable annually in arrears on 31 December, is calculated on
the basis of the average annual rate of return on certain investment
portfolio of the Exchange Fund over the past six years or the average
annual yield of three-year Exchange Fund Notes in the previous year
(subject to a minimum of zero percent), whichever is the higher. This rate
has been fixed at 5.0% and 3.6% per annum for January to December
2013 and January to December 2014, respectively. HA did not withdraw
the interest earned up to 31 December 2013 which would continue to
accrue interest at the same rate payable for the Principal Amount.

HA has designated the placement with the Exchange Fund as a “financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss” The valuation technique and
significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements are
the discounted cash flow and discount rate respectively. The placement
is denominated in Hong Kong dollar. Its fair value is determined with
reference to the estimated rates of investment return for future years and
approximates its carrying value.

As HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund, the cumulative
investment return up to 31 March 2014 was recorded together with the
Principal Amount as balance with Samaritan Fund, which is unsecured,
interest free and denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The Principal
Amount is repayable upon the maturity of the placement.

The placement with the Exchange Fund and balance with Samaritan
Fund is analysed as follows:

The Group and HA

AP ERIRMTEE )

8.

HNEESFARBBREES AR @

EEGHRNEREESF—ABE - i’[EAi¢+:ﬂ
=+ B3 - BRERIZINEESIREEEGBEN
FHFHREBRE » L=FHINEESEHBE—
FHTFHFEREEAE(RER%) - ABRaEAR
o B =F—AFE+-AK=ZT—NFE—AZE
T AMEFRIRESFIA50% K36% BERLE
XBREEZT—=F+-A=+—BHRIWFE &
LRIEER AR A 2 B RKEERFHE

BERBERNINEES IR A [EAREET
REEERREZMBEE] RARBEREMS
M ERMTREAXRTTHEEZGA  DRSHRES
MEBEBRE - FIERENBTREM - ERAREE
RIBERREEZNEHREEDREETE - AHKEEER
GEE=

HRNEERRIEARNBNIESHNREA E28ZE
ZE-MF=A=1+—HIFEMNRBRERRER
e FIERUSFIRE S ER - BEFFOIERKR
B BT AEN  WHREIHAME -

SNEESTFRMEIEFEESEHRANAT

SEREER
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
201443 A31H 201343 A31H
BT BT
Principal Amount A& 6,000,000 6,000,000
Interest earned but not withdrawn at the reporting date 352,053 49,574
i A PRI A IR B A
Accrued interest FEETHE 56,385 74,584
6,408,438 6,124,158
Less: non-current portion J& : 3ERENE S (6,000,000) (6,000,000)
Current portion ENE D 408,438 124,158
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9. Inventories

AP ERIRMTEE )

9. FE&

The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
2014%3 A31H 201343 A31H
BT T BT T
Drugs %4 1,150,776 1,043,097
Medical consumables & HFEm 188,338 178,996
General consumables —#% E#EMm 29,505 29,821
1,368,619 1,251,914

10. Accounts receivable

10. FEUERRR

The Group and HA
EEREER
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$'000 HKS$'000
20143 A31H 201343 A31H
BT T BT
Bills receivable [note 10(a)] FEUREREE [FIFE 10(a)] 335,167 297,471
Accrued income FEFTULA 16,050 11,991
351,217 309,462
Less: Provision for doubtful debts [note 10(b)] & : REREE M [FIEE 10(b)] (57,900) (49,094)
293,317 260,368

(a) Aging analysis of bills receivable is set out below:

(@) EURESBHERSTOT

The Group and HA
KERBER

At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
20143 A31H 201343 A31H
BT BETT
Below 30 days 30 HIAT 130,647 130,722
Between 31 and 60 days 31260 H 66,432 53,777
Between 61 and 90 days 61290 H 40,375 37,089
Over 90 days #8i890 H 97,713 75,883
335,167 297,471

ERERBER 2013-2014
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10. Accounts receivable (Continued)

The Group's policy in respect of patient billing is as follows:

(i) Patients attending outpatient and accident and emergency services
are required to pay fees before services are performed.

(i) Private patients and non-eligible persons are required to pay
deposit on admission to hospital.

(iii)  Interim bills are sent to patients during hospitalisation. Final bills are
sent if the outstanding amounts have not been settled on
discharge.

(iv) Administrative charge is imposed on late payments of medical fees
and charges for medical services provided on or after 1 July 2007.
The administrative charge is imposed at 5% of the outstanding fees
overdue for 60 days from issuance of the bills, subject to a
maximum charge of HK$1,000 for each bill. An additional 10% of
the outstanding fees are imposed if the bills remain outstanding 90
days from issuance of the bills, subject to a maximum additional
charge of HK$10,000 for each bill.

(v) Legal action will be instituted for outstanding bills where
appropriate. Patients who have financial difficulties may be

considered for waiver of fees charged.

An aging analysis of receivables that are past due but not impaired is as
follows:

The Group and HA

BAFRERIMIEE @)
10. FEUBRFR (&)

SEERBEARENERRNT

() WARMIZZARSEERLAREZD AR
BNER -

(i) RERBARFFEEBALALRBEERMNTTE

(i) BT ERIER R AL PR o RIB AL
BB RN RRNER » BlrgBh&RE
B -

vy M-EELFLH B ETRENEER
% BERPINERESHITRE - IfERE
B0 BIMARBHMER & SIMUKKFK%
ERITIE - BIEMREE LR /A1,0007T ¢ A07ERR
BENEOBIMAEHER A& BIMUkK
H10% VERITERE - BIERE FR A 10,0007T °

) SEE R R R R B R R T
B AEEREOFA  REEEAT IR
s o

BB A RERELSRENRE AT

EERBER

At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
201443 A31H 201343 A31H
BT BETT

Past due by: 8 :
Below 30 days 30 HIAT 92,058 98,404
Between 31 and 60 days 31260 H 51,386 43,015
Between 61 and 90 days 61 %= 90 H 30,160 29,228
Over 90 days #8i890 H 49,517 35310
223,121 205,957

Receivables that are past due but not impaired include outstanding
debts to be settled by government departments, charitable
organisations or other institutions for whom the credit risk associated
with these receivables is relatively low. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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BAFRERIMIEE @)
10. FEUWERFR (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

10. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(b) At 31 March 2014, bills receivable of HK$112,046,000 (2013: (b)) R—ZT—mE=A=+—H - % #1120460007T

HKS$91,514,000) were impaired by HK$57,900,000 (2013: HK$49,094,000)
of which HK$30,203,000 (2013: HK$27,889,000) related to receivables
individually determined to be impaired. These mainly related to
non-eligible persons, the recoverability of which are considered to be
low after taking all possible debt recovery actions. Remaining allowance
for impairment of HK$27,697,000 (2013: HK$21,205,000) was made by
reference to historical past due recovery patterns. It was assessed that a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The aging analysis
of these receivables is as follows:

—ZT =% : #¥91,5140007T) K JEURBR BE R (B VS
¥ 57,900,000 7T (ZF —=4F : A% 49,004,0007T) + &
AR 530,203,000 T (ZF — =4 : ¥ 27,889,000 7T )
BERRERENERRESR  TESRIIEFEE
AL - BEAEERENFT A A B r TED A PTE R R -
BRI EIRE K - FE2%5 AR BHRFBIIE
W& o EMYER T8 27,607,000 L (ZF—=F : /&
121,205,000 7T ) BREERE K - [EETE D BREUER KR
[ o ELERARERMBRER AT T ¢

The Group and HA
EEREBER

At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
2014563 A31H 201343 A31H
BT T BT
Below 30 days 30 HLAT® 38,589 32318
Between 31 and 60 days 31260 H 15,046 10,762
Between 61 and 90 days 61290 H 10,215 7,861
Over 90 days #3890 H 48,196 40,573
112,046 91,514

Movements in the provision for impairment of accounts receivable are
as follows:

FEUBR OB E R RO BN AT

The Group and HA
SEREER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZ20145F EZE 20134
383181 3A31ALE
BT T BT
At beginning of year R 49,094 38,960
Additional provision &N 45,052 45322
Uncollectible amounts written off & #4804 BIFER (36,246) (35,188)
Atend of year R 57,900 49,094

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

ERER  RANEERRE DRERKEROAAE
B - EE W ARFA EAHE R @ ERR -
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11. Other receivables

B FRERIRMTEE )
1. HitEUBRFX

The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HKS$'000
20143 H31H 2013%3A31H
BT T BT
Donations receivable FEUIBFR 67,161 36,647
Interest receivable FEWFIE 60,524 40,160
Others HAth 28,617 23,975
156,302 100,782

Hi IR EREEE - EREH - ZANEE
R i S AR ERIBR AR BE - KREXARFE

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class

of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral

ERERREER o

as security.

12. Deposits and prepayments

12. HERFBENFIE

The Group
&8

At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
2014%3A31H 201343 A31H
BT BT T
Utility and other deposits AR FZERHtbizs 24,834 11,979
Prepayments to Government departments [RIBUT &P PITELT B RIE 57,287 135,360
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments {RE& & #) & B A FE T RUIA 169,970 131,127
252,091 278,466

HA

BER
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
201453 A31H 201343 A31H
BT T BT
Utility and other deposits Af =¥ REAIERS 24,751 11,896
Prepayments to Government departments [RIBUF &R PITEL B FRIE 57,287 135,360
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments RE&E& 49 & H M TEFIE 169,970 131,127
252,008 278,383
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13. Fixed income instruments 13. EAEIR
The fixed income instruments represented Hong Kong dollar bonds and EFAETARERER —MIBAEZINHENET
Exchange Fund notes with maturity periods within five years. The overall EHIINERE S ES - BLEFNFHATEBRF -
yield for the financial year ended 31 March 2013 was between 1.9% and R =F=A=T—HIEMERFENEBRINGE
2.0%. These instruments were matured during the financial year ended 19% 22062 BETAEE_T—MNF=A
31 March 2014. =+—HIENEMBEEANEE -
14. Cash and bank balances 14. RERPITEER
The Group and HA
FEREER
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
2014563 A31H 201343 A31H
BET T BT
Cash at bank and in hand #R1TFREFFR 1,030,810 1,618,563
Bank deposits with original maturity within three months 13,627,396 1,384,026
[FRIREHA A A28 = 8 A e R1T1F 3K
Cash and cash equivalents & &I &5E 14,658,206 3,002,589
Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 13,369,608 8,886,683
JRIR B HA A B B = {E A M ERITIF 30
28,027,814 11,889,272
The effective interest rate on short term bank deposits is between 0.01% REHRTEFERNERFN ER001% £ 160% 2 @
and 1.60% (2013: 0.01% and 2.65%). These deposits have an average ZET =5 :001% £265%2F) ' ELFREF
maturity of 56 days (2013: 47 days). BEIHARS6R(CFE—=5F :47K) °
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15. Creditors and accrued charges

B FRERIRMTEE )
15. EREARERER

The Group
&8
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
201453 A31H 2013%3A31H
BT T BT T
Trade payables [note 15 (a)] FERTE ZRRFR[HI3E 15()] 207,301 211,236
Accrued charges and other payables [note 15 (b)] 4,364,721 4,039,385
FERTE A R E M BR R [FEE 15(0)]
Current account with the Government [note 15 (c)] 4,454,327 2,413,751
HIR T 2 PSR BR B [T 3E 15(0)]
9,026,349 6,664,372

HA
BER
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
2014538310 20133 A31H
BT T BT T
Trade payables [note 15 (a)] FERTE SRR M 15(a)] 207,301 211,236
Accrued charges and other payables [note 15 (b)] 4,364,525 4,038,906
FEAT B AR R Eo A BR SR (B EE 15(b)]
Current account with the Government [note 15 (c)] 4,454,327 2,413,751
BT 2 B RAAR B (K5 1500)]
Current account with a subsidiary BT E#HE 2 MERARE 119 402
9,026,272 6,664,295

(a) An aging analysis of trade payables is set out below:

Q) ENESEXNESITHT :

The Group and HA
KERBER

At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
20143 A31H 201343 A31H
BT BETT
Below 30 days 30 HIATT 194,731 181,420
Between 31 and 60 days 31260 H 10,098 19,102
Between 61 and 90 days 61 =90 H 1,719 8,561
Over 90 days #8i890 H 753 2,153
207,301 211,236

All trade payables as at 31 March 2014 are expected to be settled within
one year. The Group has maintained adequate cash flows and banking
facilities for settlement of trade payables.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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15. Creditors and accrued charges (Continued)

(b) Accrued charges and other payables included accrual for annual leave of

HK$1,659,186,000 (2013: HK$1,551,413,000) and contract gratuity accrual
of HK$1,099,314,000 (2013: HK$916,607,000). The balance also included a
provision for doctors’and non-doctors’ claims of HK$129,342,000 (2013:
HK$192,420,000) as described in note 4(a).

The balance mainly included Government funding for designated

AP ERIRMTEE )

15.

(b)

EREARENSER @)

ENERAREMERBREARFEBRBEEEE
1659,186000L( = T — = 4 : & #1,551,413,000
JL) LA KR FEETE AV BN € 15 1,099314000 T ( = F
—=F : F¥9166070007T) ° EHRIMNBIE—EH
1 129,342,000 TR 8 (=T — =4 : B % 192,420,000
T) AT 4(a) FTili4n B8 AE R IE B AL B B AR
EeHE -

programmes or specific items that were already received and will be (0) #“HxEoERBITREIEIETEE T8 E r
recognised as income over the periods in which the related expenditure T LB FERR R BEAE R AR EERE
is incurred and charged to the statement of income and expenditure. BIEWA o
16. Deposits received 16. Bz E
The Group and HA
EEREER
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20143 A31H 201343 H31H
BT T BT
Patient deposits & A&&E 39,476 26,398
Deposits received from the Government in respect of building projects - 18
MBETRECBAME N ZES
Other deposits EfhiZ® 132,978 102,826
172,454 129,242
17. Death and disability liabilities 17. AT RERBAERE

Under their terms of employment, HA employees are entitled to death and
disability benefit cover. This is funded by HA through the recurrent
subvention from the Government.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

REBRAGSE  BERNEEANZALCRERER
FIRIE - %At Bl M B E BE BB LT ERHB) T A

BEABRTUAERRZRELT

The Group and HA
SEREER
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$'000 HKS$'000
201453 A31H 201343 A31H
BT T BT
Present value of funded obligations ¥ & & EHIRE 206,350 207,103
Fair value of plan assets FTEIEERRAEE (6,663) (10,079)
199,687 197,024
Unrecognised actuarial loss & THERBEEHBEHE - (1,304)
Death and disability liabilities provided BB #E#IET RIEEEFEE 199,687 195,720
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17. Death and disability liabilities Continued)

AP ERIRMTEE )

17. AT REBRBAEE @

The movement in the present value of funded obligations is as follows: AEEEZREZFSHOT
The Group and HA
EEREBER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZE2014F BZE 20135
3A31ALEE 3A3ALEE
BET T BT T
At beginning of year R4 207,103 184,599
Current service cost HITARIFX 30,844 25,531
Interest cost FLERX 2,848 2,359
Benefits paid 2 I1&F] (4,727) (5,163)
Remeasurement of disability liability @M EEEHNTE (2,403) (3,595)
Remeasurement of death liability JETRFIEEEHTE (27,315) 3372
At end of year RF#& 206,350 207,103

The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

HEBEND L EERHNT

The Group and HA
SEREBER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BZE20145 HZE2013F
3A3NHLEE 3A3TELEE
BETT BT
At beginning of year ) 10,079 1,307
(Loss)/return on plan assets (excluding interest income) (3,286) 8,991
FTEIBEM (BB) /@R (TeEFERA)
Employer contributions &3 # 4,597 4,944
Benefits paid ES4&7 (4,727) (5,163)
Atend of year RF4E 6,663 10,079
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17. Death and disability liabilities Continued) 17. AT REZRB|AEE &)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income and TR REGE KT EERREREZE KSR T AR
expenditure and consolidated statement of comprehensive income have B - SRR EMERD

been calculated by reference to an actuarial valuation and are as follows:

The Group and HA
FEREBER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
HZE20145F HZE 20134
3A31ALEE 3A3HLFE
BT T BT T
Current service cost HITRRIEFX 30,844 25,531
Interest cost S B 2,848 2,359
Remeasurement of disability liability BEEHEEEHE2 (2,403) (3,595)
Recognition of death liability #EREFLTEMEE - 6
Total, included in staff costs [note 22] #85tT (BIEFHEE TANR) [5122] 31,289 24,301
Remeasurement of death liability SET@FIEEEHTE (27,315) -
Recognition of previously unrecognised actuarial loss 1,304 -
BRI R THRRNIBE A ERE
Loss on plan assets (excluding interest income) 3,286 -
FTEIEENER CRBREREHA)
Total, included in other comprehensive income (22,725) -
BEH (BEEREMEEREA)
Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are BEMERANETERERROT
as follows:
The Group and HA
SEREBER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
BZE20145F EZE 20134
3AALEE 3ANBLEFE
% %
Discount rate AhR % 2.50 140
Assumed rate of future salary increases fRE&ARIKE & ILIE 3.60 3.60
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continues) FIFEERIRMIEE (@)

17. Death and disability liabilities Continued) 17. AT REZRB|AEE &)
The analysis below shows how the present value of the funded TS RIBIFEA T EERBEBRERANE - GEH-F
obligations as at 31 March 2014 would have increased/(decreased) as a —FE=A=+—BFEEEREREN,ORD)

result of the following changes in the principal actuarial assumptions:

Increase in Decrease in
50 basis points 50 basis points
HK$’000 HK$'000
FIEF 50 %7 RIEHE 50 %7
BT T BT T
Discount rate BRIRZE (11,083) 12,065
Assumed rate of future salary increases &R & & g 11,566 (10,701)
18. Deferred income 18. EILEW =
The Group and HA
EEREER
Tseung Kwan O Minor Works
Designated Hospital Fund Projects Fund
donation fund [Note 18(a)] [Note 18(b)]
[Note 2(f)] HK$’000 HK$'000
HK$’000 W5 R BB N TR Total
EEREES S EHHEE® HK$000
[ﬂfa‘%Iz(Q] [ BTEE 18 1)] [BfaE 18(b)] %@E‘_l‘
BT T BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2012 R 201264 A1 H 426,696 79,925 - 506,621
Additions during the year & P3N 139,990 - - 139,990
Utilisation during the year FRJER - (7,139) - (7,139)
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and (149,044) - - (149,044)
expenditure
HRTRE R EE R
At 31 March 2013 7201343 A31H 417,642 72,786 - 490,428
Additions during the year AN 299,002 - 13,000,000 13,299,002
Interest earned FTEF| 8 - - 15,684 15,684
Utilisation during the year A& - (6,010) - (6,010)
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and (182,755) - (207,583) (390,338)

expenditure
BRTFEAKBEER
At 31 March 2014 7201463 A31H 533,889 66,776 12,808,101 13,408,766

132  Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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18. Deferred income (Continued)

(@)

Tseung Kwan O Hospital Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 1996, the Government advanced
HK$2,047,290,000 to HA for the construction of Tseung Kwan O Hospital. All
interest earned from this grant is repaid annually to the Government. The
hospital was commissioned during the financial year ended 31 March 2000.
The remaining fund balance will be used for project costs and any unspent
balance will be repaid to the Government.

Minor Works Projects Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Government
advanced HKS$13,000,000,000 (under Subhead SH8083MM) to HA for
minor works projects to improve the existing facilities in public hospitals
and clinics. The one-off grant will replace the annual block funding
allocation under Capital Works Reserve Fund — Improvement Works Block
Vote (Subhead 8100MX) and will cover minor works projects each
costing not more than HK$75 million for ward renovations, provision of
additional beds, expansion of clinical facilities, upgrading of electrical
and mechanical engineering installations, as well as universal accessibility
enhancements.

As approved by the Government, HA has placed HK$7,300,000,000 with
the Exchange Fund over a period of six years since 11 April 2014 while
the remaining funds have been managed internally and invested within
the ambit of HA's prevailing investment guidelines. The approved grant,
together with the related investment income, will be fully used to meet
the costs of the minor works projects in the coming 10 years or so. For
the use of funds, HA will continue to seek prior approval from the
Government for each individual item of expenditure to be funded by the
one-off grant, as has been the practice for the use of funds under
Subhead 8100MX.

Minor Works Projects Fund balance predominantly comprised
non-current items.

BIFF R RMIEE )

REBE—NANAFE=A=+—ALNHBREER K
FFTE S 5% 2,047,290000 L FRBE R + MNEIZEEER
BPr - FTARBEERENT ESFHERT - 55
REREREE—_SETF = A=+ —HILNEFKRF
EARA - ESNMBREAUZIAEE RS - &
EFERMRESREBAET -

NVTRIARES

REBEE-ZT—NE=A=+—ALNHBEER K
¥ 78 37 7% 5 13,000,000,000 7T (5 B SH8083MM B T~ )
BER  URET/NHETIEER  REQALERK
PHTRIERRE - EE - AEBRRERESFEERE
ATREEFEES - ETRNEBER (D B 8100MX
) FAAEITEIE R A7,500 Exa/ IS TR
BREBFRE - NBREIK - ERERSME - RAEN
MEWMTRES  URREBERES -

BERERFIE  R-E—NFNA+— B8
7,300,000,000 TTF AINEE © - BENE - SRKA RN
HEE  UREREERRITHRERTETIRE - &
BEFCERABNEWA - AU REROTFL
NITRIEEFAY - HRESHER BERSE
BAAS B 8100MXTE N EE MM - BE— XA
BRE NS ER I8 B B EIBTHUE

NETIZERESEHRTEREIFREIER -
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19. Capital subventions and capital donations 19. EXFHYRERBE
The Group
&8
Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(r)] [Note 2(f)]
HK$’000 HK$’000 Total
BB BARREE HK$000
KL 2] [ KL 2(f)1 At
BET T BT BET T
At 1 April 2012 7201264 A1H 2,767,098 1,127,929 3,895,027
Additions during the year FR3ZN 1,072,126 211,078 1,283,204
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (674,909) (120,087) (794,996)
HRATGRaKEE
At 31 March 2013 720133 A31H 3,164,315 1,218,920 4,383,235
Additions during the year A& N 1,015,202 127,014 1,142,216
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (787,916) (127,508) (915,424)
HRTGRaKEE
At 31 March 2014 7201493 A31H 3,391,601 1,218,426 4,610,027
HA
BER
Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(r)] [Note 2(f)]
HK$’000 HK$’000 Total
BAFHE B EE HK$'000
[Kt=E2n)] [BtaE 2(f)] At
BET T BB T BET T
At 1 April 2012 720124 A1 H 2,766,700 1,127,929 3,894,629
Additions during the year A& A0 1,071,181 211,078 1,282,259
Transfers to statement of income and expenditure (674,432) (120,087) (794,519)
HRATKEEER
At 31 March 2013 7201343 A31H 3,163,449 1,218,920 4,382,369
Additions during the year FR3EN 1,013,841 127,014 1,140,855
Transfers to statement of income and expenditure (787,050) (127,508) (914,558)
HRATKEEER
At 31 March 2014 7201443 A31H 3,390,240 1,218,426 4,608,666
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20.

21.

22.

Designated Fund - Home Loan Interest
Subsidy Scheme

The Group offers eligible employees under the scheme an interest
subsidy to finance the purchase of a residence in Hong Kong. Eligibility
under the scheme is primarily determined by the employee’s length of
service. The amount of subsidy generally represents half of the interest
rate payable by the eligible employee up to a maximum of 6% per
annum. However, eligibility and the maximum amount of subsidies
granted are subject to a number of restrictions as further defined in
the scheme.

The scheme is funded by HA through the recurrent subvention from the
Government. A designated fund has been set aside for the scheme
and is maintained in designated bank and investment accounts which
are included under cash and bank and fixed income instruments
balances respectively.

AP ERIRMTEE )

20.

EEET - BEEXRA SRS

RBUHEFE - REAEERERREHR —ANEE
8 BBMOMERNBEEREM - BREZRENER
MRGEE - BB SE - RAS|EREBBMNFE X
B—F &2REF% - TiE  EREREURSR
B BNET SR — LRTEPARS] ©

ZaT B E REBRANEFEME TIAER - 5
ZIRE —EEEES  AUAXNBEERTISRAE
MHBRFS - XEFRIEERITRERA - 25I5IA
B ROTREEASTEBRA -

Hospital/clinic fees and charges 21. B DEMNE
The charges for hospital services provided by the Group are levied in SETIRHEERRT - RREBEBMAATIEHNKER
accordance with those stipulated in the Gazette. Since the Government has MEKERER - BRBITE S — &4 TEEERER
established a set of policies and procedures on granting fee waivers to the ABRAREHNBORRIET - G R EERTRE
needy patients, the hospital/clinic fees and charges recognised as income REBBAWER,2EMKE  ENRTELREH
in the consolidated statement of income and expenditure are stated net of - EHE_Z-NF=A=+T—BILEZHMHREERE
such waivers. The amount of hospital/clinics fees and charges waived for A - RS BRI A 526,516,000 7T
the financial year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$526,516,000 ZEZ =% B%517964,0007T) °
(2013: HK$517,964,000).
Staff costs 22, BT AR
The Group
&8
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HZ20145F HZE2013F
3AALEE 3A3ALEE
BET T BT
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 31,829,230 29,779,737
EXF ¢ REMEHEERER
Post-employment benefits BB 2T :
- Contribution to HA Provident Fund Scheme [note 22 (a)] 2,166,017 2,115,711
BERAES BN 22 @)
— Contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes [note 22 (b)] 432,551 369,973
SRAE S ETEIHLER [P EE 22 (b))
Death and disability benefits [note 17] 36T KIGEEAEF| [F7E17] 31,289 24,301
34,459,087 32,289,722
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22, Staff costs (Continued)
(@) HA Provident Fund Scheme (“HAPFS”)

The HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme. The current scheme was
established on 1 April 2003 and governed by its Trust Deed and Rules
dated 29 January 2003, and registered under section 18 of the Hong
Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO”).

Most employees who have opted for HA terms of employment are
eligible to join the HAPFS on a non-contributory basis. The HAPFS is a
defined contribution scheme as all benefits are defined in relation to
contributions except that a minimum death benefit equating to twelve
months’ salary applies on the death of a member. However, when the
member’s account balance is less than his twelve months’scheme salary,
the difference will be contributed by the Death and Disability Scheme of
the Group.

The monthly normal contribution by the Group is currently set at 15% of
each member’s monthly basic salary. The percentage of benefit
entitlement, receivable by the employee on resignation or retirement,
increases with the length of service.

At 31 March 2014, the total membership was 30,809 (2013: 31,643). The
scheme’s net asset value as at 31 March 2014 was HKS$53,135,506,000
(2013: HK$48,949,045,000).

(b) Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPFS”)

In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
the Group set up a MPFS by participating in master trust schemes. HA
permanent employees can choose between the HAPFS and the MPFS
while contract and temporary employees are required to join the MPFS
unless otherwise exempted.

The Group's contributions to MPFS are determined according to each
member’s terms of employment. Members’ mandatory contributions are
fixed at 5% of monthly salary up to a maximum of HK$1,250 per month.

At 31 March 2014, the total membership was 40,244 (2013: 35,784).
During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, total members’
contributions were HK$352,257,000 (2013: HK$292,701,000). The net
asset value as at 31 March 2014, including assets transferred from
members’ previous employment, was HKS$4,877,162,000 (2013:
HK$4,071,549,000).

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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22,

BETHRA (&)
BlRERR A EETEl

[EE R RS E] R —RUERKEE - BT
AERBRE T =F - - ThBREFERNER
A RCEE=FOA-BRIMRHEEE  IRE
BB BERIRET BRI+ 5 -

RN EEREREAGHNESR  BEERSMN
BEREHRN [BERA RS - [BREERAR
T3] R —EREHFEE - AR TRKE AL
BEPASEN T —EAFSNREL TR - E
MERERFHARTE - T - EREMIRE AHREE
Rzt N2t —EAFEFHEAE  ZE=EReH
SEMET RBEEDHE

SENEALEHIEREBEF15% 8B R
BB SR IRESS RO M 2 b R BB BRI SE B4 0

R_ZT—NF=A=+—08 - 5815308095 8
(ZZ—=F:31643%)  ;TEIMEEFEARBE

53,135,506,0007C( —ZF— =4 : %48 949,045,0007T) °
BB AEEFTE

REBCEHIERTR R BIED]) - REMAEREFEET
g ARERIUBAMELTESE - - BERERES
EESN [BERAREE ] & [t AEeEt
g mekEHREEASMIBHERTESF
2] BRIFESEHR -

SEE [RFMERESFE ] KRR RIESEKE
B R R RIETSE © KB RORBINEHREE R A% 5%
VAT A 1,250 TR IR -

R-Z—WNF=A=1+—8 - 5t8xHF402448EKE
(ZE—=F:35784%) - THE-_T—NF=H4
E+—RIEZVRFEAR  KEMNHRRBERBEE
352,257,000 0 (= — =4 : ##292,701,0007T) ° B
—E-NFE=A=+—H  FENEEFE  BEKX
BAABAEANEE /BB 48771620007 (=
T—=4F : B 4071,5490007T) °
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23.

24,

(a)

(b)

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise office supplies, hospital supplies,
non-capitalised project expenditure and other administrative expenses. For
the financial year ended 31 March 2014, other operating expenses included
an accrual for auditor's remuneration of HK$2,770,000 (2013: HK$2,770,000).

Remuneration of Members of the Board and
Five Highest Paid Executives

No Board members are remunerated in the capacity as Board members.

The remuneration of the five highest paid executives, which comprised
basic salaries and other short term employee benefits and post-
employment benefits, and is included in the staff costs for the year, is
as follows:

B FRERIRMTEE )
23. H&ERX

HiEERZEEPAERD  BRYE AR
BERZEEMTEAY #BE_ZT—MNE=A
=+ —HIEZHMBEE - Efth 2R BIERTZE
Bl BN £ 76 #5 2,770,000 7T ( = F — =4F : 7 ¥ 2,770,000
JT) e

24. REFERAEREHITHRAEN
<

(@) FAREAEREHALISRAEERS SHMER
B -

(b) FRMEIRABRBELAFUTELARSHITHEA
BHS - HREHARAT S REMEHIESEF
BB LR

For the year ended
31 March 2014

HK$’000
BZE2014F
Current Position / Name of Executives 3A31BLEEE
HERN 1THRAEHS BET T
Chief Executive 1TH# %, 5,045
Dr PakYin LEUNG ZiHEE
Director (Cluster Services) B4R 4285 4,462
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG R{ZBiEE £
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 7 S Pk #8428 4,140
Dr Che Chung LUK FERERER
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) JLEEH B 4848 ES 4,140
Dr ChiYuen LO* E&REE*
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon West) J1EEFgE 4848 &5 4,140
DrSauYing TUNG EFHHEEE
21,927

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration related to
performance.

* Dr LO transferred from Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories West)
to Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) with effective from
1 January 2014.

it TATTIA B NEEUEE R [ BN I TE RSN -

* ERARAMARBELE R-T-NF-A—HE
ENRET B ERE -

ERERBER 2013-2014

137



138

Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements
BUKBORERCBENEHRE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

24,

25.

Remuneration of Members of the Board and

B FRERIRMTEE )
24, RERERTBBRSHTHRAEN

Five Highest Paid Executives (Continued) < )
For the year ended
31 March 2013
HK$’000
BZE2013F
Current Position / Name of Executives 3A31HLEEE
BB, ITRAEKS BT T
Chief Executive 1TE#EH, 4,732
Dr Pak Yin LEUNG Z1EEE
Director (Finance) #5488 4,473
Ms Nancy TSE #iF&R 2+
Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories East) #1575 B 4848 25 4412
Dr Hong FUNG BERE4
Director (Cluster Services) B #8pR75 488 4,350
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG sk1EBEEs
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon West) J13EFal 4848 &5 4,037
DrSauYing TUNG EFHHEE 4
22,004

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration related to
performance.

Related party transactions

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group include
the following:

HA has entered into agreements with the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department ("EMSD") of the Government for providing
biomedical and general electronics engineering services, hospital
engineering services and health building maintenance services to the
Group. According to the terms of agreements, the amounts incurred for
these services for the financial year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to
HK$826,131,000 (2013: HK$774,974,000). Other services provided by the
EMSD for the year (e.g. routine maintenance and improvement works)
were approximately HK$273,038,000 (2013: HK$196,939,000).

HA has entered into an agreement with the Government to provide serving
and retired civil servants, their eligible dependants and other eligible
persons with the services and facilities at all public hospitals and clinics free
of charge or at the prevailing rates as prescribed in the Civil Service
Regulations. For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, revenue foregone
in respect of medical services provided to these persons amounted to
HK$346,519,000 (2013: HK$303,590,000). The cost of such services has been
taken into account in the Government's subvention to the Group.
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25.

it - FTATTIRA B NERRERRIRENA R T E RN o

EERAEE A TR 5

SESERRB A TFENEARRZEA ¢

EEREBNKEIRBIY /e  AZERNEE
RUEER —RETIERY  BRIERERER
BERERY - REBEBRER  HEZT—HF=A
=+ —BIEZHBFEEREBRES MR RBE
826,131,0007L( = ZF — = F : B ¥ 7749740007T ) °
FARETRERBEMBRE (WHTRERRET
12) BB 4 AR 27303800070 (Z T —=14F : B
196,939,000 7T) °

BEREBNGIT H# - ARRBRERAKE -
HEARNRBREMFEEBALTUNRENIZA
TEEEPIFTaT R B IR A B80T 2 BRI BR 7S K2 %
Mo BE_Z-—NMEZA=1t—HIHHREE " A
i A TFTIR M BEERS S k2 R IERE
346,519,000 (=T — =4 : #%303,590,0007T) * i&
LRI H) B A B RIS EBUN G S E MBI A -
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25. Related party transactions (Continued)

(©)

B FRERIRMTEE )
25. EHEBALTHRS &)

Remuneration of key management personnel () xBEBABHH
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and TEEBASERARNIAERE BT REESE
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the EEHOALT  ERFBETHAN  BHELYE S0
Group. It comprises the Chief Executive, Cluster Chief Executives, RiemER MBI EE o
Directors and other division heads of the Head Office.
Total remuneration of the key management personnel is shown below: FEERASHFMATENT -
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
HK$'000 HKS$'000
HZ20145F HZE2013F
3AHILLEE 3A3HLFE
BT T BB TIT
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 53,093 49,885
EAXH S REAME HEBEF
Post-employment benefits BB 187 5,071 4,760
58,164 54,645
Other significant related party transactions with the Governmentinclude  (d) BEBFBEEA TETHEMEAR S BIETELS
annual recurrent grants, capital subventions (note 19) and designated MR BAMB (K19 RIEEES (18 %
funds (notes 18 and 20). Details of transactions relating to the Group’s 20) - BEASBRAFEINR S EERRMEE22 -
retirement schemes are included in note 22.
Outstanding balances with the Government as at 31 March 2013 and (e) BE—T—=fKR-"Z—NF=A=+—HEKFZ

2014 are disclosed in notes 8, 12, 15 and 16. The current account with a

subsidiary, HACM Limited, is disclosed in note 15.

R ARBERNH 581215 R 161 E - M BHEE
[EREERPEEREERAR] 2HAOKRERER
FEE 15 3REE -

BHREEBFR 2013-2014
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26. Net cash generated from operating activities

BAFRERIMIEE @)
26. EETHMEBESFHE

The Group
8
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 204 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BZ2014F BHZE20134F
3A31ALEE 3A3TALEE
BT BT
Surplus for the year FAZER 665,032 1,097,830
Investment income %% W& (195,003) (176,955)
Income transferred from Minor Works Projects Fund (207,583) -
ERg/ N ETREREEAS ZBA
Income transferred from capital subventions and capital donations (915,424) (794,996)
HHAB BN RERIBE WA
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 6,086 26,459
EEYE  HBERREBERETEERSE
Depreciation and amortisation #78 K #85 909,338 768,537
Increase in death and disability liabilities 58T & {&5E4E A5 £3E N 26,692 19,357
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income JEZEZS1E N, () 110,237 (16,193)
Increase in inventories F &N (116,705) (203,247)
Decrease in loans receivable FEWETR D 2,089 2,063
Increase in accounts receivable FEWERFRIE N (32,949) (2,684)
Increase in other receivables E b i Y FRIEE AN (55,520) (22,590)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and prepayments 26,375 (15,509)
e RIBARERL, (EM)
Increase in creditors and accrued charges f&E#E A K FEH E AN 2,361,977 893,415
Increase/(decrease) in deposits received BUIzE &M, CRL) 43,212 (29,198)
Net cash generated from operating activities &iEEBIFT1SIREFHE 2,627,854 1,546,289

27. Funds held in trust

At 31 March 2014, funds held in trust (including accrued interest income)
for the Government but not included in the financial statements are set

27. EREEE

RIZ—WFE=A=+—H  FER/BFERERS
AMBRENEXESHB(BFEERENEHLA)

out below: N
The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013

HK$’000 HKS$'000

201443 A31H 201343 H31H

BET T BT

Health Care and Promotion Fund @& REEE S 43,206 47,465

Health Services Research Fund BERBHEES 381 491

43,587 47956

140  Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014




Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)

28.

29.

(@)

Donations from the Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust

AP ERIRMTEE )

28. REEHRESELECTEETNEM

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Hong Kong Jockey BHE_Z-—NF=A=+—HBItNHBFERN - &F
Club Charities Trust made donations totalling HK$51,166,000 (2013: BN eREETES R TFHBEIE LA 51,166,000
HK$57,333,000) to the following institutions: TL(ZT—=4F : A% 573330007T) :
HK$'000
BB TIT
Hospital Authority Head Office %8B R BENFE 36,475
Caritas Medical Centre BAZ Bl 6,250
Shatin Hospital 7 H &kt 5,779
Princess Margret Hospital 53221 886 1,491
Queen Elizabeth Hospitall FFIA A% 805
Kowloon Hospital 1%kt 366
51,166

The donations were accounted for in the designated donation fund in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f)(ii).

Commitments

At 31 March 2014, the Group and HA had the following commitments:

Capital commitments

ARIRMEE 2(F) (i) PREREY S RTERER - 4RRBDIASEEIRRE

29, EIE

RZZE-—ME=A=+—H SEKBERAATZ

A

(@) BAAEIE

The Group
1L |

At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HKS$'000
20145373310 201343 A31H
BT T BT T
Authorised but not contracted for B EREERETRL) 4,770,389 2,791,492
Contracted for but not provided B2 &TRANEREEE 1,494,359 1,607,020
6,264,748 4,398,512

HA

BER
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$’000 HKS$'000
20143 A31H 201343 A31H
BET T BT T
Authorised but not contracted for B R EERFTHL 4,766,887 2,790,362
Contracted for but not provided 25T 2 A1EREE 1,486,406 1,598,352
6,253,293 4,388,714
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29.

(@)

30.

31.

32.

33.

Commitments (Continued)

Capital commitments (Continued)

The capital commitments disclosed above include both costs to be
capitalised under property, plant and equipment or intangible assets and
also costs which are to be charged to the statement of income and
expenditure in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(g).

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2014, the Group and HA had commitments for future
minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

B FRERIRMTEE )
29, A (@)
@) BAEYE @

IRIBHIEE 2(0) FUR BV G ET R - LA PRFI B & A A
BESGEANENYE BERREIETVEESR
R ARATR AN S B E R -

(b) ZEREALE

E-Z-—NE=A=+—H SERBERESERN
TS5 R 2B 0 S AT 2 E TR B 2 RO AR AR

JERIE -

The Group and HA
FEREER
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
201453 A31H 20133 A31H
BETT BB
Buildings #&=F
Within one year —4 A &#im 29,390 21,500
Between one and five years —Z HERNHH 115,911 18,794
Beyond five years 381 Hiim 75,003 -
220,304 40,294
Equipment &
Within one year —5 A Eiim 60,081 72,859
Between one and five years —Z HE AW 43,338 100,388
103,419 173,247

Taxation

No taxation is provided as HA is exempt from taxation under the Hospital
Authority Ordinance.

Contingent liabilities
Adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements after

reviewing the status of outstanding claims and taking into account legal
advice received.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to the
current year's presentation.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by members of HA on 25
September 2014.
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Membership of the Hospital Authority

Zatl =
BREEBNE
No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2013-14

Name 2013-14FE Commiittee participation in 2013-14

HE HEZEAERH 2013- 14 FESHNEEE*

Mr Anthony WU Ting-yuk, GBS, JP 9/9 Chairman of plenary meetings, EC and EEC

Chairman, HA 2RAE TREZEEERESEYRELZEGEF

(upto30.11.2013)

RSB SE 4

B EREREFEE

(BZ2013F 11 H30H)

Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP 6/6 Chairman of plenary meetings, EC and EEC; HGC Member

Chairman, HA of Ruttonjee Hospital and Tang Shiu Kin Hospital (up to

(from 1.12.2013) 30.11.2013)

RECHEK 2BRY TRZESRESEEREREGTF X

B EEEFE b MR B ERR B QK E (AF 20134 11 30

(1201341281 H#E) H)

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP 13/15 Member of HRC, MTB and PCC; Chairman of HKRAC; HGC

PRINIR S Chairman of Castle Peak Hospital and Siu Lam Hospital
ANEREZEESG FREFZEGRABRRFEEGK
8 BEBEEHAZES R FLBR R IMEERER
LZERXRF

MrWilliam CHAN Fu-keung, BBS 14/15 Vice-Chairman of MTB (from 30.5.2013); Member of HRC,

PR R S MSDC and MTB (up to 29.5.2013); HGC Member of Tuen Mun
Hospital
PREBLZERINFER (H2013F5H308%)  ANE
RZEE  BERGERZEGRPAREZEES (HE
2013F5 B20R) K E - BPIBRERZEGKE

Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP 15/15 Member of MSDC

Director of Health ERRBEREEGKE

PROEZEE A

HEEER

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP 8/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB (all from 184.2013); HGC

PRER 2% Member of Prince of Wales Hospital
ANBRZE®  BERBERZEGRTRARIELZES
BB (2H2013F4 /180 18) ; R ERRERZ
S5gKE

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, JP 10/15 Chairman of SSDC; Vice-Chairman of ITGC; Member of EC,

BR AL EEC, MSDC (up to 1.12.2013) and MTB; HGC Member of Yan
Chai Hospital
XERBEREZESER  EARERBELREZERRIE
B ITHEESR  RRREEREELEY  BERBEERZER
Be(#EZE2013F12H1H) RTPRIRBEZEEKE  C
EBEkELEEGKE

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP 8/15 Vice-Chairman of SSDC; Member of MTB (from 25.4.2013);

BRizt HGC Member of North District Hospital
XERBERZESAEIR  PARBEZESGKE (&
2013425 HE) : IRBEREREZEGKE

Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan 10/15 Member of HRC, MSDC (up t0 27.6.2013), MTB and SAC, HGC

HERELLE
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Chairman of Kwai Chung Hospital and Princess Margaret
Hospital

ANEREZEES  BERGEREZES (HE2013F6H
27H) PRAKREZEGRBE FHREEGKE LB
b RIEREREREEEER
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B &% 1
No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2013-14

Name 2013-14 & Commiittee participation in 2013-14

H®E HEZEAERH 2013-14FEZHNZEEG*

Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP 15/15 Chairman of PCC; Member of ARC, EC and EEC; HGC

IHE A Member of Hong Kong Eye Hospital, Kowloon Hospital and
Rehabaid Centre
ABRFZERETR  ERERERZES  1THZES
ERESEGRELZEGKE  BERMNER - WEBK
RERERRERPLEREZEGKE

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, JP 5/6 Member of FC and MTB. (both from 18.12.2013)

(from 1.12.2013) MBEEGRPAREZEGKE (AH2013F12518

REBREAE HEE)

(120134128 1 H#E)

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP 13/15 Chairman of ARC (from 25.4.2013); Member of EC, EEC (both

Er from 25.4.2013); Member of ARC, SSDC and MTB (all up to
24.4.2013); HGC Chairman of Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
FENEREREE R X (H2013F4H25HF) : 17
REEGREREERELEGKE (FIAH2013F4 725
HE): Bt kRABREBZES IBRREEEZES
PRGIZREGRE (RHE2013F4524H): BEE
REREZEEERF

Mr Benjamin HUNG Pi-cheng, JP 4/9 Chairman of FC; Member of EC and EEC(all up to 30.11.2013)

(upto30.11.2013) MBEERXR  THEEERESEERELZEGKE

HEARIES A (2EZE2013F 11 H30H)

(BZE2013F11 A308)

Dr KAM Pok-man 13/15 Chairman of FC (from 1.12.2013); Member of ARC (from

HiExEL 15.4.2013), EC and EEC (both from 1.12.2013), FC (up to
30.11.2013), MSDC (from 18.4.2013), MTB (from 184.2013 to
30.11.2013) and SSDC (from 25.4.2013)
MEBEXIR (BH2013F 1271 A#) : B RAKE
BEBE(H2013F4H150#%) TREZEGRERE
BRELZBE (FIH2013F12A1HE)  WHKEES (B
F2013F11H30H)  BEREERZEE (H2013F4
R18HIE) RRIIEEZES & (H2013F 45 18HF 2013
F11A30H) RERBERERS (H2013F4H25H
) KB

Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS 8/15 Vice-Chairman of HRC; Member of ARC, MSDC and MTB

FE L

Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai 15/15
2B S A4

Mrs Yvonne LAW SHING Mo-han, JP 9/9
(upto30.11.2013)

BRERLLT

(Bt22013%F 11 530H)

(from 25.4.2013); Chairman of NRAC, HGC Member of
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital.
ANBRZEGRIER B LARERZE® - BER
BEREZEGRPAKRERE G (H2013F 4725 HE)
KE  MARSEANZESER  RELERAINITRE

REREZEENKE

Member of HRC (from 19.11.2013), PCC, MTB and SSDC; HGC
Member of Queen Elizabeth Hospital

ANNEBREEE (H2013F 11 A19HE) - RREFEE
g HREFEESRIERBERZESKE R

BEREARBGKE

Member of HRC and MTB; Chairman of KRAC (all up to
30.71.2013); HGC Chairman of Shatin Hospital
ANEBRZEGRHPRITFLZEGKE - NEREHZEAS
BEXE(2EE2013F11A30H)  PHERERES
gXF

EREEBFR 2013-2014
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No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2013-14

Name 2013-14 & Commiittee participation in 2013-14

H®E HEZEAERH 2013-14FEZHNZEEG*

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin 6/6 Member of ARC, FC and MTB. (all from 18.12.2013)

(from 1.12.2013) B RERERZES  VBZEERTAKREZEGHK

THESLE B (2H2013F 12718 H#) °

(F12013F 1271 H#E)

Prof LEE Sum-ping 3/4 Member of PCC and MTB; HGC Member of Queen Mary

(upto31.7.2013) Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital (all up to 31.7.2013)

FOFHR DRRFLZEGRFAREFLZEGHKE  BEERLEE

(BZE20139F 7431 ) BliEnR 8 QK E (2EF 201347431 H)

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan 13/15 Chairman of KRAC (from 1.12.2013); Member of HRC, MSDC,

EFHHE MTB; HGC Member of Cheshire Home, Shatin and Tseung
Kwan O Hospital
NEREFANEZEGER (H2013F12H1H): ANE
REES  BREBHEERZESRPREEZEGKE
DHERESR MEEREREGEEGKE

Ms Esther LEUNG Yuet-yin, JP 15/15 Member of FC and MSDC

Deputy Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury R EZEeRERRGEEREZEEKE

(Treasury)

RY B+

R EHREB B ER

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS 10/11 Member of MSDC and MTB (both from 21.8.2013); HGC

(from 1.82013) Member of Queen Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital (from

REEHER 9.92013)

(F12013F8 A1 H#E) BEERBERZEGNDTRRIEEZEGNE (AH2013F
8A2IHE)  BRERMNEERBRELCZEGKE (&
20134F 9 59 HFE)

Mrs Margaret LEUNG KO May-yee, SBS, JP 10/15 Member of FC and MTB

REEHLZLT MBEEg P RIRIEEEGKE

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP 15/15 Chairman of ITGC; Member of EC, EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC, MTB,

Chief Executive, HA SSDG, all RACs and HGCs

Z2EBE4 BABEBREELAEZEGEF  (THEEEY  EEER

B B TR BLEg UMBKEEES AERZEE®  BERBER
ZE® FAREZES  IERBEEZEE SR
FHEEEREBRELAEZEGKE

Dr LI Chi-kong, JP 12/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Hong

FERE Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
ANBRZE® BERBERZEGRTPRRIZLZES
KB BB +FeRmRETROEREEEKE

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, JP 13/15 Member of HRC (from 18.4.2013 t0 26.9.2013), MSDC and

REGHE MTB (both from 18.4.2013) and PCC (from 1.12.2013); HGC
Member of North Lantau Hospital (from 24.10.2013)
ANNEBRZEZ BE(H2013F4H18H £2013F 926
A) BEBRSERZEGRPAREZEG (AH2013
F4H18HE) RRBRKHEES (H2013F 1271 HE)
B b RIBILIBIRERZBEKE (B12013F 10524
H#E)

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP 13/15 Chairman of HRC; Member of ARC, EC and EEC and FC; HGC
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Chairman of Tai Po Hospital; HGC Member of Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals
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B &% 1
No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2013-14
Name 2013-14 & Commiittee participation in 2013-14
H®E HEZBRERY 2013-14FEZHNZEEG*
Miss Winnie NG 12/15 Member of MTB and SSDC; HGC Member of Prince of Wales
hElgZ+ Hospital and Queen Elizabeth Hospital
PREELZEGRIERBERZEGKE  BBRTRT
B RPN RBERELAEZEGKE
Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP 10/15 Member of FC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Chairman of Queen
TIRERAE Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital
MBZES BEREERZEGRPAREZEGNK
g8 BRERREREREALZERER
MrWONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP 15/15 Member of FC, MTB, PCC and SSDC; HGC Member of
FHEERE Tseung Kwan O Hospital
MBEZEE  FRREZES  ARRFEZESRIER
BEREZEGKE  KERBREALZEGKE
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung 15/15 Chairman of MTB (from 25.4.2013) and MSDC; Vice-Chairman
R EHIR of MTB (up to 24.4.2013); Member of ARC, EC, EEC and HRC;
HGC Member of Grantham Hospital
PRGIBEE G (H2013F4 525 A%E) REBERGER
ZEREE PARIZZEBGRIERE (AE2013F4724
A): B REAREREEZES  THEES  BSEEXR
BELEEERANEREEGKE  BEHABKREGEES
Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, JP 15/15 Member of EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC and SSDC
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health) RSEERBLEEY  MBKEES ANEREEG B
REEEEA BERGEREZEGRIERBEREZEGKE

RYREEBFEFRER (F4)

*Note:

Apart from the principal officer (the Hospital Authority Chief Executive), other
members are not remunerated in the capacity as Board members. They
discharge the role of governance of the Authority through formulating policies
and directions and overseeing executive performance at Board meetings, as
well as taking part in steering the work of various committees of the Authority
including:

ARC - Audit and Risk Committee

EC - Executive Committee

EEC - Emergency Executive Committee

FC - Finance Committee

HGC - Hospital Governing Committee

HRAC -  Regional Advisory Committee of Hong Kong
HRC - Human Resources Committee

TGC - Information Technology Services Governing Committee
KRAC -  Regional Advisory Committee of Kowloon
MSDC - Medical Services Development Committee
MTB - Main Tender Board

NRAC -  Regional Advisory Committee of New Territories
PCC - Public Complaints Committee

SAC - Staff Appeals Committee

SSDC - Supporting Services Development Committee

*é}‘ :

BREX2TBRABR (BREERITHRAR) I HMKEHR
BREAEKREN S ) MBEREMAFHM - AEKBBEBEDE
g3 EHIFTECR B - BEREREOTIERY - RIEE
BEREEZEENTIF  —RA2EBERNER -

BREEBFR 2013-2014
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Appendix 2(q)
B 8% 2(a)

Hospital Authority Committee Structure

EREEBREEZRE

Hospital Authority Board
BEEEERAS

Regional Advisory
Committees

EREAEES

Hospital Governing
Committees

BRERZEES

Audit and Risk
Committee

ETREABEEESS

Emergency Executive
Committee

BoRSREEES

Executive Committee
THZER

Finance Committee

HBEEE

Human Resources
Committee

ANEREES

Information
Technology Services
Governing Committee
BB R

il
EREES

Note: Membership lists of various committees are listed in Appendices 3,4 and 5.

it BRBERBREHNMEI 450
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Main Tender Board
FRREZES

Medical Services
Development
Committee

ERRBBREES

Public Complaints
Committee

ARRFEER

Staff Appeals
Committee

BEFEER

Supporting Services
Development
Committee
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B 8% 2(0)

Hospital Authority Executive Structure
EREEBITHERERS

Dr LEUNG PAK-yin, JP Chief Executive

PHEBERE THES

v

Cluster B 43

Head Office {23 E 5

Hong Kong East Dr LAU Chor-chiu Cluster Chief Executive Dr CHEUNG Wai-lun, JP Director (Cluster Services)
Cluster P———— IRIERABE A R A
SRR e
Dr LIU Hing-wing Director (Quality & Safety)

Hong Kong West (up to 31/1/2014)

9 9 Dr LUK Che-chung Cluster Chief Executive [EEEEE TRy ame
Cluster PERERRBRA Higme (BZE20144F1/431H)
& B TR & L

Dr HUNG Chi-tim, JP Cluster Chief Executive

Dr Derrick Au Kit-sing Director (Quality & Safety)
(from 1/2/2014 to 31/3/2014)

BERBYE gxrrses

%il:;;;;Z/ZOB) (2014F2H1HZ2014F3H31H)
RETR g e
Kowloon Central y

(22013 12/H31H) Dr LO Su-vui Director (Strategy & Planning)

Cluster

. ) ) (up to 31/12/2013)
Dr Albert LO Chi-yuen Cluster Chief Executive
Al b (from 1/1/2014 t0 31/3/2014) RBRBE roaReE
(BZ20134#12A4318)

Kowloon East

BEER4E pres
(20144 1 51 HZ201443531H)

Dr Joseph LUI Cho-ze Cluster Chief Executive

Dr LEE Ha-yun Deputizing Director (Strategy & Planning)
(from 1/1/2014 to 31/3/2014)
FERBYE AEABTREE
(12014 15 1HZE20144€3 531 H)

Cluster
ERRBL vz
N AR B : Dr Derrick Au Kit-sing Head of Human Resources
(up to 31/1/2014)
Kowlooon West Dr Nancy TUNG Sau-ying EEREY A 15 REE
Cluster Cluster Chief Executive (272014461 831 4)
ML BE TR B Pt 48 EFRBL voes Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai Head of Human Resources
(from 1/2/2014 to 31/3/2014)
Dr FUNG Hong, JP Cluster Chief Executive ZFEEEREYE A VEREE
(up to 18/10/2013%) (1201442 F1HZ20144%3 531 H)
BRBL nms
(BZ2013F 104181 *) Ms Margaret CHEUNG Sau-ling Head of Corporate Services
q Tt giEErre
Dr Beatrice CHENG RAER -
New Territories Deputizing Cluster Chief Executive . ) X
East Cluster (from 19/10/2013 to 31/12/2013) Ms Nancy Tse S_au-llng, JP Director (Finance)
. (also overseeing the information technology function)
#1575 B8 btk 48 EMER B4 HupEmE (up to 31/8/2013)
(120134 105 19 AZ 20134 12531 A) WER LT
Dr HUNG Chi-tim, JP Cluster Chief Executive (2201348 /1314)
(from 1/1/2014 to 31/3/2014) Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi Director (Finance)
REREIREE YL mimws (from 1/9/2013 to 31/3/2014)
(120149 1.6 1 AE 201443431 H) SEMiEL L Hes
(20139 A 1HZ201443 /431 H)
i- Cluster Chief E ti\
Dr Albert LO (5:,1 :O?;I/ell;/zol;;)er e ective Vacant Chief Information Officer
E*ﬁ%ﬂa B (from 1/9/2013 to 31/3/2014)
New Territories (R=20134 12 551 5) R AMEBRE
West Cluster = (H120134 9 1 HZ201443 31 H)
i 57 P Ea B sk 4R Dr LO Su-vui Deputizing Cluster Chief Executive Dr CHEUNG Ngai-tseung Deputizing Chief Information Officer

(from 1/1/2014 to 31/3/2014)

BRIREBAE nrnEee
(B2014F1H1HZ2014F3H31H)

(from 1/9/2013 to 1/3/2014)
IRENBEE B RERE
(H1201349 A 1 AZE201443 5 1H)
Mr MA Wing-chang Deputizing Chief Information Officer
(from 2/3/2014 to 31/3/2014)

BRERE AEEARFAE
(1201453 A2 HE 201443 A31H)

* 18/10/2013 is the last day of duty of Dr. Fung and his last day of service is on 31/10/2013
¥ HREEERRETEAZ2013F 10718 H + AEBAIR 20134 10 A 31 HTHs
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By % 3

Membership and Terms of Reference of Functional

Committee
EEESERERBELE

Audit and Risk Committee
B REAREEESS

Membership List

REBE

Chairman © MrLester Garson HUANG, JP (from 25.4.2013)
E ERASA (B 201344 H 25 A#E)
Members © MrRicky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP

24=1 IREE L&

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP (up to 24.4.2013)
ERALE A (BLE 2013F 424 H)
Dr KAM Pok-man (from 18.4.2013)
HiEE L (B 20134 4 18 )
Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS
A
Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin (from 18.12.2013)
B (B 201312 4 18 HAE)
Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
SN Tt
Ms Estella NG Yi-kum (up to 30.11.2013)
HEEL+ (BE2013F 11 A30H)
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung
EREHIR
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
REEARTAE
Ms Wendy YUNG Wen-yee (from 1.12.2013)
BEREX LT (H2013F 1241 HE)
In attendance :
HE REBIEERY R EREANER (FE)
Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
IR B AT ARE

Terms of Reference
1. Exercise an active oversight of the internal audit function to ensure that
its:

(@  mandate, resources and organisational status are appropriate;

(b)  plans and activities are adequate to provide systematic coverage
of the internal control and risk management systems put in place
by the Management; and

(0  findings are actioned appropriately and timely;

2. Recommend the appointment of the external auditor and the audit
fee to the Board, endorse any non-audit services to be provided by the
external auditor, and consider any questions of resignation or dismissal;

3. Consult with the External Auditor on all relevant matters including the:
(@)  nature and scope of the audit;

(b)  audited financial statements and the audit opinion;

(©  management letter and management’s response; and

(d)  matters of which the External Auditor may wish to draw attention;

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, JP, Permanent Secretary for Health

HiEsiE

1. TERERBEREER(BER)WANIIEREE - U
&
@ HBE®E BRRASHKREDRE
(b) EFHEIRIEE)RIAR REHIRE BT PIAT LA
NEPRE RRBERGE : R

© BB PISERTEVEE REOTTE

2. EMNBREBMAZRERBAER AEERKZEH
B e mINE R R ERIERA RS - L E
BEMBHFRAREEE

3. HPTERBSEIEAAINEREE - B
@  EETRTERAIEEMEE
b) BEFNEFUBHREREFER
© HEOBEEENREREEENDE K&
(d)  SNEEREEMRL A ERIFIE
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4, Gain reasonable assurance on the completeness, accuracy, and fairness
of audited financial statements, including appropriateness of accounting
policies and standards, adequacy of disclosures and significant audit
adjustments (in collaboration with the Finance Committee);

5. Oversee the effectiveness of systems for risk management and internal
control, including:

(@)  periodic review of:
(M) Hospital Authority’s policies and process for the identification,
assessment and prioritisation of risk;
(i) the Hospital Authority Risk Framework including reports on
the enterprise wide risk profile; and
(i) significant risk issues reported to it by the Chief Executive;

(b)  monitoring Hospital Authority’s financial and administrative control
processes, including those designed to ensure the safeguarding of
resources and operational efficiency, through the results of internal
and external audit;

6. Oversee the processes implemented by the Management for monitoring:

(@)  compliance with pertinent statutes and regulations;

(b)  compliance with Hospital Authority’s Code of Conduct;

(c) effectiveness of controls against conflicts of interest and fraud; and

(d) effectiveness of Hospital Authority’s whistleblowing mechanism.

Note: It should be noted that although the functions of the Audit and Risk

Committee cover a wide area, matters that are of a pure clinical nature

(such as medical ethics) are not within its purview.

Focus of Work in 2013-14

In 2013-14, the Audit and Risk Committee held six regular meetings with every
meeting considering a planned agenda to cover the Committee’s Terms of
Reference. As it was one of the Committee’s functions to oversee risk activities
and processes, a report on the key enterprise-wide risks facing the HA in 2014
and the related mitigation strategies was considered at one of its meetings.

To exercise an active oversight of the internal audit function, the Committee
approved the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2013-14 and directly received
quarterly progress reports from the Chief Internal Auditor on completed
audit results and follow-up actions. Among all the internal audit reports
reviewed during the year, some of the key operational audits included
“Laboratory Turnaround Times’, “Outsourcing of Radiological Imaging Services',
“HA Mechanism for the Safe Introduction of New Procedures/Technology
(HAMSINP)", “Leave Management Follow-up’, “Rest Day/Statutory Holidays/
Public Holidays Compliance’, “Legal Compliance-Security & Guarding Services
Ordinance’, “Queuing Time Management in Specialist Outpatient Clinics’,
"Overseas Travel”, “Influenza Pandemic Preparedness’, “Special Honorarium
Scheme’, “Provision of Information for Ethnic Minorities’, and “Follow-up Audit
on Single Use Devices".

In the area of external audit, the Committee reviewed the external auditor’s
Audit Strategy Memorandum, including their audit risk assessment and work
plan. Subsequently, the Committee received and discussed the external
auditor’s opinion on HA's financial statements in a joint meeting with the
Finance Committee. The Committee also reviewed the results of an evaluation
of the external auditor’s performance.

4 (MEMBEER)RAEHOSFHHRE - DiEL
BEHERRERNEIN - REARHHTHIEE - L
REAEHAESHEREADEE - BRFEE 4
BEAF ;

5 EREREERASATRHNRN - 2fF

@  EHEE
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Apart from overseeing the work of external and internal auditors, the
Committee also considered accountability reports from the responsible subject
officers to monitor the financial and administrative control processes in place to
address the capacity risk of long waiting time, breach of security of information
technology risks, and risk of supervision of junior staff in the nursing grade.
The Committee considered reports on the monitoring of compliance with
HA's Code of Conduct, a review of HA's whistleblowing arrangement, and
consultancy reviews covering the information technology internal audit
function, and the information security and privacy programme.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-

assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past two years according to
its Terms of Reference.
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Executive Committee
ITHEES

Membership List
RERE

Chairman

*E

Member

K&

Mr Anthony WU Ting-yuk, GBS, JP (up t0 30.11.2013)
HAENBS A (B2 20134F 11 H30H)

Prof John CY LEONG, SBS, JP (from 1.12.2013)
PRCHIR (B2013F 124 1 H#E)

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, JP

R E A

Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP

IHEE ST

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP (from 25.04.2013)

B AL (2013F 4 425 AE)

Mr Benjamin HUNG Pi-cheng, JP (up to 30.11.2013)
MR IFSEE (BE20134F 11 H30H)

Dr KAM Pok-man (from 1.12.2013)

HEsEL (201361281 A#)

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
REBBETHAZE

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP

SN Tt

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung

BRI

Terms of Reference

Consider key matters and overall policies and directions on long-

term strategy and planning, risk management, corporate governance,

performance management and succession planning, and facilitate the

Board in discharging its responsibilities in this regard;

Advise on Board meeting agenda items proposed by the Management

including an annual forward looking agenda and key matters raised by

Functional Committee Chairmen;

Serve as a forum for the HA Chairman, Functional Committee Chairmen

and the HA Chief Executive to consider major matters relating to the

leadership and oversight of the HA;

Advise on changes to Board and Functional Committee structure and

processes including the respective terms of reference; oversee their

annual self-assessments; and advise the Board on the appointment of

chairmen, vice-chairmen and co-opted members of the Functional

Committees;

Advise the Board on the organisation structure and functions of the HA

Head Office and its Divisions;

Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following staff matters:

(@)  Advise the Board on the appointment, remuneration changes,
contract variation of the Chief Executive;

(b)  Advise the Board on the appointment of Cluster Chief Executives
and Directors of Divisions;

() Approve contract renewal, remuneration changes and contract
variation as well as lateral transfer/job rotation of Cluster Chief
Executives and Directors of Divisions;
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(d)  Approve the appointment, contract renewal, remuneration
changes and contract variation as well as lateral transfer/job
rotation of Hospital Chief Executives and Heads of Divisions; and

(e)  Review the performance of Chief Executive, Directors, Heads of
Division and Cluster Chief Executives;

7. Convene as the Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) in accordance
with HA's Emergency Contingency Plan (supplemented by a senior Food

& Health Bureau official when meeting as EEC).

Focus of Work in 2013-14

In 2013-14, the Committee met ten times to discuss or approve 42 papers
(including three through circulation). Topics considered included appointment
and remuneration matters of senior executives and those of chiefs of clusters
and hospitals, career posting and succession of senior executives, progress
of the Government'’s Hospital Authority Review, implementation progress on
recommendations of the Corporate Governance Review, submissions for and
results of the Capital Works Resource Allocation Exercise, membership of HA
Committees and Hospital Governing Committees, the HA Budget and Annual
Plan for 2014-15, HA's Key Enterprise-wide Risk Profile and reports on staff
complaints against senior executives, etc.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-

assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Emergency Executive Committee

Membership List

(In his absence, the Emergency Executive Committee chairmanship should be elected among its standing members)

RERE
Chairman Mr Anthony WU Ting-yuk, GBS, JP (up t0 30.11.2013)
£ HAEBSE A (B2 20134F 11 A30H)
Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP (from 01.12.2013)
RERICHIR (B 2013F 1241 B#)
(FETER  B2BEREZEM TR FEKEFEL)
Members Mr CHENG Yan-kee, JP
24= B R E A
Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
ISEAF ST

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP (from 25.4.2013)
BRI (1201354 25 A#E)

Mr Benjamin HUNG Pi-cheng, JP (up to 30.11.2013)
HEARIELAE (BZE 2013411 A30H)

Dr KAM Pok-man (from 1.12.2013)

B8+ (2013F 1251 H#E)

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive (In his absence, the Deputising CE)
RIEBEE BE BT TS (TTHABZ TN - AU TG F)

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
HEREE

Miss Janice TSE , JP (representing the Permanent Secretary for Health)

WINER L [KEXRYRELEBEFRER (FE))]

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung (from 16.1.2013)
BERIMEHOR (B 2013F 1 5 16 HEE)

Note: The Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) was set up by the Board on

15 January 2004. It will automatically be called into action when the HA
activates the Tier-three Strategic Response to a major incident, which is
defined as an incident with prolonged and territory-wide implications,
such as the Serious Level (52) or Emergency Level Response to influenza
pandemic.

Terms of Reference

To act for the Hospital Authority Board and exercise its powers and

functions, including:

(@) altering, amending or overriding existing Hospital Authority
policies, standards, guidelines and procedures; and

(b)  the establishment of sub-committees or task forces to tackle
particular matters at hand.

To identify the objectives and assess the risks facing Hospital Authority in

the emergency situation;

To approve the strategies and policies for managing the emergency

formulated by the Hospital Authority Central Command Committee, and

monitor implementation progress in all HA hospitals and institutions;

To coordinate activities of the other Hospital Authority committees

including Hospital Governing Committees;

To ensure effective communication of clear and concise messages to key

stakeholders, including staff, patients, Government and the public; and

To be accountable to the Authority Board and the making of regular

reports to Hospital Authority Members as soon as practicable.

i

BB RETESN2004F1 AISEHEERK
BRI o EREEASR Y2 EFBERERAE
EFENER - Pl mRIEENRERR (52 KB
SHAEE BERARBE-_ERIEEE Z8E
BNRFEE -

g

RERBREERASER  WITEEENREE - &

7=

@ HREBREEBHE -
HEE - ERTRER &

) RINMEAZEEHER/NMARIZAEER -

1B« 55| REFFIE

REREEREHMNESER  EHFEFERAER
3
HERBEREEBHREEZEGMHIFTNESRER
BE AT 81 0 WEEERAAA BB B IR B B f A B TT
EE
mEHMBREERZEE
7% :
BRETBNEEESS (BFERE - BA  BFK
MR AMEERAR  BHMmMEZ : &
ARBREERRASAE - WRAI{THE AR R AR
BREEBAEKRERE -

BEBREAZEEN

EREEBFR 2013-2014

195



156

Appendix 3
B 8% 3

Focus of Work in 2013-14

In 2013-14, the Emergency Executive Committee met four times in response
to the confirmed cases of human H7N9 (Avian) influenza infection. At the
meeting on 4 December 2013, the Committee was briefed on the chronology
and latest position of the situation after the confirmation of the first human
case of H7N9 Avian Influenza infection on 2 December 2013 and the activation
of the Serious Response Level (S2). Members noted the actions taken or to be
taken by HA, including management of confirmed/suspected avian influenza
infected patients, contact tracing, activation of the Clinical Management
System'’s eH7 platform for early alert and notification, precautionary measures
taken in hospitals, and recommended arrangements for visiting and volunteer
services as well as clinical attachment.

At its meeting on 9 January 2014, the Committee was given a progress update
on the latest development and situation, including the conditions of the
confirmed cases, contact tracing, arrangements for volunteer services and
hospital accreditation activities as well as other actions being taken. Members
also noted that the Centre for Health Protection (CHP) and Department of
Health were actively conducting various disease prevention and control
measures at the border in anticipation of the higher risk of human infection
arising from the large number of cross-border traffic between Hong Kong and
Mainland China during the Chinese New Year holidays.

At its meeting on 17 February 2014, the Committee was briefed on the latest
development of the situation and the key actions taken by the HA. Members
noted that all of the five H7N9 confirmed cases were imported cases and had
travel history to the affected areas in Mainland China during the respective
incubation period. No secondary case was identified in the contact tracing
exercise conducted by CHP. Members were further briefed on the situation
in Mainland China, and noted that the imposing risk of H7N9 from Mainland
was expected to continue for a period of time given the frequent cross-border
traffic between Hong Kong and Mainland China. Members also noted that
HA had stepped up its mitigation measures despite the overall risk to HA was
relatively low.

At its meeting on 17 March 2014, Members noted that all of the six H7N9
confirmed cases were imported cases and had travel history to the affected
areas in Mainland China during the respective incubation period. Members
were informed of the actions taken or being taken by HA, including gradual
resumption of clinical attachments, volunteer services, visits and accreditation
in non-high risk areas; strengthening of the Extracorporeal Membrane
Oxygenation (ECMO) services and monitoring of the isolation facilities etc.
Members also noted that additional machines would be procured to meet the
surge demand for ECMO services.

As at 31 March 2014, Serious Response Level (S2) remained in force.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014

2013-14 FE TR

TE2013-145E  Z2ESRELTEeHBRATNAREE - U
BRIR A SRRV R (H7NO) FER AR - £ 2013F 12 A
ARMEEL ZESBET 2013512 A2HERAHERE
H7NO B 2 {8 22 LA S B Bh % 26 8 2 AR 71] (S2) B0 s [ 3 R A 5%
BN - KBETEE BEAK BRI SIEEE - 21F
2/ RUBLRRERRRANSE  BHHEEEZR - B
BRAEE RS eH7 ERBRT A - Bl - XA
REREEEE LRENEREEEENEZTHE -

R2014F1 AoRMEZEL  ZESENTEHNEELR
REHIER  iEEDERORR - BUEEER - TR
B - BIRRBRSMEMER - KB INEE - fEk#
L REEERERE N TR SERE RIS AR
ZRB EF - BRI IETEG R KB E R o

R2014F2R17B0MEFE L ZESBEN T EHNSEHE
BRLRBERRIMNERTE - KEBERDARHINOED
BRG BINMBARR - EERPRBINELE: - SRITEF
BN X R B o MR ERER O EI TR B M S
RIBEP - WEBRPEER o wHN - BRI T FEANH
RIER « AERRTSEEARIEE - TBHIR G+ B AAY
H/NO RRARBR NS E — R - MBEREYNRER
BREAMEE TS - INEMSRIBRFEE

R2014F3 /17BN EE L ZEERB2E/SRHINOEE
PR AN AER - EBREANEIINELEE - SR
FEAMHZEERE - KEANEEERD ARG
178 BERSEESEERGRERRIEES - TR
% IR ARRE - neal AT O8] RIS IA KR EE R Fm Bl R
HE - KENANEBERBRRELHBES  UEMNY
[ AU | IR SR EFAHARE K -

M2014F3 A31 8 - BRERZRR S NHERERK -



Appendix 3
B 8% 3

Finance Committee
WHEES

Membership List
RERE

Chairman © MrBenjamin HUNG Pi-cheng, JP (upto 30.11.2013)
£ A (B2 201311 A30H)

Dr KAM Pok-man (from 1.12.2013)
HiEXXE+ (20134612 41 H#E)

Members © MrAndrew FUNG Hau-chung, JP (from 18.12.2013)
K& B RS (1 20134 12 5 18 HRE)
Dr KAM Pok-man (from 184.2013t0 30.11.2013)

BB (H2013F4 5 18HF20134F 11 A30H)

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin (from 18.12.2013)
THRB LA (B 2013F 125 18 HE)
Mrs Margaret LEUNG KO May-yee, SBS, JP
REEsrt

Ms Esther LEUNG Yuet-yin, JP /

Ms Karyn CHAN (representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury)

2B+

BREFO 2 L+ [ K AAEF B REF B/ ]
Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIEB B AT AR

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
BEREE

Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP

TRERE

Miss Janice TSE Siu-wa, JP (representing the Permanent Secretary for Health)

WINERL[KEXRYRELEBFEFRER (FE))]

MrWONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FHEEEA

Terms of Reference

1. Advise and make recommendations on the financial aspects of the
Hospital Authority Corporate Plan and Annual Plan;

2. Advise and make recommendations on the financial planning, control,
performance, monitoring and reporting aspect of the Hospital Authority;

3 Advise on policy guidelines for all financial matters, including investment,
business and insurance;
Advise and make recommendations on the resource allocation policies;

5. Advise and recommend to the Hospital Authority on the financial
statements (audited and unaudited) of the Hospital Authority;

6. Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme
and made recommendations to the Hospital Authority;

7. Monitor the financial position of the Hospital Authority; and

8. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to finance operations and other relevant areas
contributing to the financial risk profile of Hospital Authority.
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Focus of Work in 2013-14

To assist the HA Board in ensuring proper stewardship and effective use of
public funds, the Finance Committee met five times in 2013-14 to advise and
make recommendations to the Board on various finance related matters for the
Authority. Key focus of the Committee in 2013-14 was broadly summarised as
follows:

(@)

In support of corporate strategy formulation and policies development
of HA, the Committee considered a review of Government funding
arrangement for 2014-15 and beyond, and the progress on the
continuous refinement of HA's internal resource allocation system with a
view to developing a measure that better reflects resource needs from a
total patient journey perspective.

Dovetailing with the HA's service and resource planning process, the
Committee considered the proposed 2014-15 HA budget and resource
allocation. It also reviewed the financial risk assessment of HA as well as
an update on insurance approach and direction for 2013-14.

On accountability reporting and monitoring of HA's financial position, the
Committee reviewed and endorsed the HA's draft financial statements
for 2012-13. Besides, it also considered the 2012-13 audited financial
statements for a number of designated programmes undertaken by
HA, including the electronic Health Record Programme development,
the Samaritan Fund, the Community Care Fund Medical Assistance
Programmes and the HA Charitable Foundation. In addition to receiving
monthly financial reports during the year, the Committee also considered
a mid-year financial review of HA together with the unaudited financial
statements for the six-months ended 30 September 2013.

The Committee received regular progress update from the Treasury Panel
on the HA's treasury management and operations. Besides, updates
on the development of the next generation of Patient Billing System
were provided to the Committee. Last but not least, the Committee
also reviewed the Annual Work Plan of the Finance Division for 2014-15,
and considered an update on the role of the finance function in HA and
supported the proposed strategic foci for the medium term.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-
assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Human Resources Committee
ANEREES

Membership List
RERE

Chairman © MrPatrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP

E BERTE

Vice-Chairman - MsKa-shi LAU, BBS

eSS Blmk i+

Members - MrCHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP

RE BRIA RS &
MrWilliam CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
BRE®EE
Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP (from 18.4.2013)
PRER e (2013 F 4. 7 18 A )
Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan
HEELT
Mr Billy KONG Churk-hoi, BBS, JP (up to 30.11.2013)
TLIEFSkE (B E2013F 11 A30H)
Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai (from 19.11.2013)
RIRBEA (20134611 419 HAE)
Mrs Yvonne LAW SHING Mo-han, JP (up to 30.11.2013)
BREESENZ L (BIF2013F 11 H30H)
Ms Angela LEE Chung-yan
(representing the Permanent Secretary for Health)
FEB L+
[KXRYRBERZEWER ()]
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan
FFEHI
Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIB B AT
Dr LI Chi-kong, JP
Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, JP (from 18.4.2013 to 27.9.2013)
REREBIR (B 2013F4 7 18H29H27H)
Dr Kim MAK, BBS, JP (up t0 30.11.2013)
BRERLT (HF2013F11 H30H)
Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP (up to 30.11.2013)
TR (B E 201311 A30H)
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung
S 2

Terms of Reference RS E

1. Advise on manpower planning; 1.

2. Advise on staff training and development matters; 2.

3. Advise, review and make recommendations on human resources policies 3.
and related issues;

4. Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority on 4.
the terms and conditions of employment for staff;

5. Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority on 5.
staff pay awards and overall staffing structure;

6. Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority on 6.
any other staff related matters;

RADREEHESR
HRBEEIIRERFERHUER
HANERBERREBERREER - TR RIE

Hi2eE
ABENEAGEREREER (BER) RHER -
BTN REHEE
RBEHFMEBBATRERBERREHER - #17
e R AR

REMETRBEABOFIABREREHER &
TR RAE R

EREEBFR 2013-2014

159



160

Appendix 3
B 8% 3

7. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to human resources management; and

8. Monitor the performance of the Hospital Authority Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority as
and when necessary.

Focus of Work in 2013-14

In 2013-14, the Human Resources Committee met six times to discuss and
consider various human resources (“HR") matters of the HA. Along the strategic
direction of HA to allay staff shortage and high turnover, the Committee
considered and endorsed various HR recommendations and measures that
were initiated to improve manpower situation and employment terms and
conditions, such as the Optometrist Grade Review and Reform proposal, and
the Pay Review for Patient Care Assistants IlIA serving in in-patient wards/
services on 24-hour shifts. It also gave comments on the development of the
HR grade management function in HA and received a progress report on the
improvement of doctors’ working hours in public hospitals. Endorsement-in-
principle was granted for the proposed 2013-14 annual pay adjustment for
HA employees. The Committee also received a regular update on the Hospital
Authority Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

To further promote staff health and wellness, the Committee discussed and
endorsed a pilot programme proposal to enhance staff access to radiological
medical services on staff co-payment basis in 2013-14. It was also updated on
the key initiatives of staff wellbeing in 2013-14. A final report on nitrous oxide
exposure monitoring in HA's obstetrics and gynaecology units and an on-going
nitrous oxide management programme were presented to the Committee as
an initiative to improve the work safety management system in HA.

In addition, the Committee received a regular update on HA staff training
and development matters. It provided comments on the work progress of
the Training & Development Central Committee and gave feedback to the
Training and Development unit of Head Office Human Resources Division on
new training initiatives. Moreover, the Committee endorsed the proposed
conversion arrangement and its implementation upon consideration of the
recommendations of a job evaluation for Chief Managers in the HA Head Office.

During the year, the Committee discussed the HR risk assessment for 2013 and
2014 with planned mitigation actions, endorsed the proposed enhancement of
management and control of HR functions as well as revision of the Delegation
of Authority manuals, and deliberated on the agenda forecast for 2014-15. It
also received updates on HR Resources Projects in HA's 2013-14 Resources
Allocation Exercise as well as Call Payment Offer exercise for staff other than
clinical doctors, and a report on staff complaints received in Year 2013.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-

assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Information Technology Services Governing Committee

BRRNERRBEEEZ

Membership List

RERE
Chairman  DrLEUNG Pak-~yin, JP, Chief Executive
E=E RIB B AT AR
Vice-Chairman © MrCHENG Yan-kee, JP
BEE BRE A
Members © MrDavey CHUNG Pui-hong
RE Deputy Secretary for Food and Health (Health)
MR A
RYREEBEIWER (F4E)
Mr Daniel LAI, BBS, JP
Government Chief Information Officer
RIS A
BTEAR A
Mr Stephen LAU Ka-men, JP
BEHkE
Hon Charles Peter MOK, JP (from 1.12.2013)
BTyt 8 (2013124 1 A#E)
Terms of Reference
1. Approve corporate policies and standards for Information Technology /

Information Systems;

2. Approve and monitor the overall progress of the implementation of the
Information Technology / Information Systems Strategic Plan;

3. Approve and monitor the execution of the Information Technology /
Information Systems Annual Business Plan;

4. Receive recommendations on the priorities for Information Technology
systems development and implementation;

5. Receive advice from the Information Technology Technical Advisory
Subcommittee;

6. Receive performance and status reports;

7. Provide periodic progress report to the Hospital Authority Board; and

8. Consider matters relating to risk, risk management and risk mitigation
relevant to Information Technology across Hospital Authority.

Focus of Work in 2013-14

Upon the retirement of the former Director (Finance) on 1 September 2013,
the Information Technology Division (ITD) HA was separated from the Finance
Division to become an independent division managed by the Chief Information
Officer (CIO).
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In 2013-14, the Committee met four times to discuss various issues relating to
the strategic development of [T/information systems in HA. During this period,
the Committee considered and deliberated on the key risks identified in the
IT Operational Risk Assessment and various risk mitigation actions in quality
assurance, system performance and availability, data security and privacy, and
project governance; the review of human resources related risks in ITD and the
mitigating measures to address challenges in operations, implementation of
its development work and technology innovation; the action plan of Quality
Assurance Consultancy Review associated with HAIT systems development;
update on the consultancy review of the HA information security and privacy
programme; as well as the preparations for developing a holistic HA Strategy
on IT to cope with business priorities and IT capability. To meet the growing
demand for IT systems to support the operation of the organization, the
Committee also considered and deliberated on the [T Block Vote Submission for
2014-15 and the ITD Annual Work Plan 2014-15 for responding to challenges
in continuing existing service delivery and delivering the major strategic IT-
enabled projects.

To fulfill its overseeing functions, the Committee monitored the
implementation of the work stipulated in the ITD Annual Plan by considering,
amongst others, the performance and status reports of respective IT functions
at each of its meeting, the comments of which would be conveyed to the
relevant working teams under HAITD for follow-up actions. Progress Update
on Clinical Management System Phase Ill, Business Supporting IT Systems,
eHealth Record Projects and IT Services Performance were among the standing
agenda items of the Committee’s meetings. The Committee also monitored
the ongoing efforts of HAITD on development of the Government’s electronic
Health Record (eHR) with HA as the technical agent and endorsed the related
draft audited financial statements annually. The Committee also considered
and supported the proposed role of HAITD in supporting the eHR Stage 1
recurrent programme and Stage 2 activities for continuity of delivery of service
and integrity of the system.

To support HA's service needs with the latest trend of IT technical development,
the Committee received advice from the Information Technology Technical
Advisory Subcommittee on the IT technical architectures and technology
selections proposed by ITD which included open source development tools
adoption in eHR CMS On-ramp application, data governance of the Reporting
and Business Analysis Project, secured network interface to medical device, wifi
versus 3G/4G for mobile computing, and social computing in HA, etc.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-

assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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Main Tender Board

PRREES

Membership List
RERE

Chairman

E=E
Vice-Chairman
EES

Ex-officio members
EANE

Members

K&

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung (from 25.4.2013)
EREHIR (B 2013F4 A 25 BiR)

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung (up to 24.4.2013)
BRI (B2 2013F4A248)

MrWilliam CHAN Fu-keung, BBS (from 30.5.2013)
BREs8 24 (M 201348 5 A 30 HAE)

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai (from 30.5.2013)

B (2013465 A30H )

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive (or his nominated representative)
RIaB AT (TTHARR A EZAEK)

Ms Nancy TSE Sau-ling, JB, Director (Finance) (up to 31.82013)
MER LT EE (B E2013F 8531 H)

Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi, Director (Finance) (from 1.9.2013) (or her nominated representative)
BT L T HAEE (7 2013 F 95 1 HEE) (IHAEE S R F#K)
Two of the following rotating members:

LATE AR EmERK S

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP

RRIR R S A

MrWilliam CHAN Fu-keung, BBS (up to 29.5.2013)
BREsR A (BEZ 201355 29H)

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP (from 18.4.2013)
BRRHIR (1 20135 4.5 18 HFE)

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, JP

B B4

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP (from 25.4.2013)

BBt (f 20139F 4.5 25 HEE)

Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan

HEREZ L

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, JP (from 18.12.2013)
BB (2013412 5 18 HAE)

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP (up t0 25.4.2013)
R E (B2 2013F4H25H)

Dr KAM Pok-man (from 184.2013t0 30.11.2013)
U8+ (2013 F4 /18 HE20134F 11 A30H)
Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS (from 25.4.2013)

BIZERS 2t (/7 2013 9F 4.5 25 H#E)

Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai

2B A

Mrs Yvonne LAW SHING Mo-han, JP (upto30.11.2013)
BEBEWZ LT (BZE2013F11A30H)

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin (from 18.12.2013)

FRBSE (F2013F 124 18 HEE)

Prof LEE Sum-ping (up to 31.7.2013)

TOFEHIR (BE20134F 7431 H)

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan

TR
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Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS (from 21.8.2013)
REEHIR (B 2013F 8 421 H#E)

Mrs Margaret LEUNG KO May-yee, SBS, JP
REEHLLT

Dr LI Chi-kong, JP

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, JP (from 18.4.2013)
PEFRHIR (B 2013F 4.5 18 HEE)

Miss Winnie NG

hatgZ+

Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP

TRERE

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai (up t0 29.5.2013)

BREL (BF2013F5H29H)

MrWONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP

FrEES A

Terms of Reference

The main function of the Hospital Authority Main Tender Board is to consider
and approve tender of order value above $4 million;

1. Review and assess the recommendations made by the assessment panel;

2. Review the procedures and criteria adopted by the assessment panel in
the course of its selection;

3. Approve the selection made by the assessment panel after satisfying
itself that (1) and (2) are in order and such approval should be final.

Focus of Work in 2013-14

In 2013-14, the Main Tender Board met 24 times to consider a total of
694 tender papers for procurement of supplies and services with value of
over $1 million for HA Head Office, and above $4 million for clusters and
hospitals. Tenders for procurement of supplies mainly covered purchases
of pharmaceutical products, medical and laboratory equipment and their
consumables whereas service tenders were mainly related to hospital domestic
and supporting services, maintenance of medical and laboratory equipment,
information technology systems and maintenance services and data hosting
facilities. Capital works tenders were mainly concerned with hospital
redevelopment projects and minor works improvements for maintenance
of hospital premises. During the year, Members of the Committee sought
clarification or made suggestions for management to follow up on 37 tender
papers and action was taken for most of them while four tender papers were
resubmitted after further clarification or refinement.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-

assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Medical Services Development Committee
BERRBREERESS

Membership list
RERE

Chairman Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung
£ BRI
Members - DrConstance CHAN Hon-yee, JP Director of Health
RE PREREE FEEER
Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
BR= SR 5T
Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP (from 18.4.2013)
BRR eI (2013 F 4 A 18 A )
Mr CHENG Yan-kee, JP (up to 30.11.2013)
BRELE (BZ2013F 11 A30H)
Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan (up to 26.6.2013)
HERLL (HZE2013F6 526 H)
Dr KAM Pok-man (from 18:4.2013)
B8t (2013 F4 4 18 H#E)
Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS
B=rr et
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan
FLHHIER

Ms Esther LEUNG Yuet-yin, JP/Ms Karyn CHAN (representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury)

2B L+, REHR L T (R EXAEEHRER B ER)
Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS (from 21.8.2013)
REEHIR (B 2013F8 421 HEE)

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive

RIEB B4 TR,

Dr LI Chi-kong, JP

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, JP (from 184.2013)
REREHIR (B 2013F 44 18 A#E)

Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP

TRERE

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, JP

Permanent Secretary for Health

RERBEA

RYREEBHIWER (BE)

Terms of Reference Sk o 5 [

1. Examine, review and make recommendations on the changing needs of 1.
the community in respect of clinical services provided by public hospitals
and institutions;

2. Advise and make recommendations on the overall policies, directions 2.
and strategies relating to the provision, planning and development of the
public hospitals and related services, having regard to the availability of
technology, staff and other resources and the need to provide a patient-
centred, outcome-focused quality healthcare service by a knowledge-
based organisation;
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3. Consider and make recommendations on the overall priorities for the
planning and development of the public hospitals and related services in
order to ensure an optimal utilisation of available resources;

4. Consider, review and make recommendations on any other matters
related to the planning and development of the public hospitals and
related services;

5. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to medical services development; and

6. Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following matters:

(@)  Approve the scope of coverage of the Samaritan Fund as recommended
by the Management Committee of the Samaritan Fund,

(b)  Approve clinical service plans on specialty services and
redevelopment projects, except those involving decisions on
financial provisions.

Focus of Work in 2013-14

In 2013-14, the Committee met five times to discuss issues relating to the
planning, development and management of clinical services. On clinical
services planning and development, the Committee considered and
deliberated on the service demand projection for inpatient, ambulatory and
outreach services; manpower requirement and strategies for doctors, nurses,
allied health and pharmacy professionals; development of clinical services plan
for the Kowloon Central Cluster; strategic service framework for coronary heart
disease; stroke service development plan; framework for the development of
Integrated Chinese-Western Medicine; reprovisioning of Yaumatei Specialist
Clinic at Queen Elizabeth Hospital (QEH); and the renovation of the Cancer
Research Laboratory at QEH.

The Committee considered and gave advice on clinical management issues
relating to the introduction of new drugs and indications to be covered by
the Samaritan Fund from 2013-14; management of the HA Drug Formulary;
waiting time management for specialist outpatient clinics and elective surgery
in HA; direction of accident and emergency services in the coming five years;
clinical performance monitoring; annual review on key performance indicators;
simulation training for healthcare professionals in HA; winter surge preparation;
directed donation of deceased organs in Hong Kong and transplant policy for
non-local residents; proposal on reforming the private clinic of Hong Kong Eye
Hospital; and the patient service and care risks and the proposed risk reduction
plans for 2014.

The Committee also received progress reports of various clinical programmes,
including the contract management of Chinese Medicine Clinic for Research
and Training under the tripartite arrangement; HA Patient Satisfaction Survey;
and progress of various public-private partnership service programmes.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-

assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Public Complaints Committee
NRRFEEZ

Membership List
MERE

Chairman © MrRicky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
EE ISEAF ST
Members © Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
ME BRIF M S &
Rev Canon Dr Alan CHAN Chor-choi
B 7 VA B R
Mr CHAN Shu-ying, SBS, JP
BoR A 85
Ms Christine Barbara CHAN So-han
PREM L+
Sister Nancy CHEUNG Chu-kin
RITRIEL
Mr CHOI Chi-sum
BEEREE
Mr Antonio CHU Lok-sang
REEFTE
Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
EREHIX
Mr HO Sau-him
DS &t
Mr Samuel HUI Kwok-ting
FTEITE S
Mr Alex LAM Chi-yau
MEREE
Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai
BB
Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim*
RBREE
Dr Agnes LAW Koon-chui, JP
BEREL
Prof LEE Sum-ping (up to 31.7.2013)
0T (BIE 2013F 7 31 H)
Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, JP*
REBRHIX*
Dr MAK Sin-ping, BBS*
B ERREE
Prof WAN Chin-chin
FEFFHE
Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
B eSS
Dr WONG Kwok-chun
=EREBL
Mrs Elizabeth WONG YEUNG Po-wo, MBE
EHEBMILT
Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP
BRI R+
Ms Lisa YIP Sau-wah, JP*
BEEEL L
* Panel Chairman
*NEETE
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Terms of Reference

The Public Complaints Committee (PCC) is the final complaint redress
and appeal body of the Hospital Authority ("HA").

2. The PCC shall independently:

(@)  consider and decide upon complaints from members of the public
who are dissatisfied with the response of the HA/hospital to which
they have initially directed their complaints.

(b)  monitor HA's handling of complaints.

3. Pursuant to Para 2 above, the PCC shall independently advise and monitor
the HA on the PCC's recommendations and their implementation.
4. In handling complaint cases, the PCC shall follow the PCC Complaint

Handling Guidelines (Annex) which may be amended from time to time.

5. The PCC shall from time to time and at least once a year, make reports to
the HA Board and pubilic, including statistics or raising important issues
where applicable.

Annex

Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases in the Public Complaints
Committee (“the PCC")

1.

The PCC is an appeal body within the Hospital Authority (“the HA") to
consider appeals made by the public relating to its services. Based on
its Terms of Reference, the following are guidelines set by the PCC to
facilitate the handling of complaints.

The PCC shall not normally handle a complaint:

(@) if the complaint relates to services provided by the HA more than
2 years before the date of the lodging of the complaint, unless the
PCC is satisfied that in the particular circumstances it is proper to
conduct an investigation into such complaint not made within
that period;

(b) if the complaint is made anonymously and/or the complainant
cannot be identified or traced;

(c) if the complainant has failed to obtain the proper consent of the
patient, to whom the services were provided, in the lodging of the
complaint (this restriction will not be applicable if the patient has
died or is for any reason unable to act for himself or herself);

(d) if the subject matter of the complaint has been referred to or is
being considered by the coroner;

(e) if the complaint relates to a matter for which a specific statutory
complaint procedure exists;

(f)  if the complainant or the patient concerned has instituted legal
proceedings, or has indicated that he/she will institute legal
proceedings, against the HA, the hospital or any persons who
provided the services (in any event, the Committee shall not
entertain any request for compensation);

(g if the complaint relates to dispute over the established policies
of HA, for example fees charging policy of the HA in respect of its
services;

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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(h) if the complaint relates to an assessment made by a medical staff
pursuant to any statutory scheme whereas such scheme provides
for a channel of appeal, for example, the granting of sick leave
under the provisions of the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance,
Cap. 282;

(i) if the complaint relates to personnel matters or contractual
matters and commercial matters;

() if the PCC considers that the complaint is frivolous or vexatious or
is not made in good faith; or

(k) if the complaint, or a complaint of a substantially similar nature,
has previously been the subject matter of a complaint which had
been decided upon by the PCC.

3. Taking into account the following:

(@)  thedisclosure of legal privileged documents in an open hearing;

(b)  thedisclosure of personal data in an open hearing;

(©)  the PCCis not a judicial or quasi-judicial body;

(d)  anaggrieved party has other channels to seek redress; and

(e)  the PCC should not duplicate the functions of other institutions

such as the courts or the Medical Council;
the PCC considers that its meetings shall not be open to the public.

4. In considering the merits of a complaint, the PCC may from time to time
obtain expert opinion by medical professionals or other experts relating
to the subject matter of the complaint. If the PCC considers appropriate,
it may also invite the complainant, the patient, the medical staffs or any
other relevant persons to attend an interview.

(The above Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases may be amended

from time to time as appropriate.)

O

Focus of work in 2013/14

In 2013/14, the Public Complaints Committee held 16 meetings and handled
a total of 289 cases, of which 206 were related to medical services, 33 related
to administrative procedure, 38 related to staff attitude and 12 others. In
addition to the handling of appeal cases, the Committee also advised on
complaint handling policies to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of
the Authority’s complaints system, and make recommendations for system
change and improvement of healthcare services. Regular internal and external
communication programmes were conducted to enhance the transparency
and credibility of the Authority’s complaints system and the Committee as the
final appeal body. Through its Secretariat, the Committee also shared important
lessons learned for risk management and enhanced the complaint handling
skills of frontline staff through regular specialist complaint management
training including applied mediation skills training.

(h  RFETEEASRBEMEEABIPAENE
BalE > M S8 AT ARE LFRE
IR RSB AP 282 HE E M EIRHIRE
RERR

() BRAERE  SNEEZTHENRG

() HEED - EEEE - SIEHR ARG
(4

()  BFHEEBRBONKRE  BZESFRAC
BORBEZRNETEANR °

3. ZESEERTIERR RA/ESHETEAIRA

@ AREREREARREAXMSE

b SEEHREREAMALOHEAER

© EEEWIERDESIRLIRDERE |

( REFO— T WA EMAFRE - Rk

( ZEGMRE TN MEE (EEXREBER

g)EE -

4. REBERFOEIFMER  ZEFURKRFNTIER
A BABREXHHMAFINERZR - ZESW
RRRE  TAHRKHFA  BA - BRABREA
BEAL -

(ZEEABRFERTRER] LR REEI2HES] <)

2013/14 FE T/EHER

201314 FE - ARBFLZESHBH 16 ASHEREE
289 TRIEZ + H A 206 REAREZER - 33 REARITHIR
Fr 38 REAREBIREE DRBEMRGF ZESRER
EFFERIN - TRIFEEBCRIREER - UBEBBERIR
SRER IR I AR R Re A - SR R DA Do Aok = B
BRRTS o HA R INEBET TN E BRETT - LURARER
BRRIEEEINERENRGEN R ARRAZEGHE
ERNARRFNZR LFER - ZESMEBWEERETH
EPHLFRIEMEPIIIGRIE - Hh e iEEA ARG -
HBBABDZAURIAALSR - {EMIRHERRE IR RILARAT
A BB EFRIERTT o

BREEBFR 2013-2014

169



170

Appendix 3
B 8% 3

Staff Appeals Committee
B8 ChEEZ

Membership List
RERE

Chairman © MrPeter LO Chilik

E BENFE

Members © Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan

RE HREELT
Mr Billy KONG Churk-hoi, BBS, JP (up to 30.11.2013)
ISR A (B E 2013411 A30H)
Mr Lawerence LEE Kam-hung, JP (from 1.12.2013)
HIRE A (12013 F 124 1 H#E)
Dr Kim MAK, BBS, JP (up t0 30.11.2013)
BEERLT (B2 2013F11 H30H)

Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP (upto30.11.2013)

EBREIR (B E 201311 A30H)
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP (from 1.12.2013)
REREE (B2013F 12 5 1 HAE)

Terms of Reference

1. To consider and decide upon appeals from staff members who have
raised a grievance through the normal internal complaint channels and
who wish to appeal against the decision made;

2. The Committee shall:

(@)  consider whether the appeal cases need further investigation by
the management;

(b)  direct the appeal cases to be investigated;

(©)  have access to all the relevant information required from the
management for making a decision;

(d)  ensure that appropriate action is taken; and

(e)  reply to the appellant;

3. The Committee’s decision shall represent the Hospital Authority’s
decision and shall be final; and

4. The Committee shall make annual reports to the Hospital Authority
Board.

Focus of Work in 2013-14

The Staff Appeals Committee (SAC) was set up on 19 December 2002 as
an independent authority for handling staff appeals which have already
exhausted the normal staff complaint channels within the operation of HA.
The Committee received two staff appeal cases in 2013-14, one of which had
been referred back to the respective hospital cluster for completion of the
normal staff complaint channels. The other appeal was under consideration
by management for clarification of the appeal issues. During the year, the
Committee also received additional information relating to an appeal which
was determined to be not substantiated in 2012-13. It further considered the
case and came to the view that the additional information would not have
affected the decision of the SAC's previous decision; and accordingly regarded
the case as closed.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-

assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Supporting Services Development Committee
RERBREEESE

Membership List
RERE

Chairman

*E

Vice-Chairman
e

Members

K&

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, JP

BRAES A

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP

EREmA T

Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan

PREZHIR

Dr Andrew CHAN Ping-chiu, BBS

FRIR ST

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP

Dr KAM Pok-man (from 25.4.2013)
HiEsE L (B 201344 425 A#)

Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai

BB S A

Ms Angela LEE Chung-yan

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Health)
TEBLZT
[REXRY R EmEEHER ()]
Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah

FEES A

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIAE & 7 TIHAEH

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS (from 25.4.2013)
BT (7 2013 4 5 25 A#E)
Miss Winnie NG

hElLt

MrWONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FHEERA

Terms of Reference

Advise on the directions and policies related to the development of
Business Support Services and Environmental Protection to best support
clinical services delivery in the Hospital Authority;

Review and monitor the annual capital expenditure plan approved by
the Hospital Authority Board;

Review and advise on the implementation and monitoring of Capital
Works Projects in the Hospital Authority;

Review and advise on the new initiatives in Business Support Services
such as improvements in supply chain management, equipment
management, strategic outsourcing and public-private-partnership of
non-core functions, and the development of supporting services for
revenue generation;

Advise on the adoption of better practices and industry innovations
related to the planning and delivery of Business Support Services and
implementation of Capital Works Projects in the Hospital Authority; and
Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to business support services and capital expenditure
projects and other areas under the purview of the Committee.
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Focus of Work in 2013-14

In 2013-14, the Supporting Services Development Committee met four
times to fulfil its Terms of Reference, mainly to advise on the directions and
policies related to the development of Business Support Services and Capital
Planning to best support clinical service delivery in HA. It reviewed reports on
improvement of Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Service, hospital security
services, guidance for mixed-gender wards, and enhancement of supply chain
services to clinical users in clusters. The Committee also followed through the
replacement of medical and engineering equipment in 2013-14 and the plan
for 2014-15, the implementation of the Enterprise Resources Planning System
for pharmaceutical supplies, the progress of advertising services and the
strategies for drug procurement and supplies. It revisited the key operational
risks in relation to business support services, pharmaceutical supplies and
Capital Planning Department. It also considered the scope of work of a
consultancy review of HA's procurement strategies and Manual, and a report
on supporting service contracts operated by Non-Government Organisations
in HA, and monitored the progress on outsourcing Shum Wan Laundry.

The Committee also considered the formulation of the annual capital
expenditure plan and one-off grant for minor works projects, and regular
reports on the progress of major capital works projects. It reviewed reports
on the implementation of Mandatory Building Energy Code in HA hospitals,
enhancement of biomedical engineering services, facilities related incident
response plans, and an update on barrier free access to HA facilities. It also
endorsed the findings of a performance review of HA's Term Contract System,
and supported the proposals of combined heat and power application for
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital and application of B5 biodiesel for HA
boilers. It received a progress report from the Environmental Working Group,
commented on the proposed columbaria near Pok Oi Hospital and reviewed
the regular progress reports from the Capital Works Sub-Committee which
was established under the Committee to oversee and advise on capital works /
project related items.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-

assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Membership of Hospital Governing Committees

ES == AN = =
BB oZTETNE

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
HE X TWEHRIITRERR

Chairman © RtRevDrThomas SOO Yee-po, JP
EE BIAREH
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERNE Bt B RITEARSERK
Hospital Chief Executive
BT e
Members © MrDerek CHAN Man-foon
RE PR E A4
Rev Ben CHANG Chun-wa
SRIREEARAM
Mr CHEUNG Wing-fai, MH
REIB S A
Ms Michelle CHOW Yan-wai
ARBELZ L
Mr Richard FUNG Lap-chung
v eb vt
Ms KO Sui-fun
S
Mr Michael LAl Kam-cheung, BBS, JP (from 27.6.2013)
TR (12013 6 A 27 HEE)
Mr Roger LEE Chee-wah
Dr Pamela LEUNG, JP
REAIRE
Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
FEFREE
Rev Dr LI Ping-kwong, SBS
RS AED
MrWilson MOK Yu-sang
Lt-Col Samuel PHO Xuyen-tam (up to 23.6.2013)
B LR (BZE2013F6 F23H)
Rev PO Kam-cheong
D=Ll
Mr Herman TSOI Hak-chiu
ERMBLE
DrWONG Fook-yee
ITREML
Ms Peggy WONG Pik-kiu, MH, JP

HEREBLL
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Bradbury Hospice
BEEZEEDI

Chairman © DrJoseph LEE Man-ho
xE =3¢
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl E R BITHARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriTAR R
Members © DrHubert CHAN Chung-yee, JP
41 PREZREL
Miss Mable Shadalla CHOW Sui-ming
B AR/ N
Dr Amy CHOW Yin-man
FAFEELT
Dr David KAN
EsRER 4
Prof Samantha PANG Mei-che
TEEHIR
Mr SHUM Si-ki
TS A
DrVincent TSE Kin-chuen
R B
Mr Paul WU Wai-keung
[T
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Caritas Medical Centre

BHEERR

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching
SR IEHUX

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITRARSERRK
Hospital Chief Executive
BT e

DrWallace CHAN Chi-ho
REZEL

Mr CHAN Wai-ming, MH
PRIEEASE A

Mr Denis CHANG, JP
SRIERISEE

Mr Augustine CHOI Chi-wa, BBS
Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS, JP
JEZEF A

Dr Daniel FANG Tak-sang
Dokt s

Prof Frederick HO Wing-huen, SBS
AKX

Dr Conrad LAM Kui-shing, JP
MEERKER £

Mr Anthony WONG Luen-kin, JP
AR S A

Rev Michael M CYEUNG, VG
HISEREIEH

Rev Joseph YIM Tak-lung
BRI
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Castle Peak Hospital & Siu Lam Hospital
SUERR/IVEER

Chairman - MrCHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
xE BRIA S &
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriTAR R
Members © MrCHAN How-chi, MH
j54=1 BREZRLE

Dr IPYan-ming, JP (up to 27.8.2013)
HERIRRE (B2 2013F8H27H)
Prof SHAM Pak-chung

PRIEE/CIE

MrTSANG Hin-hong

LRELLE

Ms Deborah WAN Lai-yau, BBS, JP
BEA L

Dr Jimmy WONG Chi-ho, SBS, JP
ESUES

Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP
S B R

Ms Nora YAU Ho-chun, MH, JP
BRI 2+

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014



Appendix 4
By % 4

Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
SHARKES

Chairman © DrAlbert WONG Chi-chiu
*E FEeEE
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl E R BITEARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BT e
Members © Mrs Shelley M CHOW
K& AEBLZL
Mr Hilbert KA Ping-wah
BRELRE
Ms Betty KO Lan-fun
Sl s
Dr Bernard KONG Ming-hei
JLRREREE 4
Mr Peter LI Lan-yiu
FHRLELE
Dr Leonard LI Sheung-wai
FEREL
Ms Janice MORTON
Ryt
Mr Simon TAM Chi-ming
BERLE
Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
gL
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Cheshire Home, Shatin
DEREKESR

Chairman © Mrs Linda WONG LEUNG Kit-wah
xE FRRELL
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARKE Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriTAR R
Members © Mrs Shelley M CHOW
4=} BAERZL
Ms Janet LAl Keng-chok
R4+
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan
FFEHIE
Dr Edward LEUNG Man-fuk
REREE
Dr Pamela LEUNG, JP
ZEAIRE &
Prof Mark MACALPINE
BRI
Mr Paul MAK Chun-nam
HHEREE
Ms Janice MORTON
BEYRL T
Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu
BRI E
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Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay

AOBRBRRABRAREER

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Mr Vivian LEE Wai-man
TENEE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPriT AR

Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong

RERSEE

Mrs FOK Mei-ling (up to 18.3.2014)
EERT T (BZE 20143/ 18H)
Prof LAU Yu-lung

BIFREHR

Mr Renny LIE Ken-jie

FEIR o4

Mr Gordon Gilbert LOCH Han-van
fae s I S A=

Ms Helen LUI Wai-hing

EEWLZ L

Prof Keith LUK Dip-kei

ek [l B

Dr POON Tak-lun, JP (from 30.5.2013)
EIEMER A (120134 5 /30 HRE)
Mrs Elizabeth WONG YEUNG Po-wo
=IEBEML L
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Grantham Hospital
SE8HER

Chairman © MrSteve LAN Yee-fong

*E ERHEE

Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

ERRE Bl E R BITHARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BT e

Members - DrCHENG Chun-ho

B & &R B
Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
A& EE
Prof Karen LAM Siu-ling
LISEE 5
Prof Peggy LAM, GBS, JP
MEZEHIR
Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui
MrWilliam LEUNG Shu-yin
DrVitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
ZoxRiE+
Prof LO Chung-mau, JP
BB HIK
Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF
Prof Sydney TANG Chi-wai
BEEHER
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung
BRI
Mr Rocco YIM Sen-kee, BBS, JP
A
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Haven of Hope Hospital

= B [
zx R 88

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Mr Charles CY CHIU

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl E R BITEARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BT e

Mr CHAU Kwok-woon
R E

Ms Clara CHONG Ming-wah
SR+

DrHO Wai-ip

fAERER

Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
RAEAB AR

Dr LAM Ching-choi, BBS, JP
MIEER B £

Dr Andrew LUK Leung
REsnig+

Mr Eddie NG Ping-yiu
RIRR S

Dr George NG Sze-fuk, GBS, JP
Rttt

Mr Peter WONG Chun-kow
|mIRIRSEE
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Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital

BB ER
Chairman © MrKeith LAM Hon-keung, JP
xE ERE T
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriTAR R
Members © MsKelly CHAN Yuen-sau
j54=] REFH 2+

Ms Pearl HO Chun-yee (up to 31.12.2013)

MY ELL (HZ2013F12531H)

Mr HO Tak-sum, MH

B L EL

Dr KAO Park-ming

S EBEE

Ven KOK Kwong, GBM

BIER

Mr LAl Sze-nuen, BBS, JP

RS E+

Mr Anthony LAM Chi-tat
FEREL

Ms May LAU Mei-mui

EES R

Mr LEE Ka-cheung

FERERL

Mr SHUM Man-to, SBS

X FIE

Ven SIKHin-hung

FELTZEARD

Ven SIKHong-ming

R ERARD

Ven SIK Ku-tay

FERIEERD

Ven SIK Kuan-yun

T EARD

Ven SIKTo-ping

T8 T RRD

Ven SIKYin-chi

R AAD

Dr WONG Kam-chiu, MH

iR L
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Hong Kong Eye Hospital & Kowloon Hospital

BRRNERRNEER

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Mr LO Chung-hing, SBS
EERLE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPriT AR

Mrs Sheilah CHENG CHATJAVAL
PREDIKE 2L+

Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
REWELT

Dr Jennifer CHEUNG NG Chui-yiu
RAREB T

Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
ISEE ST

Ms Mavis LEE Ming-pui
FHMLZ LT

Hon Ms Starry LEE Wai-king, JP
FEREE

Mr Louis LOONG Hon-biu
BEEIREE

Prof Julia TAO LAl Po-wah
FIRRE EHIK

Mr James YIP Shiu-kwong
BIHEE
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Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
BEA TS BEH MR PN

Chairman © MrPhilip TSAIWing-chung, JP
xE EOKBEE
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriTAR R
Members © MrCHAN Kai-ming
4=} BRESAR S &
Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP
(b &t
Dr HO Chung-ping, MH, JP
el P B
Ms Ada LAM Wai-ming
MERLZ L
Dr LI Chi-kong, JP
Mrs Patricia S H LING, MH, JP
MIRFE L
Ms Clara SHEK
ARBXL
Mr Luke WONG Sui-kwong
IR EA
Mrs Irene YAU, JP
FFBHR+
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Kwai Chung Hospital & Princess Margaret Hospital

ERERRITEINERR

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan
HERLZLT

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl E R BITEARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BT e

Prof Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
RS IR

Mr CHAN How-chi, MH
BRERREE

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai
RIEE LA

Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
&S O S

Mr Alan LEE Chi-keung, MH
FEREE

Prof Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP
FEBEE

Dr John LEE Sam-yuen, BBS
F=ELT

Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP

Mr Henry TONG Sau-chai, MH
HIEB R E

Dr Peter TSOITing-kwok
ETEREA

Mr William WONG Kuen-wai, BBS
HIERSE
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Kwong Wah Hospital & TWGHs Wong Tai Sin Hospital
EEBRRRE=FREAEHR

Chairman * Drlna CHAN Un-chan, BBS
*E BREIEZ E+
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl E R BITHARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BT e
Members - MrsViola CHAN MAN Yee-wai, BBS
41 BRXEmELt
Mr Charles CHANG Juo-hwa, BBS
SREEZESE &
Mr CHOW Chun-fai, BBS, JP
IR S £
Mr Frederick FUNG King-wai
i
Ms Maisy HO
faBEL +
Dr John LEE Sam-yuen, BBS
F=riEt
Dr LEE Yuk-lun, JP
FEBIET
Mr Billy LEUNG Ting-yu, BBS
REFTRE
Mrs Katherine MA
BREEL L
Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
BERTE
Mr MOKYing-fan
R4
Mr Stephen NG Chi-wing
Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang
i S b
Ms Wendy TSANG Wan-man
BHRELT
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RWARSEAE
DrYU Yuk-ling
REOEELE
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MaclLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre

SR EE R

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Dr Eric CHIEN Ping

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl E R BITEARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive

BT e

Prof Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
RS IR

Mr Calvin CHAN Man-yin
BRXEEE

MrVincent CHENG Wing-ming
PR RS

Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
SRS HX

Dr Daniel FANG Tak-sang
FiEEREE

Dr Edith MOK KWAN Ngan-hing, MH
REAREEEL

Mr NG Hang-sau

gL

Mr Sammy NG Wai-tong
REZEE

Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man, BBS, JP
w|mE S

Mr David YAU Po-wing

MrYU See-ho

RETEF A
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North District Hospital
R ER

Chairman © Mrs Gloria NG WONG Yee-man, BBS, JP
*E REKELL
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl E R BITHARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriTAR R
Members © Ms CHIANG Lai~yuen, JP
41 ERmAZ L
MrHUNG Siu-ling
AR
Mr LIU Sui-biu
BImi e
Mr MA Ching-nam, JP
BB REE
Ir George PANG Chun-sing, MH
TIRE KL
Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BOoKEEE
MrThomas YIU Kei-chung
s et
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North Lantau Hospital

KBRS RS

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members

4=}

(All from 24.10.2013)

(2551 2013 4F 10 5 24 HF#E)

Ms Sandra LEE Suk-yee, GBS, JP (from 24.10.2013)
gLt (B 20134610 5 24 HE)

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl E R BITHARS AR R

Hospital Chief Executive

BT e

Mr CHAN How-chi, MH

BREZRLE

Ms CHAU Chuen-heung, BBS, JP

AEE L+

Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim

R

Miss Elizabeth LAW Kar-shui, MH

E=18/NE

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, JP

REBHRHK
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Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
EER

Chairman © MrLester Garson HUANG, JP
xE ERASLE
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriTAR R
Members - Father Brian R BARRONS
241 F AR
Mr Michael CHENG Tak-kin, JP
pfm e S A
Dr Gabriel CHOI Kin
EEREL
Mr John J CLANCEY
Dr Nancy FOK
EBRREL
Dr Lawrence LAl Fook-ming, BBS, JP
HE1ERA R
Dr LAM Siu-keung
KR B
Mrs Marigold LAU, SBS, JP
2URe kIR T
Sister Marilu LIMGENCO
MEURIE R
Ms June LO Hing-yu
BEGTLZL
Mr Rex MOK Chung-fai, MH, JP
RihyEsk 4
Rev Edward PHILLIPS
MrYAN Sai-yin
BEEEAE

Sister Marya ZABOROWSKI
BEREEX
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Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

REBABKABITRED

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Mr Lawrence LEE Kam-hung, JP

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriT AR

Ms Ophelia CHAN, BBS

BRE B+

Mr Roland CHOW Kun-chee

B k=

Rev CHU Yiu-ming

PN L

Ms Sophia KAO Ching-chi, SBS, JP (up to4.7.2013)
BRSHT (BE2013F7H4H)
Ms KO Siu-wah, SBS, JP
BEELL

Mr Alex KONG Chack-ho, MH
TR A

Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS
2

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
RIS

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
FEIGREE

DrYvonne LUl Lai-kwan
BEAELT

Rt Rev Dr Thomas SOO Yee-po, JP
BRAREH

Prof TAM Sheung-wai, GBS, JP
AN 6

Mr YEUNG Po-kwan, JP
HEHEE

Dr Dominic YOUNG Ying-nam
L))
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Pok Oi Hospital
BEER

Chairman © MrTSANG Yiu-cheung, MH
xE =hres e
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriTAR R
Members © MrMichael CHAN Kee-huen
241 PRECIE S &
Mrs CHAN LI Lei
BRZEg L+
Dr CHONG Man-yuk
BxEEAs
Ms Yvonne CHUA
MR+
Dr HO Wing-tim
OESV N
Mr Matthew LAM Kin-hong, MH
MRS A
Hon Mr LEUNG Che-cheung, BBS, JP
RERZEE
Mr POON Tak-ming, MH
EEEALAE
Mrs Winnie TAM KEUNG May-chu
BEERZ T
Ms Alice WONG Man-hing
B¢ Joan
Mr Chris YIP Yiu-shing, MH
HERIRSTA
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Prince of Wales Hospital
BERHTR £ &kt

Chairman © MrEdward HO Sing-tin, SBS, JP
*E BESN =
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriT AR
Members : Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP
j54=1 PR e #%
Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, BBS, JP
SRR ST
Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
FEIELL
Ir Prof Peter MOK Kwok-woo
SR M
Ms Maggie NG Miu-man
gt
Ms Winnie NG
hAgL+
Mr Philip WONG Chak-piu, MH
ERIELE
Dr WONG Kwai-lam
EAEMIEL
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Queen Elizabeth Hospital
BERMBER

Chairman © MrJohn LEE Luen-wai, BBS, JP
FE FHHE A
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARKE Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriTAR R
Members - DrElizaCHCHAN, BBS, JP
=] RSB LT
Ms Maisy HO
Al A+
Dr James HWANG Shu-tak, BBS
EEERAE
Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung
BHALLE
Mr Emmanuel KAO Chu-chee
Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai
2B A
Mr David MUI'Ying-yuen, MH, JP
BRERTA
Ms Winnie NG
(i ElisE G
Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun
e e
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Queen Mary Hospital & Tsan Yuk Hospital
BEERREBEERR

Chairman © MrPANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP
xE TIRESSE
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl E R BITEARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriT AR
Members : Prof LEE Sum-ping (up to 31.7.2013)
o 4= TR (BZE2013F7 31 H)

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS (from 9.9.2013)
REFHIR (B 2013F 949 AE)

Mr Carlos LEUNG Sze-hung (up to 17.6.2013)
RAifERAE (BZ2013F6 417 H)

Mr Joseph LO Kin-ching

BlRERE

Mr Lincoln TSO

BiSEE

Prof Amy TSUI Bik-may

BRERHE

Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun

BEART

Prof Richard YU Yue-hong, SBS

RFRHE
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Rehabaid Centre
EEERREIRP L

Chairman © MrThomas Joseph MULVEY, JP
FE BEREE

Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl EIERITRARSERRK
Hospital Chief Executive
BT e
Members © DrJoseph BOSCO
8 Hon Judge Kevin Anthony BROWNE
Ms Kelly CHAN Yuen-sau
REFH L+
Dr Eddie CHOW Siu-lun
ke
Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
ISR
Mr Robin GILL
Mrs Kimberley LAM KWONG Lan-heung
MEEEZ L
Hon Judge Patrick LI Hon-leung
FHREE

IrTSANG Chiu-kwan, JP
BIREFTE

196  Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014



Appendix 4
By % 4

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals
BICBRAMBERE

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

DrVitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
ZoxRiE+

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITRARSERRK
Hospital Chief Executive

BT e

Ms Lillian CHAN Lit-yee

BRAUSE 22t

Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
A& EE

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong
BExHkE

Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2013)
RECHE (BZE2013F11 A30H)
Mr Edwin LEUNG Chung-ching
G it

Dr LIU Ka-ling

Bk

Mr Norman LO Kam-wah, MH, JP
ESREEE

Mr PANG Yuk-ling, SBS, JP
TEEEE

Mr Noshir N SHROFF

Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF

Mr SHUM Choi-sang, SBS, JP
SAHESELE

Ms Anna TANG King-yung, BBS
SR 2+

Mr Richard TANG Yat-sun, BBS, JP
B H & 54

Ms Alice WOO Wai-see
REB&L
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Shatin Hospital
DEBER

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Mrs Yvonne LAW SHING Mo-han, JP
BERMLL

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl E R BITHARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive

BT e

Mr CHIU Man-leong

B %

Dr Andy CHIU Tin-yan

HBRFR &

Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
EREHIR

Mr FONG Cheung-fat

IREEE

Prof LAM Tai-hing, BBS, JP

MR B

Mr LAU Kim-hung

Eillalyidites
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Tai Po Hospital
RiER

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
BB EE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITRARSERRK
Hospital Chief Executive
BT e

Ms Nancy KIT Kwong-chi, JP
BEFLt

Dr Benny KWONG Kai-sing
BRI L

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
Mr LEUNG Wo-ping, JP

Mr Arthur LI Ka-tat
FHESRE

Mr MAN Chen-fai, BBS
NEBEE

DrYIP Ka-chee

HERhE

ERERBER 2013-2014

199



200

Appendix 4
By % 4

Tseung Kwan O Hospital
% BB IR &P

Chairman © DrElizaCHCHAN, BBS, JP
E REEEL
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl E R BITHARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriTAR R
Members © MrRaymond CHAN Wai-man
j54=1 BRIEX A4
Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
RAMEAR X
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan
B RHIR
Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
BEEFE
Ms Nancy TSANG Lan-see, JP
LRt
Dr Hayles WAI Heung-wah
EmES
MrWAN Yuet-cheung, MH, JP
BB L E
MrWONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
THEBEE
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Tuen Mun Hospital

HPIERT

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RERLE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriT AR

Prof Alfred CHAN Cheung-ming, BBS, JP

BRE BRI

MrWilliam CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
PREs8 4

Mr KU Moon-lun

HmB e

Mr Lothar LEE Hung-sham, MH
PHEREE

Mr Edward PONG Chong, BBS, JP
BEEIEE

Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP
BRIt

Mr Boris YEUNG Sau-ming
5L E

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BokE R g
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Tung Wah Hospital/Tung Wah Eastern Hospital/
TWGHs Fung Yiu King Hospital
REERRRERRRRE=FTHZHER

Chairman © Drlna CHAN Un-chan, BBS
ES3 PRI E L
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERANE Bl g R TR E AR
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPri TR B
Members © MrsViola CHAN MAN Yee-wai, BBS
RE PR amErt
Mr Charles CHANG Juo-hwa, BBS
SRIEZES 4
Ms CHENG Lai-king
HERA+
Dr CHU Chor-lup
P UAA -
Mr Frederick FUNG King-wai
SRR
Ms Maisy HO
faBEL+
Mr Henry LAl Hin-wing
RS
Dr John LEE Sam-yuen, BBS
F=jiiEt
Dr LEE Yuk-lun, JP
FEBE L
Mr Billy LEUNG Ting-yu, BBS
BEFRE
Mrs Katherine MA
SREREL L
Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
BEREE
Mr Stephen NG Chi-wing
Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang
S b
MrTONG Chun-wan
EfRERE
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United Christian Hospital
EEHH S &R

Chairman Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members

K&

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITHAESSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPriT AR

Mr Bunny CHAN Chung-bun, GBS, JP
BRIRM ST A4

Bishop Jenny CHAN Kin-lai
PREXEBESE

Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon

PR B4

Mr Clifford King CHIU
BLBExEE

Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse
ARz L

Ms Constance CHOY Hok-man
o3 B G

Mr Paul FAN Chor-ho, SBS, JP
B ERE

Mr FUNG Sau-chung
BB A

Rev Paul KAN Kei-piu

RS A

Dr LAM Kin-wah, BBS
MEEE T+

Mr Marthy LI Chak-kwan
FERLE

Rev LO Lung-kwong

[EREH KD

Dr Danny MA Ping-kwan
SimiREE A

Rev PO Kam-cheong

SR 2 4RAm

Rev Eric SO Shing-yit (up to 30.11.2013)
ARBK R ARED (B Z 20134 11 A30H)
MrThomas TSANG Fuk-chuen
BREEE

Mr Herbert TSOI Hak-kong, BBS, JP
Ml E

Rt Rev Louis TSUI Tsan-sang
REEEH

Mr David WONG Tat-kee

Ms Grace WONG Yuen-ling
ER LT

Dr Alice YUK Tak-fun, JP
ESiEt
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Yan Chai Hospital

CAEEERR

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Mr Raymond LEUNG Cheong-ming, MH
REREE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl E R BITHARS AR R
Hospital Chief Executive

BT e

Mr William CHAU Chun-wing, MH, JP
RIS

Dr Baldwin CHENG Shing-fung
P+

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, JP

BAES A

Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang

e RS

Mr Alex LAN Khong-poh
ERBERE

Mrs Susan SO CHAN Wai-hang
HREREZ L

Mr Alfred WONG Wai-kin
HERLE

MrVincent WONG Yin-shun
FEALEE

MrYAU Kam-ping, MH

Mrs YIMTSUI Yuk-shan

BiR ML
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Membership of Regional Advisory Committees
EEZHEES

Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee

=

EERREEESR

Chairman

*E

Ex-officio members
ERRE

Members
24=1

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
BRITIA ST A

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl RITRASRERRE

Director of Health or his/her representative

BEBERIHRE
Mr AU Lap-sing, MH
LSRR SE A

Mr Stephen Chan Chit-kwai, BBS, JP

BREE 4

Ms Ophelia CHAN, BBS

BRH ezt

Dr Eric CHIEN Ping

Mr Frederick FUNG King-wai
SRR &

MrJONG Koon-sang

G AR

Mr Alex KONG Chack-ho, MH
LEREE

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong
BEEH KL

Dr LAU Chor-chiu, MH
Elbeakall |

DrVitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
ZxBEL

Ms Helen LUI Wai-hing
R

Dr Jeffrey PONG Chiu-fai
REERIEEE

MrTSANG Wing-wah
ToKERLE

Mr Lincoln TSO

IS nAE

Prof Amy TSUI Bik-may
IREEHIR

Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
Bt

Prof Richard YUEN Man-fung
R B

MrYUNG Chi-ming, BBS
SERLESE
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Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee
NEBOBHESS

Chairman © MrsYvonne LAW SHING Mo-han, JP (upto 30.11.2013)
£33 BREWaL (HE2013F11 A30H)
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan (from 01.12.2013)
T HHIR (B 2013412 51 BFEE)
Ex-officio members © Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE Bl EIERITHAERSEREK
Director of Health or his/her representative
BEBBRIEREK
Members © MrCHAN Kai-wai
K& PRAEE A4
Ms CHAU Chuen-heung, BBS, JP
AEELZ L+
Mr Michael CHENG Tak-kin, JP
R4
Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching
iR 7 IEZR
Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
REWELT
Mr Charles CY CHIU
Mr CHOW Chun-fai, BBS, JP
IR 4
Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse
ARzELZ T
Mr CHOY Chak-hung
Mr HO Tak-sum, MH
fAfELEL
Mr HO Yin-fai
I BB A
Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung
EfRELE
Ms Nancy LAM Chui-ling, MH
MR
Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
MK £
Ms LAM Yuen-pun
& 22+
MrThomas Joseph MULVEY, JP
BEREE
Mr SHUM Siu-hung
LS A
Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang
MrWAN Yuet-cheung, MH, JP
BB E
Mr Luke WONG Sui-kwong
0P it
DrWONG Yee-him
mUAREB A
Mrs YIMTSUI Yuk-shan
iR Tz
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New Territories Regional Advisory Committee

MABRENEEES

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EARKE

Members
24=1

Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS
BErz L

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BREERTHRARIERSE

Director of Health or his/her representative

BEEERIHERE

Mr Daniel CHAM Ka-hung, BBS, JP
HRIESE

Mr FONG Cheung-fat
FREEE

DrHOWing-tim

OEVN=

Mr LAM Tak-leung, MH, JP
MBS

Mr LAU Kwok-fan, MH

IR E) &

Dr Joseph LEE Man-ho
ESET

Mr LEUNG Wo-ping, JP

Mr LI Kwok-ying, BBS, JP

FRIE A

Ir Prof Peter MOK Kwok-woo
REIRHI

Prof Simon NG Siu-man

R SCHHK

Ir George PANG Chun-sing, MH
TIRB R E

Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu
BRI E

Mr Philip WONG Chak-piu, MH
mEREE

Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP
o B AR

Ms Peggy WONG Pik-kiu, MH, JP
HEEL T

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEoRELE
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Membership of the Board of Trustees of the Hospital

Authority Provident Fund Scheme 2013-14
ElREERNEESIEISTEZEETME 2013-14

Chairman © MrJohn LEE Luen-wai, BBS, JP
EE FHHE LA
Trustees © Ms NancyTSE Sau-ling, JP
EREEE EiFSsy e
Mr Peter LO Chi-lik
EENFAE

Ms LAU Ka-shi, BBS (up to 28.2.2014)
Blzmrs it (BZE2014F2H28H)
Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi (from 26.3.2014)
BRI 22+ (/20144 3 A 26 A #E)
Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
BRBRE

Dr WONG Tak-cheung

EHEFEA

Mr Barry NG Kwok-hing

REESESE

Dr Ernest MA Hon-ming

HERE

DrWONG Chi-keung (up to 15.9.2013)
SR EE (B ZE2013F9515H)
DrVincent YEUNG Tok-fai (from 21.10.2013)
SERMBERAE (120134 105 21 AA#E)
Miss Janice TSE Siu-wa, JP

At NE A

Mr Raymond LEE Wing-hung

Mr Alan Howard SMITH, JP
STt A
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Public Feedback Statistics
NRRRi#ET

Complaint / Appreciation Received (1.4.2013 - 31.3.2014)

®RETEEHS (2083F 4818 -2014F38318)

Public Complaints Committee

NBRRFEEE
Nature of cases Number of appeal cases
ER4E FREREF
Medical services B8 & BR TS 206
Staff attitude BB 82E 38
Administrative procedure 172 7 33
Others E A, 12
Total number of appeal cases handled [EI2 iR ARAH 289

Hospital Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics

BRESRBR EEGE

Complaint Feedback  Appreciation

Nature of complaint / feedback/ appreciation cases received received received
B/ BREBEARNEE RFEF BERYT HEYT
Medical services B8 & BR 15 1,520 3,982 18,159
Staff attitude B B &5 549 2,568 9,302
Administrative procedure T2+ 397 2675 1,723
Overall performance 8K 38 165 1,825 818
Others E A 22 592 12402
Total number of hospital complaint / feedback / appreciation 2,653 11,642 42,404
BRRFRBEREBEH

GOPC* Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics

LZERPDDIIREBR EBGE

Complaint Feedback  Appreciation

Nature of complaint / feedback/ appreciation cases received received received
Bk BREBEARKEE RFEF BERYTF EEYT
Medical services &% iR 7% 83 247 1,784
Staff attitude B B 8&/E 72 266 1,301
Administrative procedure 1T 2 5 46 336 15
Overall performance ZEEEKI8 8 94 60
Others E At 10 30 768
Total number of complaint / feedback / appreciation received by GOPC 219 973 4,028

EENPDYMRSBREEAY

* General outpatient clinics
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Statistics of the Controlling Officer's Report
ERABHRSHETET

The Hospital Authority generally achieved its performance targets in 2013-14.  BERERRAK HEEF| 201314 FEMNRBRE BT © 2013-
The volume of patient care activities across the full range of services in 2013-14  14FE S 5m A B EREH E BRI = 8 2012-13 FEAIK

is comparable to the level in 2012-13. AR o
The key activity data in respect of the Hospital Authority are: FABEREERRENEESIEMT
2012-13 2013-14
()  Access to services AJEUR # AR
inpatient services 1¥Bz fR %
no. of hospital beds (as at 31 March) BfitmAZ B (BHE2=A=+—H)
general (acute and convalescence) E A% (£JE R EE) 20,845 21,132
infirmary BER} 2,041 2,041
mentally ill F&#p%}E 3,607 3,607
mentally handicapped &5 FE %} 660 660
overall 25+ 27,153 27,440
ambulatory and outreach services A B & INE IR
accident and emergency (A&E) services =E = IR
percentage of A&E patients within target waiting time
£ B EHREREANERENSERANE DX
triage | (critical cases - 0 minutes) (%) & 128531 (fEFAEZE — 05 ) (%) 100 100
triage Il (emergency cases - 15 minutes) (%) % 1585 (BE2EE —1596) (%) 97 9
triage Il (urgent cases - 30 minutes) (%) % &R (B2MEAZR —30 95 ) (%) 84 75
specialist outpatient services ERIFI2 IR
median waiting time for first appointment at specialist clinics
BRI P EAE SR 1R A B P A 2K
first priority patients 88 —B LD HA < 1 week < 1 week
second prioirty patients £ —BEHZRA 5 weeks 5 weeks
rehabilitation and geriatric services B8 & & AR AR
no. of community nurses 4t &L E 446 449
no. of geriatric day places & A%} A 2k £ 58 619 619
psychiatric services #a18RHIR T
no. of community psychiatric nurses #&t8RHt B2 8 127 130
no. of psychiatric day places #5##%} B i &b & 58 889 889

210  Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014



Appendix 8
B 8% 8

2012-13 2013-14
(I) Delivery of services Fr#R ##YBR %
in-patient services X5z R %
no. of discharges & deaths {EFt A Hibt AR RIET A2
general (acute and convalescence) @i} (S0E REEE) 1,005,918 1,005,483
infirmary &R} 3,364 3,301
mentally il f&4%E} 17,155 17,662
mentally handicapped & E#} 568 552
overall &5t 1,027,005 1,026,998
no. of patient days & A{ZFt B X
general (acute and convalescence) E @k} (SUE KEEE) 5,605,576 5,798,056
infirmary &R} 504,845 505,244
mentally ill 979,880 969,898
mentally handicapped & & #} 207,909 205,890
overall #85t 7,298,210 7,479,088
bed occupancy rate(%) IRREAZE (B5H )
general (acute and convalescence) &R} (B & FEIE) 85% 87%
infirmary && &} 86% 87%
mentally il #51¢ 7} 75% 74%
mentally handicapped &R} 87% 87%
overall 85t 84% 85%
average length of stay (days) * ¥ E bR RE (H) *
general (acute and convalescence) EiRE} (B M FRIE) 56 5.8
infirmary &} 128 127
mentally il #51¢ 7} 63 60
mentally handicapped &R} 838 443
overall &5t 7.5 74
ambulatory and outreach services H & & INRIRE
day inpatient services B FEI{ERTH A RS
no. of discharges and deaths T AR RILT Ak 516,127 542,333
ARE services &fE E RIS
no. of attendances Bt AR 2253310 2,241,006
no. of attendances per 1000 population &F AAMEEZ AKX 315 312
no. of first attendances for BIXFEZ AR D i
triage | 55 15851l 19,593 19,358
triage Il 25 11 48 51) 38,832 41,136
triage Il Z5 111 585 660,086 674,841
specialist outpatient services EEFT2 IR
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) new attendances 682,055 704,512
HRIPIZ (FRIR) FTRERZ AR
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) follow-up attendances 6,203,400 6,336,371
ERPIZ (BRIK) BAEBZ AR
total no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) attendances 6,885,455 7,040,883

EMPI2 (BRR) M2 RAR
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2012-13 2013-14
primary care services £ /8 B 5 iR 7%
no. of general outpatient attendances E@EIFIZHZ AR 5,633,407 5,813,706
no. of family medicine specialist clinic attendances REEE 2 HERIPIZHZ AR 277897 287,182
total no. of primary care attendances ZEBEZ R AR 5911,304 6,100,888
rehabilitation and palliative care services F18 J 4F #& i 12 AR 75
no. of rehabilitation day and palliative care day attendances 80,653 79,483
BR1E I A7 1532 BRI RIS B2 AR
no. of home visits by community nurses 4 B TR a7 X2 843,144 853,821
no. of allied health (community) attendances SR EE & (1t1&) Fe2 AR 31,850 32,141
no. of allied health (outpatient) attendances E 858 (F92) st 2,268,187 2,329,162
geriatric services #& ARHRTS
no. of outreach attendances # Mg BR 7% AR 620,068 633,416
no. of geriatric elderly persons assessed for infirmary care service 1,723 1,701
BEXBEBERGIZNREE AH
no. of geriatric day attendances Z ARt A &R BZ AR 139,585 137,695
no. of Visiting Medical Officer attendances # X B2 & £ 6 AR 111,529 116,439
psychiatric services fEEHR S
no. of psychiatric outreach attendances & X518 RIS Mg BRI AR 238,796 260,146
no. of psychiatric day hospital attendances #5#%} B BB 32 AR 219,069 215,375
no. of psychogeriatric outreach attendances ¥ %2 AS18RIIMNE BRI AR 96,437 97,995
()  Quality of services R EE
no. of hospital deaths per 1000 population A &F A A FRAIEER LT AZA 32 33
unplanned readmission rate within 28 days for general in-patients(%) 10.2% 10.5 %

LBEHER R AL ETIZ 28 RAARKLTRNB AL E (A5 )
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2012-13 2013-14
(IV) Cost of services FRI B2~
cost distribution &5 7
cost distribution by service types (%) &R IR EI D BIKAD M E DK (%)
inpatient =Bt AR TS 54.8 54.7
ambulatory and outreach R & RIMNE R 452 453
cost by service types per 1 000 population (HKSMn)
BT AORBRBERNE DSORGB A (BEBET)
inpatient =Bt AR TS 34 36
ambulatory and outreach R & &IMNE R 28 30
cost of services for persons aged 65 or above 65 &8k LA _E A T &I BRIE KA
share of cost of services (%) RIEFIIR AR AREY A 5 %K (%) 455 460
cost of services per 1 000 population (HKSMn) 8F AR B REK AR CEB B ET) 20.6 213
unit costs B KA
inpatient services 1¥5 R %
cost per inpatient discharged (HKS) &% HiBtm AR A (FB7T)
general (acute and convalescent) EiBEt (S & EEE) 21,140 22,610
infirmary &1} 204,200 213,800
mentally il #5197} 122,570 124,400
mentally handicapped & FE#} 445,090 481,240
cost per patient day (HKS) A& B (F7T)
general (acute and convalescent) EiBHt (SAE &k EE) 4,180 4330
infirmary E&ER} 1,360 1,400
mentally ill #5197} 2,150 2,270
mentally handicapped & FE#} 1,220 1,290
ambulatory and outreach services A & R SNE IR
cost per A&E attendance (HKS) 2IEEFRZERK A (BT) 935 1,040
cost per specialist outpatient attendance (HKS) BERIPIZ &R ZERKA (FT) 1,050 1,080
cost per general outpatient attendance (HKS) E@EIFIZ2 @R AERI AR (FBTT) 360 385
cost per family medicine specialist clinic attendance (HK$) 975 1,010
REESHBPIZBRAERNRA (BT)
cost per outreach visit by community nurse (HKS) 1 R+ &R INBRIEHIAR A (L) 425 450
cost per psychiatric outreach attendance (HKS) FE#ESMNR IRIE BRI A (FBT) 1,350 1,350
cost per geriatric day attendance (HK$) 2 A%t B B &R &R RBHKAR (ET) 1,730 1,840
fee waivers ~ &R % ~
percentage of Comprehensive Social Security Assistance (CSSA) fee waiver (%) 203 20.2
FATSRERED GR) WEREE D E %)
percentage of non-CSSA fee waiver (%) JEAR IR W E R 2 B 9 % (%) 4.2 48
Notes: B
& Derived by dividing the sum of length of stay of inpatients by the  * R{EF A )\EVHTF%@%ZB?LMH;TE’JEBE A BT K
corresponding number of inpatients discharged and treated. EXBRABGTE
A Refers to the standardised mortality rate covering inpatient and day A  ERERERE T2 (R & HERART ABNE
patient deaths in Hospital Authority hospitals. It is derived by applying ERHTER - FABTRERBERE —FERFRSH
the age-specific mortality rate in the Hospital Authority in a particular BFET R - ERRMEE] A DMt & dH R -
year to a "standard" population.
~  Refers to the amount waived as percentage to total charge. ~ EREFREGEREBENEHE -
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Statistics on Number of Beds, Inpatient, Accident &

Emergency and Outpatient Services in 2013-14
2013-14 FERKRHE - EFRRE - EZRBKRPIZRIFHRSTEHT

Inpatient Family
No. of Total IP  Inpatient bed average Medicine  Total Allied
hospital beds &DP  occupancy length Total SOP Specialist Health
(asat31  discharges rate of stay Total (clinical) Clinic  (Outpatient) General

March2014%  and deaths (%) (days) A&E attendances™ attendances’ attendances  Outpatient

BRAREE tRRABER EREA EIRHA attendances  HNFIP FEBB EBEA attendances™
Institution (BE2014F FALRARR  BRERE  THERERH SEE (&%) N2 (MRIRY EENMR
K 3831R) RTAY (%) (B)  #XPAR RPEARM RPAR BARE BBARY
Hong Kong East Cluster B RERHE
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok 240 298 830 166.7 - - - 156
ERAERERR
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 1633 138,724 86.2 56 152332 560842 58,154 125292 393573
RELEXAPIZER
Ruttonjee Hospital and 633 26379 858 68 80806 126609 10,446 92,108 138483
Tang Shiu Kin Hospital
BERER RHERER
St John Hospital &Ml 87 3,184 644 53 10,712 81 - 7026 32643
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RZR It 278 8,757 855 137 - 104476 - 28,776 23254
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital Z1741 56 160 158 930 3254
Sub-total /i 3,031 177,500 86.0 7.1 243,850 792,008 68,600 253,358 587,953
Hong Kong West Cluster % 5 FE &84
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at 133 3290 527 87 - 20,182 - 27N
Sandy Bay
AORRERERARERR
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King 272 3241 69.1 173 - 458 - 493
Hospital
RE-RSEHER
Grantham Hospital & Bt & 3N 12934 680 117 - 37,708 - 2828
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 110 1,104 604 215 - 324 - 259
EREERR
Queen Mary Hospital EEZ: 1,702 139,3% 765 46 131577 718,348 21151 143,637 357316
Tung Wah Hospital RE &R 550 25,864 801 141 - 45,781 - 5706 32,781
Tsan Yuk Hospital EE Bt 3 178 - - - 1.3 - 5031
Sub-total /it 3,142 186,007 73.6 6.4 131,577 844,024 21,151 187,456 390,097
Kowloon Central Cluster N & %48
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital 324 7526 832 179 - 12,058 - 13,863 46,944
BERAER
Hong Kong Eye Hospital A B2 45 8221 436 50 - 224533 - 19450
Kowloon Hospital 11828 1335 15,589 840 265 - 83425 - 144221
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (715 1,844 171,257 923 54 195,280 696,622 7,105 214228 518481
Rehabaid Centre' EEZH &R - - - - - 235 - 2743
Sub-total /it 3,548 202,593 879 84 195280 1,016,873 7,105 414,505 565,425
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Appendix 9

By gk 9
Inpatient Family
No. of Total IP  Inpatient bed average Medicine  Total Allied
hospital beds &DP  occupancy length Total SOP Specialist Health
(asat31  discharges rate of stay Total (clinical) Clinic  (Outpatient) General

March2014)  and deaths (%) (days) A&E attendances™ attendances’ attendances  Outpatient

BRERER (EREABAR fERHA fERFA  attendances  ENFAY FEES E%Eﬁ attendances™
Institution (BE2014F BALERARR  #REAE  THARKH SEE (&%) NP RIRD  EENMR
He 3A31A) RTAZ (%) (B)  #@XBAR RPEBARM RPAR %}\”” BPAR
Kowloon East Cluster NEER Bl %A
Haven of Hope Hospital EE & 461 6,39 882 22 9359 5026
Tseung Kwan O Hospital BERER 623 49,503 939 50 135270 270,855 252 111,278 319,023
United Christian Hospital EE#E:& B 1403 112133 854 48 188433 486,783 55422 21449 602639
Sub-total /i 2,487 168,030 88.0 5.7 323,703 766,997 55,674 330,800 921,662
Kowloon West Cluster /i3 Bt 48
Caritas Medical Centre E & 1,203 55651 863 72 136813 356,775 1252 70651 283847
Kwai Chung Hospital 2 E 0 920 4217 76.7 62.1 218,575 31,246
Kwong Wah Hospital BEZ 1,206 94,783 76.7 44 140983 354,146 2626 165,129 208,347
North Lantau Hospital’ 3tk L1 8z 26931 358 158 7817 29,580
Qur Lady of Maryknoll Hospital E& &5 236 10,230 650 82 65,846 1007 33690 424,552
Princess Margaret Hospital #5578 1753 142,650 97.1 54 149,645 428713 13349 108799 393991
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin 511 7,882 906 259 900
Hospital
RE-REAIER
Yan Chai Hospital CE &k 800 55173 820 44 140,713 210,089 2655 85492 262,765
Sub-total /it 6,629 370,586 84.5 6.7 595,085 1,634,502 21,047 503,724 1,603,082
New Territories East Cluster
FRREREE
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 536 53273 86.7 44 136913 236,136 4806 88,767 237450
RERMPRBIZER
Bradbury Hospice A EEZEEH 26 637 908 137 6 886
Cheshire Home, Shatin > B K&k 304 152 712 5990 573
North District Hospital Jt & % 589 42,642 %9 51 112,777 170,144 5,046 61,683 264526
Prince of Wales Hospital BT T Blt 1518 146,554 86.2 50 144,581 691,926 49906 178,022 439,638
Shatin Hospital » &% 553 9410 920 183 553 979
Tai Po Hospital A%l 992 9780 833 255 374 441
Sub-total /)it 4,518 262,448 86.7 74 394,271 1,099,139 59,758 331,351 941,614
New Territories West Cluster
FRBRRHS
Castle Peak Hospital 1L 1156 2753 683 1437 139,153 23813
Pok Oi Hospital EE &5 567 39451 94.2 6.0 131,012 91,750 32123 63,000
Siu Lam Hospital MEE 500 454 98 4633
Tuen Mun Hospital 5 &b 1,862 159,509 9.0 56 226,228 656437 21,724 221,155 803873
Sub-total /)it 4,085 202,167 88.1 10.0 357,240 887,340 53,847 307,968 803,873
GRAND TOTAL £zt 27,440 1,569,331 85.2 74 2,241,006 7,040,883 287,182 2,329,162 5,813,706

EREEBFR 2013-2014
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Appendix 9

By &% 9

Notes:

1. Rehabaid Centre and Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
are Hospital Authority institutions with specific functions but have no
hospital bed.

2. Number of hospital beds as at 31 March 2014 is based on the Annual
Survey on Hospital Beds in Public Hospitals 2013/14.

3. Outpatient attendances for different clinics are grouped under respective
hospital management.

4. Specialist Outpatient (SOP) (clinical) attendances include attendances
from nurse clinics in SOP setting.

5. Total Allied Health (Outpatient) attendances exclude follow-up
consultations provided by the Medical Social Service Department and
“joint clinic” doctor consultations provided by the Optometry and
Orthoptics Department.

6. General Outpatient (GOP) attendances include attendances for doctor
consultations, attendances from nurse clinics in GOP setting and
attendances in related healthcare reform initiative programmes in
primary care.

7. North Lantau Hospital has commenced patient services in phases since
24 September 2013.

Data prepared in June 2014.

Abbreviations:

IP — Inpatient

DP — Day Patient

A&E — Accident & Emergency
SOP — Specialist Outpatient

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2013-2014
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Appendix 10
By &% 10

Statistics on Community and
Rehabilitation Services in 2013-14
2013-14 FEMRKRRERFZHSTEF

Rehabilitation
Psycho-  Community Visiting  Allied Health day&palliative Geriatricday ~ Psychiatric

Homevisitsby ~ Psychiatric geriatric Geriatric Medical ~ (Community) careday hospital  day hospital
community outreach outreach  Assessment Officer attendances’ attendances attendances® attendances
nurses attendances'  attendances’ Service’ attendances’ EBER BERSR EAR BEN
Institution HE  BEEEN BIEARWR HEEA BRIDEE (HE) EEAM REER AEER
He ELFHAY MREBAR' NRERBARS  HEREE RRAR FPAR° BERDAR APARS BBAR
Hong Kong East Cluster B& RERHE
Cheshire Homne, Chung Hom Kok - - - - - 44
EHAERERR
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 98512 23503 11,144 - - 776 269 16,275 30,209
RELERATRER
Ruttonjee Hospital and - - - 122329 2281 1793 4943 18,308
Tang Shiu Kin Hospital
EHRER R ER R
St John Hospital FME 5 4868 - - - - 3
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RER 5t - - - - - 83 28627
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital &1 &l - - - - - 8 - 2307
Sub-total it 103,380 23,503 11,144 122,329 22,281 2,707 33,839 36,890 30,209
Hong Kong West Cluster % 5 FE &84
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at - - - - - 6
Sandy Bay
AOERERERARERR
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King - - - 39,5530 11458 1,687 - 5779
Hospital
REZh SRR
Grantham Hospital £ 2% &k - - - - - 182 4338
Maclehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre - - - - - 67 13373
REEERR
Queen Mary Hospital EEZ: 57877 19129 13,760 - - 1,026 - - 18,143
Tung Wah Hospital R - - - - - 225 7790 6,101
Sub-total it 57,877 19,129 13,760 39,530 11,458 3,193 25,501 11,880 18,143
Kowloon Central Cluster LT &R
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital - - - - - 147 2258
Bzt
Kowloon Hospital 1828 68,594 18153 8,734 39,251 5250 1,688 824 2473 10334
Queen Elizabeth Hospital 17 15 - - - 31,09 6,767 1481 - 10390
Rehabaid Centre &R E R R & IR 1y - - - - - 890
Sub-total /3t 68,594 18,153 8,734 70,345 12,017 4,206 3,082 12,863 10,334
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Appendix 10

By &% 10
Rehabilitation
Psycho-  Community Visiting ~ Allied Health day &palliative ~ Geriatricday ~ Psychiatric
Homevisitsby ~ Psychiatric geriatric Geriatric Medical ~ (Community) careday hospital  day hospital
community outreach outreach  Assessment Officer attendances’ attendances attendances® attendances
nurses attendances'  attendances’ Service’  attendances’ EBEER BERER EAN BEN
Institution HE  EIREN EIBARER HBEA BEIDEBE (HE) BERH AEER AEEKR
He FLRTRE NRREAR' NRREARS HHREE BEAR BRAR  BEIDAR APARS BEAR
Kowloon East Cluster NEER B %A
Haven of Hope Hospital EE & 30,725 5924 1,743 575 1223 4834
Tsang Kwan O Hospital B &# 9%
United Christian Hospital 2214 2t 133,546 29,782 10,092 34,300 10,754 1,224 2812 19,834 31516
Sub-total /i 164,271 29,782 10,092 40,224 12,497 1,893 4,035 24,668 31,516
Kowloon West Cluster fiEF B H 4
Caritas Medical Centre AE &z 78411 42,001 4443 113 1,204 13462
Kwai Chung Hospital 2 E 0 74051 27391 2777 62,859
Kwong Wah Hospital EZ &kt 37927 46,698 12411 991 8,897
North Lantau Hospital” 3t AL BB - 897 14
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital E& &kt 44928 19076 148 984
Princess Margaret Hospital #5531 90,639 40,678 5482 855 959 13819
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin 71 7697
Hospital
RE=HEAILRR
Yan Chai Hospital (=55 41,082 6,158 255 4012
Sub-total /it 251,905 74,051 27,391 190,432 28,494 5,224 3,147 47,887 62,859
New Territories East Cluster
FRRBREE
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 36,325 872 27,207 7,044 2486 246 10672 8,056
RERMPRBIZER
Bradbury Hospice A EBE &R 127 317
Cheshire Home, Shatin ) B K # & 4
North District Hospital 1t & % 36,246 10,697 7216 28822 6816 3266 298 9972 11926
Prince of Wales Hospital Bl F T 2 54341 21,584 8292 4291
Shatin Hospital > & 20,381 5879 17 5790 13,868 17,079
Tai Po Hospital AE&H 4,766 Iy 1 7,064
Sub-total /i 126,912 35,844 14,208 77,613 22,152 10,302 6,651 34,512 44,725
New Territories West Cluster
HRARREE
Castle Peak Hospital 1L 59,684 12,666 850 12,156
Pok Oi Hospital &% &/ 2441 497
Tuen Mun Hospital 5 &b 80,882 92,203 7540 3269 3228 13,995 5433
Sub-total /it 80,882 59,684 12,666 94,644 7,540 4,616 3,228 13,995 17589
GRAND TOTAL #3t 853,821 260,146 97,995 635,117 116,439 32141 79,483 182,695 215,375
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Appendix 10
B &% 10

Notes:

1. Psychiatric outreach attendances refer to total number of outreach
attendances and home visits. It includes Recovery Support Program,
Personalized Care Program for patients with Severe Mental lliness (SMI)
and services provided by Intensive Care Team.

2. Psychogeriatric outreach attendances refer to total number of outreach
attendances, home visits and consultation-liaison attendances.

3. For Community Geriatric Assessment Service, the activity refers to total
number of outreach attendances and geriatric elderly persons assessed
for infirmary care service.

4. Visiting Medical Officer attendances refer to the attendances receiving
services provided to elderly persons living in Resident Care Homes for
the Elderly under the Visiting Medical Officers Scheme introduced in
2003/04.

5. Allied Health (Community) attendances exclude follow-up consultations
provided by the Medical Social Service Department.

6. Geriatric day hospital attendances include attendances in Integrated
Discharge Support Program (IDSP).

7. North Lantau Hospital has commenced patient services in phases since
24 September 2013.

The activity performed in different centers and teams are grouped under
respective hospital management.
Data prepared in June 2014
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Appendix 11(q)
B 5% 11(q)

Manpower Position - by Cluster and Institution
AFikie — R IEHa R B0 18

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2014)"*3

ZE2BMASHE (20145F3 B31 BEF)">

Institution Medical Nursing Allied Health Others Total
BiE BR EE EHER Hity et
Hong Kong East Cluster 7 £ 5 8 B 43 605.36 2,443.07 746.21 3,801.20 7,595.84
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok &) A2 K #E &R 2.00 56.17 10.00 124.00 192.17
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 471.59 1,616.43 497.22 2,408.20 4,993.44
KRB LBRABIT RS

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 2204 & B 2 B2 2 ¢ 85.24 506.03 163.00 714.00 1,468.27
St. John Hospital &M gk 531 33.69 8.50 79.00 12650
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital SREE Rt 3922 180.30 63.49 337.00 620.01
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital &7 88 2.00 50.45 4,00 139.00 195.45
Hong Kong West Cluster & & 75 82 B 48 655.83 2,552.81 838.05 3,395.56 7,442.25
Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital 11.00 65.77 37.80 124.00 23857
RARBERABRARERR

Grantham Hospital & 23t 5 29.00 207.50 50.60 275.00 562.10
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 28325518 FRf 1.21 34.00 27.00 78.00 14021
Queen Mary Hospital 35 &t ° 557.95 1,859.97 622.05 2,385.56 542553
TWGHSs Fung Yiu King Hospital 523 = Bz 5 2 A 6z 16.46 76.23 2560 143.00 261.29
Tung Wah Hospital S5t 40.21 309.34 75.00 390.00 814.55
Kowloon Central Cluster 13 + B2 B 48 716.59 3,175.24 977.67 4,437.97 9,307.47
HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service 6.00 84.62 67.00 248.00 405.62
FEATTERMARET L

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital & & #24 Ehr 11.00 144.00 39.00 174.54 368.54
Hong Kong Eye Hospital &/#REH 2B 34.92 7328 18.00 160.02 286.22
Kowloon Hospital /LEE &t 61.35 751.62 187.67 951.24 1,951.88
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (A FI B85 603.32 212172 653.00 2,891.17 6,269.21
Rehabaid Centre EEHE R EJRF O 0.00 0.00 13.00 13.00 26.00
Kowloon East Cluster J1#8 5 B B 5 48 656.60 2,474.19 685.18 3,144.17 6,960.14
Haven of Hope Hospital % & %8z 21.71 274.20 58.64 374.60 729.15
Tseung Kwan O Hospital 15 R &R 162.13 626.94 176.40 71948 1,684.95
United Christian Hospital B &%t & 5 472.76 1,573.05 450.14 2,050.09 4,546.04
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Appendix 11(q)

By &% 11(a)
No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2014)"**
ZRZBABHKE (201453 A31 BEF)"™
Institution Medical Nursing Allied Health Others Total
B BR = EHER Hith it
Kowloon West Cluster J1.3E 7 &8 bt i 49 1,371.79 5,336.66 1,478.81 6,767.89 14,955.15
Caritas Medical Centre FRE 26 243.89 811.77 223.50 1,066.54 2,345.70
Kwai Chung Hospital 258 2 69.49 608.48 110.80 57337 1,362.14
Kwong Wah Hospital BEZE S 34197 1,180.17 32097 1,448.38 3,291.49
North Lantau Hospital 1t AU 1 255 19.00 55.00 48.00 141.00 263.00
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital Z2&HE&Rx 77.55 259.48 85.04 363.38 78545
Princess Margaret Hospital 3521 2kt 41795 1,558.10 477.00 1,990.88 444393
TWGHs Wong Tai Sin Hospital 52 =B & A Il & Ft 23.00 239.62 4350 301.10 607.22
Yan Chai Hospital =/ %55z 178.94 624.04 170.00 883.24 1,856.22
New Territories East Cluster ¥7 5% 5 Bz Bt 48 950.29 3,706.97 1,018.36 4,881.48 10,557.10
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 146.85 550.51 17836 880.49 1,756.21
MR R e AT K58
Bradbury Hospice B EIRE&HH ) 3.02 26.25 5.00 26.00 60.27
Cheshire Home, Shatin B Z& K #E & 2.00 88.57 8.00 134.00 23257
North District Hospital Jt[& &P 17243 637.05 173.00 77741 1,759.89
Prince of Wales Hospital B FRH 35 £ B8 B 54136 1,743.18 522.00 2,173.05 4,979.59
Shatin Hospital > H &&Bx 42.62 31335 70.00 409.53 83550
Tai Po Hospital A3 &b 42.00 348.06 62.00 481.00 933.06
New Territories West Cluster #7577 8§ B B 49 727.31 3,027.03 796.55 4,391.49 8,942.38
Castle Peak Hospital & 1L B&F5 7732 571.05 91.00 650.51 1,389.88
Pok Oi Hospital 1& % &&Fx 105.83 424.39 118.31 610.00 1,258.53
Siu Lam Hospital /MEE&F 3.00 129.97 2.00 300.00 43497
Tuen Mun Hospital FEF9 &Rz 541.16 1,901.62 585.24 2,830.98 5,859.00
Total # 5t 5,683.77 22,715.97 6,540.83 30,819.76 65,760.33
Note: i
1. This figure excludes 1846.42 staff in the Hospital Authority Head Office. 1. ERFTEEBRERAMEERN 1846402 EHE -
2. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) basis includes all full-time 2.  AFRIZRAZBAS i BERERAEEE LT
& part-time staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and BEEE  SORBRERE -
temporary.
3. Manpower figures of individual hospitals/institutions include 3. REBRAFHECIEAESBRELMERBERNEIE
management staff providing hospital and cluster-wide services. AB °
4. Manpower for HK Tuberculosis, Chest & Heart Diseases Association 4.  &BHEBUMEWEHREREHAFELEE)EHE
(8 staff) is included in Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospital. Afiﬁ?é&é‘ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁlﬂ ®
5. Manpower providing services for Tsan Yuk Hospital is included in Queen 5. HBEBRABRBAFEHABEBER -
Mary Hospital.
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Appendix Ti(b)
M52 (o)

Manpower Position - by Staff Group
AFikin — ZmE 8RB0 %

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2009-10 - 2013-14 *

EEEZBABHAE*
2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Medical &5
Consultant BAF B4 590.1 630.5 699.3 729.2 761.3
Senior Medical Officer/Associate Consultant 1,2415 1,295.5 1,504.3 1,639.1 1,732.7
SIS LY==k
Medical Officer/Resident(excluding Visiting Medical Officer) 31474 3,109.8 2,945.1 2,875.1 2,866.3
BY B4 (TRERELE)
Visiting Medical Officer Zl75 % 156 16.1 16.2 16.2 16.0
Intern STt BB B A 277.0 280.0 275.0 280.0 311.0
Senior Dental Officer/Dental Officer 6.3 53 7.0 6.3 8.1
R TR E TR
Medical Total: 5,277.9 5,337.2 5,446.9 5,545.9 5,695.4
ERABAES
Nursing &2
Senior Nursing Officer and above m## TR A E 81.0 81.0 127.0 156.4 174.0
Department Operations Manager &FPI:E EALIR 163.0 163.0 168.0 176.0 181.0
General ZEF} -
Ward Manager/Nurse Specialist/Nursing Officer/ 31616 3,283.1 35255 3,759.6 3,978.1
Advanced Practice Nurse
REEIE/EREL TR ERERM
Registered Nurse FE &+ 11,780.1 11,9713 12,2933 12,7220 13,2580
Enrolled Nurse E&i &+ 2,1994 2,198.7 2,289.8 23725 24250
Midwife/Others BhEE 1=,/ fth 286 246 228 19.2 9.1
Student Nurse/Pupil Nurse/Temporary Undergraduate 487.0 406.1 447.0 436.9 4340
Nursing student
AT EE B ETRE EESEE
Psychiatric f&#F} -
Ward Manager/Nurse Specialist/Nursing Officer/ 4153 436.3 4934 510.5 5325
Advanced Practice Nurse
REEIE/EREL TR ERERM
Registered Nurse FH &+ 1,067.5 1,058.8 1,024.8 1,085.2 1,153.1
Enrolled Nurse E&i &1 473.8 473.0 508.9 578.0 614.2
Student Nurse/Pupil Nurse sEflt i 24 /Z il T 24 9.0 6.0 0.0 00 0.0
Nursing Total: 19,866.3 20,101.8 20,900.6 21,816.3 22,759.0

EEASH
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Appendix 11(b)

M 53 Ti(b)
No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2009-10 - 2013-14 *
ZEEZBABHAE*
2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

Allied Health SR &
Audiology Technician 52 2517 & 9.0 9.0 7.0 7.0 6.0
Clinical Psychologist B /UIBE R 923 100.3 1103 134.0 138.8
Dietitian & &R0 92.2 919 106.1 117.7 127.7
Dispenser BL 428 949.0 971.0 996.6 1,055.1 1,128.5
Medical Technologist/Medical Laboratory Technician 1,148.0 1,175.7 1,221.2 1,270.2 1,3102
B BH B E
Mould Technologist/Mould Laboratory Technician 270 270 27.0 270 26.0
HEERERIN, WEERERIME
Optometrist 12 YAl 320 420 60.0 61.0 67.0
Orthoptist 1% & %5 IE A 120 14.0 13.0 144 144
Occupational Therapist B3 6 2 AD 531.6 572.6 613.1 672.8 698.0
Pharmacist Z&ZIAD 3757 391.7 436.7 487.6 521.7
Physicist #1322 56.0 580 61.0 68.0 710
Physiotherapist #7324 &AM 755.0 7749 8136 8456 869.0
Podiatrist & AJAEERD 24.0 26.8 314 352 349
Prosthetist-Orthotist # BB AN 107.0 105.0 116.0 123.0 126.0
Diagnostic Radiographer/Radiation Therapist 898.0 906.7 924.6 947.2 1,001.6
HRETR, TR ET A AT
Scientific Officer (Medical) BH2F 1E (87%) 65.6 66.9 70.9 75.8 81.8
Speech Therapist = &/aBAT 61.0 585 685 76.5 818
Medical Social Worker B %+t T 210.0 2239 265.0 2819 3015
Dental Technician 7 BHk T & 20 20 20 20 30
Allied Health Total: 5,447.4 5,617.8 5,944.0 6,302.0 6,608.8
ERBRASEG:
Care-related Support Staff FE X &
Health Care Assistant & 5z BR 5 Bh 32 3,283.0 3,087.0 2,878.0 2,6300 2,395.0
Ward Attendant % /% BRT5 & 537.0 4780 400.0 3420 295.0
General Services Assistant/Technical Services Assistant 51332 5661.2 71108 8,076.3 9,446.7

(Care-related)/Theatre Technical Assistant/Patient

Care Assistant
IERISBNIR, B AR A B IR (FER)

Fr = BAMENIR, A BRFS B
Care-related Support Staff Total: 8,953.2 9,226.2 10,388.8 11,048.3 12,136.7
EETEASHELT
Direct Patient Care Total: 39,544.9 40,283.0 42,680.2 44,712.5 47,199.9
EERAREAFEL
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Appendix Ti(b)

B 8% 11(0)
No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2009-10 - 2013-14 *
ZSE2BASHKE*

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Others E At
Chief Executive/Director/Deputy Director/Head 7.0 6.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
THAEE, RERIRE &
Cluster Chief Executive/Hospital Chief Executive 270 270 270 26.0 26.0
BIruLeE BT IR R
Chief Manager/Senior Manager/Executive Manager/ 87.6 86.6 89.6 92.0 95.0

General Manager

BITHUEIR S A TEAE /FTIBUC R /1A 38

Other Professionals/Administrator, Systems Manager, 1,407 .4 1,521.8 1,744.9 1,983.9 2,098.5
Analyst Programmer etc

HthEE 1THAR » ZHEE  ZHERFOMREETS

Other Supporting Staff - Clerical, Secretarial, Workman, 16,6389 16,593.7 16,679.0 17,391.8 18,180.4

Artisan, Property Attendant etc
EMZEABE-—XEB ME -IA BRI EXFEESE

Non-direct Patient Care Total: 18,167.9 18,235.1 18,547.6 19,500.7 20,406.9
FEERAEEAFHEG
HA Total: 57,712.8 58,518.1 61,227.8 64,213.2 67,606.8
BERAFHEG
Note: 5
* Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) includes all full-time & part-time * AFIZZREBAS |5 BIEBREREAEEREHFH
staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary. B ESE SO REERE o
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Appendix 12(q)
By 8% 12(a)

Resource Utilisation for 2013-14
2013-14 FFE BRI

Recurrent Expenditure’

for2013-14
(HKSMn)
Clusters 2013- 14 FEKEMEAX"
B4 (B¥EET)
Hong Kong East Cluster 7 & 58 28 B B 49 5053
Hong Kong West Cluster 7 & 78 %& B 48 5554
Kowloon Central Cluster .52 g b B 48 6,350
Kowloon East Cluster 11,5858 BB Bt 48 4718
Kowloon West Cluster 1,52 7 2P B 48 10,297
New Territories East Cluster 3 57 58 &8 e Bt 4 7,505
New Territories West Cluster ¥ 57 75 22 Fr Bt 48 5,890
Hospital Authority Head Office and Others” B2f & 1% /2 48 it 25 5 I o 1,831
Total &5t 47,198
Note: (Ea
1. Refers to resources utilized under the Government recurrent subvention. 1. BRENERHBINERER -
2. Others include resources for hospital services (e.g. intern) and corporate 2. [EM ] BEARERES (MEBELE)  #EEE
programmes (e.g. insurance premium, legal costs / claims and (MRBE - ZREBR/ REREMEHEREE) K&
information technology services, etc) and others. BV EIRGEF ©
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Appendix 12(b)
By 8% 12(0)

Hospital Authority Training and Development Expenditure
= EEEREEIIRERAS

Training and Development
Expenditure for 2013-14"

(HK$Mn)
Cluster 2013-14 FEFIRBRAX"
B4 (B¥EET)
Hong Kong East Cluster 7 & 58 28 B B 49 9.1
Hong Kong West Cluster 7 & 74 %8 B B 48 97
Kowloon Central Cluster J1.88 # &8 B 48 88
Kowloon East Cluster 11,5258 BBt 48 26
Kowloon West Cluster 1,52 78 B8P B 48 84
New Territories East Cluster ¥7 5% 51 BB b4 115
New Territories West Cluster %757 78 %& b B 48 6.3
Hospital Authority Head Office 228 & 12 B 42 =5 706°
Total #5t 127.5
Note: B
1. Expenditure in providing training and development for HA workforce 1. AEBRERBERMSIIREENRY  BEE2B g
with items including course/conference fees, passages and travel, HER RERXBE RED BEEEHY - HM
scholarships, subsistence allowances, teaching aids and devices, kA Y BMER REZABRHMIAMH
publications, trainer fees, refund of examination fee and other relevant i o
charges.
2. A number of corporate-wide training programmes and initiatives are 2. EREBRRANRFEPRAEN L EEIRER
centrally coordinated by Hospital Authority Head Office. B
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Appendix 13
By &% 13

Five-Year Financial Highlights
BERFOVBUEE

Financial Results (for the Year ended 31 March)
MEER (BE8F38318)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BA¥EERET AY¥EER BY¥EET BRY¥EER BRYEET
Income LA
Government subvention (recurrent and capital) 45,869 43,159 38,348 34,366 33,098
BT B) (e R EAM)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 3,182 2,951 3,030 2,994 2,726
EEE AW A (kRE#L)
Non-medical fee income 3EE & & BULA 892 775 685 562 478
Designated donations & 18 183 149 145 143 132
Capital donations A EHE 128 120 109 113 110
50,254 47,154 42,317 38,178 36,544
Expenditure X i}
Staff costs B TR A (34,459) (32,290) (29,616) (26,904) (26,680)
Drugs %4 (4,941) (4,479) (4,069) (3,639) (3,209)
Medical supplies and equipment &) & K& & #5 (2,118) (1,999) (1,846) (1,354) (1,210)
Other operating expenses (include depreciation (8,071) (7,288) (6,289) (6,039) (5473)

and amortisation)
HEih&iEm S (BIEeE k)

(49,589) (46,056) (41,820) (37,936) (36,572)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year FE & (&#8) 665 1,098 497 242 (28)

Income by Source (in % of Total Income)
SRNARR (IGRBABDL)

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20% [ others Hits

I Medical fee income B35 IR
B Government subvention BB

10%

0%
2014 2013 2012 20M 2010 Year F {7
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Appendix 13
By &% 13

Key Financial Indicators (for the Year ended 31 March)
TRUBER(BEZF3R318)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$SMn HKS$SMn HK$Mn
BEEET BREAERT BYEER  BYEERx  B¥EER

Medical fee income BHEE AU

Inpatient fees T B i & 943 939 1,164 1,269 1,174
Outpatient fees FIZ I E 1,258 1,218 1,188 1,169 1,128
ltemised charges IR & 1,420 1,231 1134 1,032 887
Other medical fees Efh B E K & 88 81 71 66 60
3,709 3,469 3,557 3,536 3,249
Less: Waivers 1k} : 8% (527) (518) (527) (542) (523)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 3,182 2,951 3,030 2,994 2,726
BRERARA IKR#%)
Write-off of medical fee income B % A A B X 36 35 37 29 36

Expenditure by Category
(in % of Total Expenditure)
SR (EREB2)

100%
90% [ — — — — —
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30% Others operating expenses E & FERi &

[ Medical supplies and equipment B8 41 5 K 3%
B Drugs z4

B staff costs BTRA

20%

10%

0%
2014 2013 2012 20M 2010 Year 3
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Appendix 13
By &% 13

Financial Position (at 31 March)
BRI (REE3R318)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HKSMn HK$SMn HK$SMn HK$SMn HKSMn
BERER BETERT BEEERT BETER BERER
Non-current assets IERENEE 10,615 10,391 4,204 5,636 4,539
Current assets V&&= 30,508 14,206 11,815 8,425 7,931
Current liabilities B B & (9,607) (6,918) (5,929) (4,795) (4,007)
Net current assets B EEFE 20,901 7,288 5,886 3,630 3,924
Non-current liabilities 3R E & & (19,609) (6,686) (683) (658) (600)
Net assets EEFE 11,907 10,993 9,407 8,608 7,863
Capital subventions and Capital donations 4,610 4,383 3,895 3,593 3,090
BEA R ENBE
Designated fund #E &S 5,077 5,077 5,077 5,077 5,077
Revenue reserve WA & 2,220 1,533 435 62) (304)
11,907 10,993 9,407 8,608 7,863
Total Assets (in HK$ millions)
REE (BEB8T)
35,000
30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000 -
5,000 — E— . Cash & bank B & & $R1T45 64
- . . . - Fixed income instruments BIE AR TR
0
(note) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 Year 43 . Receivables, deposits & prepayments

(&)

Note: Exclude the placement with the Exchange Fund of HK$6,408,438,000 (2013:
HK$6,124,158,000) as HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund.

i TEERERIEARIBNEESRE ATFHRRINEESEE 6,408,438,000 TTHIFHIE
(2013: #5#5 6,124,1580007T) °

B - e RFBENTE
. Inventories Z&

B Fixed assets B EE

ERERBER 2013-2014
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Appendix 13
By &% 13

Key Financial Indicators (at 31 March)

F2MBEEE (RE8F3/318)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BYEET BYEET BRY¥EET BRY¥EET BRYEET
Inventories 7 &
Drugs 4 1,151 1,043 840 713 640
Other medical and general consumables 218 209 209 180 183
Hh B R R —RERER
1,369 1,252 1,049 893 823
Average stock holding period (weeks)
FIHFEREERD (25)
Drugs %% 120 120 108 10.2 100
Other medical and general consumables 86 8.7 10.0 94 8.2

HAE B L — R
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Appendix 14
B 8% 14

Anolysis of Hospital/Clinic Fees and Charges

St ZERMNED T

The fees and charges for medical services provided by the Hospital Authority
are levied in accordance with those stipulated in the Gazette. The fees and
charges are recognised as income in the Statement of Income and Expenditure
when services are provided. Different charge rates are applicable for Eligible
Persons and Non-Eligible Persons. Eligible Persons of public health services are
holders of Hong Kong Identity Card issued under the Registration of Persons
Ordinance, except those who obtained their Hong Kong Identity Card by virtue
of a previous permission to land or remain in Hong Kong granted to them and
such permission has expired or ceased to be valid; or children who are Hong
Kong residents and under 11 years of age. Persons who are not Eligible Persons
are classified as Non-Eligible Persons.

Fees and charges that are uncollectible after all possible attempts have been
made are written off in the Statement of Income and Expenditure for the year.
In addition, provision is made for outstanding fees and charges. Such provision
is assessed based on both the aging as well as the recoverability rate of
outstanding hospital fees and charges as at the end of the financial year. The
amount of provision for doubtful debts as at 31 March 2014 is HK$57,900,000 (as
at 31 March 2013: HK$49,094,000).

Fees and charges for public medical services are waived for recipients of
Comprehensive Social Security Assistance (“CSSA”). Other patients who
have financial difficulties in paying fees and charges for medical services
can approach the Medical Social Workers to apply for waivers which may be
granted after assessment of the patients'financial condition.

The analysis of the hospital/clinic fees and charges of the Hospital Authority is
as follows:

BREERMRHEERBNEE  ERESHRENEE
R - BRARERRISRHEE - EZFENREERE
RBEWA - [HFAEBALIRIEFEERAL] ABHN
WERALTEE - ERALBEREN[FTAERALIR
BRAERBIANZECKRI) METEFNENAL  EE
FALTRBEECEARIER AT MERETEINE
MZEFERBRRTBERARIN : HFAHEERERD
NBEATRE - M6 LR EROALAIRFEFTEERA
atl e

KHRBATA A REA A BEDARREENN & AR S EZ FERIK
SEERNTESE AN NERMREHNE B ERIRE
& - RIRBER AW FEE LA NABHERNER SR
RABKHM e B E LR - #E2014F3A31BAILEHR
W 8 48 /% 78 15 57,900,000 7T (BX £ 201343 A31 BRI A B
49,094,000 7T ) °

FER[FEHBRER (R WAL ERR DL BE
R E - MR AERECBERE - AIBHEBBL T REE
% - BERAERZEERRFEER - MFEER - &
AESERARR

BiiE2mBk ZEMRENDITNT :

2013-2014 2012-2013
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BYAERT BY¥EER (%) B¥EERT B¥EER (%)
Net hospital/clinic fees and charges 3,137 (84.6%) 2,906 (83.8%)
T, B AT B R R
Hosp|ta|/c||n|c fees written-off and changes
in provision for doubtful debts
TR DR E R RIRE G
Actual write-off BFF T8 36 35
Increase in provision B #EE N 9 10
45 (1.2%) 45 (1.3%)
Waiver of hospital/clinic fees for:
ERemER, SRKE
Eligible Persons ff& &1& AT 475 (12.8%) 479 (13.8%)
Non-Eligible Persons 3EfF & & A+ 51 (1.4%) 39 (1.1%)
Total hospital/clinic fees and charges 3,708 (100%) 3,469 (100%)

g e Eot
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It F R 2 _E B A BA L www.ha.org.hk e

The Hospital Authority is committed to environmental protection.
You may access this Report on our website www.ha.org.hk

E2Px B 12 /3 Hospital Authority

BENEDEEH14BEREERAE
Hospital Authority Building
147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

B|rETel  © (852)23006555
BE Fax : (852)28907726
BH Email :  enquiry@ha.orghk
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